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About this report 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
This Integrated Annual Report of Accéntuate aims to provide a balanced, understandable, and complete view of our business by 
reporting on the financial performance and non-financial aspects of the Group. 
 
The report covers the identification of and reporting on material issues and stakeholder relations affecting the Group, as well as key 
performance areas of the business and includes considerations which are undertaken to ensure the sustainability of the business. 
This document contains the Annual Financial Statements of Accéntuate Limited and its subsidiaries for the financial year from 1 July 
2019 to 30 June 2020.  
 
The Accéntuate Board confirms its responsibility for the integrity of the report, the content of which has been collectively assessed 
by the Directors, who believe that all material issues have been addressed. 
 
The Annual Financial Statements have been audited by the independent auditor in terms of the Companies Act of South Africa, 71 
of 2008, as amended, as indicated in their report, but no other information contained in the Integrated Annual Report has been 
independently assured. The full set of audited consolidated and separate Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 
2020 is available on the Company’s website at www.accentuateltd.co.za. 
 
The Financial Statements were prepared under the supervision of the Group Chief Financial Officer, Wisdom Mushohwe, CA(SA). 
 
The 2020 Integrated Annual Report comprises: 
• A review of the Group as pertains to the 2020 results. 
• Social, environmental, governance, prospects and leadership of the Group. 
• Annual Financial Statements prepared and presented in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) 

and the Companies Act of South Africa. 
 
The report is guided by: 
• The King Code on Governance Principles for South Africa for 2016 (“King IV™”). 
• The Companies Act of South Africa, 71 of 2008, as amended. 
• JSE Listings Requirements. 
 

Disclaimer 
 
This Integrated Annual Report may contain certain forward-looking statements concerning Accéntuate’s operations, business 
strategy, financial conditions, growth plans and expectations. These statements include, without limitation, those concerning the 
economic outlook, business climate and changes in the market. Such views involve both known and unknown risks, assumptions, 
uncertainties and important factors that could materially influence the actual performance of the Group. No assurance can be given 
that these will prove to be correct and no representation or warranty, expressed or implied, is given as to the accuracy or 
completeness of such views contained in this Integrated Annual Report. 
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Group Overview 

 
 
 
 

Who we are 
 

 
Accéntuate is a Group of companies involved in the water treatment, industrial and commercial cleaning and metal treatment sectors, 
as well as the flooring market. Accéntuate is a truly South African Company, partnered with local and international leaders in their 
field, and in this way is able to fulfil the mandate of consciously supporting economic transformation in the country. 
 
During the reporting period, Accéntuate disposed of Safic Proprietary Limited effective 31 December 2019, including the water 
treatment business. Accéntuate Group is therefore now only specialising in flooring solutions.  

 

Value proposition 
 

 
The Board remains committed to profitable growth as the primary generator of value. This was difficult given the size of the businesses 
that make up Accéntuate. Macroeconomic conditions have made this growth difficult over the course of recent financial years. 
 

Mission 
As a truly African Company operating within the global economy, we strive to provide comprehensive, innovative and cost-
effective solutions to Accéntuate sustainable development and maintenance of infrastructure on the African continent. 
 

Vision 
We strive to be the partner of choice to our targeted industries through the provision of world-class infrastructural solutions.  This 
will be done within a framework embracing global benchmarks while taking cognisance of local realities. 
 

Values 
We accept our position as a responsible corporate citizen and therefore uphold and respect: 
• the rule of law 
• responsible and sustainable development 
• trust and respect for individuals and communities; and 
• conducting businesses with uncompromising integrity. 
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Risk Management 
 

 

Risk category Risk and impact in business  Mitigation and control strategy 

Cash management and credit risk  Inability of clients to meet their 
payment obligations timeously or 
at all. 

 Inability to sustain and grow the 
business. 

 Manage profitable cash-generative 
businesses; 

 reduce capital costs;  

 reduce debtors’ days outstanding;  
 improve credit control and cash 

management;  
 ensure healthy debt-to-equity 

ratio;  
 maintain sustainable funder 

relationships. 
Capital and funding  Lack of funding and access to financing 

facilities 
 Inability to raise adequate debt or 

equity capital to sustain and grow 
existing business. 

 Short-term nature of debt 
facilities. 

 Continue to explore new sources 
of funding. 

Economic  Weak economic growth is 
negatively impacting employment 
levels. 

 Promote temporary employment 
as a strategy to mitigate the effect 
of slow economic growth. 

 Continue to drive organic and 
geographic growth within our 
business. 

Transformation  Poor B-BBEE rating can result in 
a negative impact on the 
sustainability and growth of our 
business. 

 Engage potential B-BBEE 
investors – ongoing. 
 

Political  The political landscape is 
inextricably connected to 
economic performance which 
remains poor in South Africa.  
It is further impacted by the lack of 
infrastructure project roll-out by 
Government. 

 Undeniably, unemployment is one 
of South Africa’s most challenging 
realities.  
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Chairman’s Report 
 

 
Last year I expressed the hope that the infrastructure spent by Government could revitalise South Africa’s economy, but my optimism 
was somewhat dampened by low economic growth, increasing unemployment figures, and escalating fuel and utility costs.  
 
While these factors were a concern, they were rapidly surpassed by the spread of COVID-19, which resulted in extraordinary 
disruption at a global, national and personal level. In these particularly uncertain times, the need for focused leadership is greater 
than ever before. Despite these challenges and liquidity constraints, the Company still managed to raise capital and position its 
flooring business to benefit from the local production focus.  
 

Sale of Safic 
During 2019, the Accéntuate Board decided to focus strategically on the flooring business. As a result, the Safic business has been 
deemed as non-core and a process commenced to dispose of this business. At the General Meeting held on 26 October 2020, this 
disposal was concluded effective 31 December 2019.  
 

Scheme of arrangement and delisting 
Despite the disposal of Safic, the Company has been under significant liquidity constraints and has reported ongoing financial losses 
over a number of reporting periods. Shareholders have also been advised of the ongoing review by the Company’s principal bankers 
of the overdraft and other banking facilities. Over a period of more than twelve months the Board engaged with Shareholders and 
private equity companies in an effort to recapitalise the Company. As the prospect of success diminished and the cashflow constraints 
increased, the options of liquidation or business rescue were tabled and considered to be the only alternative if recapitalisation was 
unsuccessful. Pruta Securities (Jersey) Limited (Pruta) then made an offer of R0,10 (ten cents) per share and was considered 
acceptable by the Board as a better solution for all stakeholders as opposed to liquidation or business rescue.  
 
Pruta and the Accéntuate Board further believe that the Company has not derived any material benefits from being in the listed 
environment, having not garnered institutional Shareholder support to justify the costs of the regulatory processes, Listings 
Requirements, compliance, and associated costs with being a listed entity. The listing costs of approximately R4,2 million per annum 
have had a significant adverse effect on the business. The Company posted a Circular on 30 November 2020 to Shareholders relating 
to the offer by Pruta in terms of Section 114 of the Companies Act and the proposed delisting of Accéntuate on the JSE. 
 
The General Meeting for this Scheme was held on 28 December 2020 and the Company is pleased that all the resolutions were 
passed and the offer of R0,10 (ten cents) to eligible Shareholders opened on 29 December 2020. The termination of Accéntuate 
Shares on the Alternative Exchange of the JSE is expected on 26 January 2021.   
 

Board changes 
The Board was restructured with the ending of the Group Chief Financial Officer, Maarten Coetzee’s contract, and the resignation of 
the Chief Executive Officer, Fred Platt.  
 
The Group Financial Manager, Des Moodley, was appointed as Acting Chief Financial Officer, but resigned on 28 February 2020. 
The Financial Director of FloorworX Africa Proprietary Limited (FloorworX), Wisdom Mushohwe, stepped in and was appointed as 
Chief Financial Officer, effective 25 March 2020. With FloorworX being the only remaining business in the Group, Donald Platt was 
the most suited to take over as Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 1 September 2020.  
 

Changes in Non-Executive Director responsibilities 
The designation of Andile Mjamekwana changed from Non-Executive Director to Independent Non-Executive Director in November 
2019.  Pieter Kriel, the Shareholder representative of Thebe Investment Corporation (Thebe) on the Board, resigned from Thebe in 
June 2020 and, after consideration by the Remuneration & Nomination Committee, he was requested to remain as a Director on the 
Board. His designation was changed to Independent Non-Executive Director.   
 

Appreciation and thanks 
My sincere thanks and appreciation are extended to my fellow Board members for their active input and wise consideration in 
deliberations. A special thanks to Fred Platt for the years of dedicated service especially during the last period of his tenure which 
enabled the Group to recapitalise and his continued support to the Company, even after his resignation. Furthermore, a great thanks 
to dedicated Senior Management and all the Accéntuate staff, working as a collaborative unit.  
 
Lastly, I extend my thanks to all our customers, staff, Shareholders and stakeholders for your continued support. 
 

 
RB Patmore       
Independent Chairman       
 

30 December 2020 
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report 
 

 

External economic environment 
During the second half of the reporting period, the spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted many local economies around the 
globe. In many countries, businesses have had to limit operations for long or indefinite periods of time. Measures taken to contain 
the spread of the virus have triggered significant disruptions to businesses worldwide, resulting in an economic slowdown. The 
COVID-19 pandemic materially and adversely affected the supply and demand for Accéntuate Limited products, resulting in the 
operating results being negatively impacted for the 2020 year.  
 
The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in a particularly tough South African economic environment, from which the Group derives most 
of its revenue. Turnover continues to be stifled by the lack of any real economic growth or infrastructure expenditure; which has 
further been worsened by the pandemic, which has shifted the government spending priorities resulting in the lowest levels of 
Government infrastructure spent in recent history.  
 
The challenges faced by the major companies in the construction sector have also had a negative impact on demand for the products 
and services offered by the Group during the year under review. Added to this, the volatile exchange rate and the rising price of Brent 
Crude negatively influenced petrol and diesel prices as well as petrochemical derivative input costs in both the chemical and flooring 
manufacturing facilities. 
 

New heights 
Following the successful disposal of Safic Proprietary Limited and approval of the delisting on the JSE, FloorworX is ideally positioned 
as a local manufacturer in South Africa. With over 65 years of business experience, FloorworX is the only manufacturer in South 
Africa who produces semi-flexible vinyl tiles and fully flexible vinyl sheeting and tiles. Our locally manufactured products are SANS 
mark-bearing. 
 
Quality control and the environment are key factors when selecting your partner in any building related product or service. Our East 
London factory is ISO 90001 and OHSAS 18001 accredited. Apart from the fact that FloorworX is proudly and deeply rooted in our 
beautiful country, and thus has our economy’s welfare at heart, FloorworX also branches out internationally to bring South Africa the 
latest in flooring technology from abroad. 

 

Review of Group financial performance 
Although the results for the period under review are below expectation, they are in line with the general performance of the 
construction industry in which Accéntuate operates. Revenue was impacted negatively due to the low demand levels and limited 
operation under the different levels of state of emergency lockdown since March 2020. Maintenance of market share, and positive 
margins, notwithstanding lower production volumes, has however seen operational performance in line with the previous period. Cost 
reduction initiatives were continued from last year; and these have assisted in maintaining operations under difficult operating 
circumstances.  
 
At a Group level the results were impacted by: 
• Poor macro-economic conditions; 
• Lack of Government infrastructure spend; 
• COVID-19 pandemic; 
• Sale of Environmental Solutions segment during the year; and 
• Currency volatility. 

 
Revenue for the year was R199.6 million (2019: R285.2 million, which included an additional R67.7 million turnover from 
Environmental Solutions segment), which is significantly lower than the previous year due to poor trading conditions that had an 
impact on output throughout the Group.   
 
Operating expenses decreased by 18.5% to R119.1 million (2018: R145.8 million, which includes expenses relating to Environmental 
Solutions segment amounting to R45.6 million). Despite the negative impact of once-off costs relating to the restructuring throughout 
the Group, normal operating cost have been reduced, including a significantly reduced rental charge as a result of consolidation of 
offices and renegotiated terms with the landlord of the Steeledale premises. 
 
Finance costs increased from R4.2 million in 2019 to R4.7 million in the current period. The increase is due to the adoption of IFRS 
16 resulting in more interest being recognised on leases, and more extensive use of overdraft facilities.   
 
Earnings per share is a negative 5.21 cents per share in the current year, compared to negative 17.46 cents in 2019. Cash and cash 
equivalents at the end of the period amount to negative R19.3 million (2019: (R15.9 million). 
 

Operational review 
Notwithstanding the challenging market conditions, much time and attention has been spent by the Executive Team in developing 
plans that address costs, sustainability, and the growth of market share, all of which have contributed to an organisation that is leaner, 
more focused and able to take advantage of the opportunities that present themselves. Strengthening the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income remains a high priority for the Executive and the Board. 
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report (continues) 
 

 

Outlook 
Despite poor market conditions and the prevailing negative sentiment, Accéntuate is currently experiencing early indications (certainly 
better than have been seen in the past five years) of potential growth within the infrastructure and construction sectors.  
 
The focus in the period ahead will remain on sustainable growth that will see Accéntuate weather the current deep cycle to remain 
relevant and profitable into the future. The Group will further continue to focus on local production through its Eastern Cape based 
production plant, as its growth base, in order to maximise on distance to market, local growth potential and synergies of an optimum 
manufacturing production capacity. This is expected to result in reduction in operating costs and ensure a return to sustainable 
profitability. 
 
Given the capital raised from Shareholders, intensive cost-cutting and a good pipeline of work - albeit that projects tend to be shifted 
out - Accéntuate is in a much better position from which to move forward. Emphasis will be placed on strengthening the balance 
sheet, remaining conscious not to load the business with costs knowing that the market remains unpredictable and most importantly, 
to recapitalise the business. 
 

Appreciation 
One only gets through tough situations with support from others and a unified commitment to the cause. The commitment of the 
management and staff of Accéntuate has seen our organisation survive the most difficult period that we have ever seen, and we have 
emerged leaner, stronger and more focussed than ever.  
 

 
DE Platt       
Chief Executive Officer       
 

30 December 2020 
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Leadership 
 

 

Independent Non-Executive Directors 
 
Ralph Patmore (68) 
Chairman 
B.Com (University of the Witwatersrand), MBL (SBL), Stanford Executive Programme (Stanford University, USA) 
Ralph was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director and head of the Remuneration & Nomination Committee in 2011. He 
has an impeccable management career in South African industry, having served as the Chief Executive Officer of Iliad Africa Limited 
for 10 years, stepping down in 2008. This experience in the building material supply area is benefiting Accéntuate as the Company 
moves forward to capture additional market share. Ralph currently holds Non-Executive Directorships on four other companies listed 
on the JSE. His experience in management, strategy mergers and acquisitions and accounting matters, coupled with his vast 
knowledge of the construction, building and retail environment, has allowed Ralph to make a significant contribution to the Group. 

 
Eric Ratshikhopha (69) 
BA (Hons) Sociology, University of the North Developmental Programme in Labour Relations, Unisa Advanced Programme in 
Labour Relations, Unisa, Masters of Management, University of the Witwatersrand Senior Executive Programme, Harvard School 
of Business, Masters of Management, University of the Witwatersrand 
Eric was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director and as Chairman of the Social and Ethics Committee in 2011. He 
currently holds several Directorships on foundations and serves as a Trustee on a few Trusts. His background includes vast work 
experience in the mining sector, having been involved in industrial relations, health and safety, strategic management and corporate 
social investment. Eric has worked in Gencor, Genmin, Billiton S.A. and as Corporate Development Director at Xstrata. His wealth 
of experience in transformation, stakeholder relations and community development, as well as general management practices, is a 
massive advantage to Accéntuate. 

 
Pieter Kriel (61) 
B.Acc (Hons), CA(SA), University of Stellenbosch, Business School Senior Management Programme 
Pieter joined Thebe Investment Corporation in an executive capacity in January 2011 to establish and head its new Power & 
Infrastructure division, having served on the Thebe Board as a Non-Executive Director for 12 years. During this period, he was also 
a member of the Thebe Investment Committee and chaired this committee for the last year. Pieter co-founded Sanlam Private Equity 
in 2003 and he was Chief Executive Officer from 2005 until June 2009. Pieter joined Sanlam’s Investment Division in 1987 after 
qualifying as a chartered accountant and completing his articles with Ernst & Young. During his 24 years of investment management 
with Sanlam, he gained experience in various roles including financial control, compliance, structured products, equity underwriting, 
portfolio management, the structuring and management of black economic empowerment investments and finally private equity. 
Pieter since resigned from Thebe and is managing a family business in tourism.  

 
Andile Mjamekwana (43) 
B.Com (Hons) Accounting (University of Natal), BCompt (WSU), CA(SA) 
Andile Mjamekwana is a qualified chartered accountant with more than 7 years investment banking experience. Andile previously 
worked at Thebe Investment Corporation in the Business Development and Strategy division mainly dealing with power and 
infrastructure projects. Andile is a Board member of Jeffreys Bay Wind Farm (RF) (Pty) Ltd, De Aar Solar Power (RF) (Pty) Ltd and 
Oogfontein Solar Power (RF) (Pty) Ltd. He previously worked at Absa Capital’s Investment Banking Advisory for 2 years as an 
associate Director. The main transactions he was involved with were the sale of Cipla Medpro SA by Cipla India, the sale of ABSA 
Bank’s stake in ABSA Private Equity and an empowerment transaction for the DeBeers Diamond Trading division. Prior to this 
Andile was an associate Director at HSBC’s Investment Banking Advisory division for 5 Years. The main transactions he worked on 
there were the sale of MTN Nigeria by local partners to MTN Group, the privatisation of Gabon Telecoms and the sale of Transnet 
non-core assets. He also worked for almost two years at PricewaterhouseCoopers Corporate Finance Valuation and Strategy 
division. He did his articles at SizweNtsaluba VSP. 

Executive Directors 
 
Donald Platt (61) 
Chief Executive Officer 
Degrees in Business Administration and PhD in Management 
Donald Platt started his working career in sales and marketing, spending 12 years in the industrial gas industry and thereafter 
served as a Director of a subsidiary of Conshu Limited. He joined Marley SA as sales and marketing Director in 1998 and was 
promoted to managing Director of Marley Flooring in 2001. The division was acquired by EFIC (Empowerment and Financial and 
Investment Company) in 2004 and became part of Accéntuate. Donald is Managing Director of FloorworX Africa (Pty) Limited and 
assumed the position of Group Chief Executive Officer of Accéntuate on 1 September 2020. 
 

 
Wisdom Mushohwe 
Chief Financial Officer 
BCom Honours (UJ), CA(SA), CPA (USA – California) 
Wisdom is a qualified chartered accountant and certified public accountant and joined the Accéntuate Group in 2018 as Financial 
Director of FloorworX Africa. Prior to joining the Accéntuate Group, Wisdom was employed as the CFO of King Hintsa FET College. 
Before this, Wisdom served as an Associate Director at Lunika Inc. and as a senior manager at Rakoma and Associates Inc. From 
2007 to 2013 Wisdom has served in various positions at Deloitte in South Africa, United Arab Emirates and United States of America. 
During this time, he qualified as a chartered accountant through SAICA, as well as a certified public accountant from the California 
Board of Accountancy, USA. Wisdom has extensive finance and audit experience in the public and private sector spanning over a 
period of 14 years. 
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Corporate Governance  

 
 
 
Corporate Governance Report 
 

 
Custodians of Governance 
The Board accepts its responsibility as the custodians of Corporate Governance within the Group and is therefore accountable to 
stakeholders for the provisions of value-enabling governance. The Board is constituted in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of 
Incorporation and in line with King IVTM. The majority of the Board members are Independent Non-Executive Directors who bring 
diversity to Board deliberations and create value by constructively challenging management.  
 
A clear division of responsibilities between the Directors is maintained to ensure that no single Director has unfettered decision-
making powers. A delegation of authority framework is in place and reviewed regularly to ensure the necessary authority to 
management to implement and execute the strategy. The Board is satisfied that the delegation of authority framework contributes to 
role clarity and the effective exercise of authority and responsibilities. 
 
The Board is the highest decision-making body in the Group. It approves the Group’s strategy and ensures that it is aligned with the 
Group’s values. The Board assumes collective responsibility for steering and monitoring strategy implementation and performance 
targets as well as any risks involved in the implementation of the strategy.  
 
It is collectively responsible for the Group’s long-term success. The Board is accountable to Shareholders and strives to balance the 
interests of the Group and those of its various stakeholders. All Directors are continuously taking steps to ensure that they have 
sufficient working knowledge of the Group and industry within the triple context in which it operates. Directors are required to ensure 
continued development of their competencies to lead effectively and act with due care, skill and diligence and take reasonable diligent 
steps to become informed about matters for decision-making.  
 
The Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary. They are entitled, at the Company’s expense, to 
seek independent professional advice about the affairs of the Company regarding the execution of their duties as Directors.  

 
Board composition 
During the reporting period, the Group Chief Financial Officer, Maarten Coetzee’s contract was not renewed effective 29 November 
2019. Subsequently, Des Moodley was appointed as Acting Chief Financial Officer, but tendered his resignation effective 29 February 
2020. The Financial Director of FloorworX Africa Proprietary Limited, Wisdom Mushohwe, was then appointed as Chief Financial 
Officer on 25 March 2020.    
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Corporate Governance Report (continues) 
 

 
The Chief Executive Officer, Fred Platt, resigned effective 31 August 2020 and Donald Platt, an Executive Director, took over as Chief 
Executive Officer effective 1 September 2020.  
 
The designation of Andile Mjamekwana changed from Non-Executive Director to Independent Non-Executive Director in November 
2019.  Pieter Kriel, the Shareholder representative of Thebe Investment Corporation (Thebe) on the Board, resigned from Thebe in 
June 2020 and, after consideration by the Remuneration & Nomination Committee, he was requested to remain as a Director on the 
Board and his designation was changed to Independent Non-Executive Director. 
 

Appointment, rotation and re-election of Directors  
The Board has a formal and transparent policy regarding the appointment of Directors to the Board. Whilst the appointments are a 
matter for the Board, the authority to oversee the nomination and to carry out the interview process have been delegated to the 
Remuneration and Nomination Committee.  
 
Apart from a candidate’s experience, knowledge, skills, availability and likely fit, the committee also considers a candidate’s integrity, 
as well as other Directorships and commitments to ensure that the candidate will have sufficient time to discharge his/her role properly. 
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee also considers race and gender diversity in its assessment in line with its Race and 
Gender Diversity Policy.  
 
The Board exceeded its 15% target of black individuals on the Board with the appointment of Wisdom Mushohwe. The Board now 
consists of 50% black individuals. The target for black individuals is now set at 67% and remain unchanged for female representatives 
at 15%.  
 
New appointees are appropriately familiarised with the Group’s business through an induction programme. The composition of the 
Board is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure ongoing compliance with the requirements set out in the Companies Act of South 
Africa, 71 of 2008 (“the Companies Act”) and King IVTM.  
 
In accordance with the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, a Director, having been appointed by the Board since the last 
Annual General Meeting of the Company, is obliged to retire and being eligible, offers him/herself for election at the next Annual 
General Meeting. 
 
In line with the Memorandum of Incorporation, one-third of the Non-Executive Directors are required to retire, and if available and 
eligible, stand for re-election at the Company’s Annual General Meeting. Those Directors who have been in office for the longest, as 
calculated from the last re-election or appointment date, are required to stand for re-election. At the Annual General Meeting, Ralph 
Patmore and Eric Ratshikhopha will stand for nomination to be re-appointed. 
 
During the reporting period, Wisdom Mushohwe was appointed as Chief Financial Officer on 25 March 2020. Shareholders will be 
requested to confirm Wisdom Mushohwe’s appointment at the next Annual General Meeting.  

 
The Board met five times during the 2019 financial year, one meeting being a special Board meeting.  
 

   Committee membership 

Name Designation Board 
attendance 

ARC RNC SEC IB 

Fred Platt1 Chief Executive Officer 5/5     

Maarten Coetzee2 Chief Financial Officer 0/2     

Donald Platt3 Chief Executive Officer 7/7     

Wisdom Mushohwe4 Chief Financial Officer 4/4     

Ralph Patmore Independent Chairman 7/7    2/2* 

Eric Ratshikhopha Independent Non-Executive Director 6/7   *  

Pieter Kriel Independent Non-Executive Director 7/7  *  1/2  

Andile Mjamekwana Independent Non-Executive Director 7/7 *   2/2 

1 resigned 31 August 2020 

2 contract ended 29 November 2019 

3 appointed as Chief Executive Officer 1 September 2020 

4 Appointed 25 March 2020 

* Chairman 

ARC – Audit and Risk Committee 

RNC – Remuneration and Nomination Committee 

SEC – Social and Ethics Committee 

IB – Independent Board 

 

 

 



 

 

Integrated Annual Report 2020                                                                                                                                                           
  12  

Corporate Governance Report (continues) 
 

 

Non-Executive Director tenure and succession 
The management of the Board’s succession process is crucial to its sustainability. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee 
ensures that, as Directors retire, candidates with the necessary experience are identified to ensure that the Board’s competence and 
balance is maintained and enhanced, taking into account the Group’s current and future needs.  
 
Leadership roles and functions 
 

Non-Executive Directors 
All members of the Board have a fiduciary responsibility to represent the best interest of the Group and all of its stakeholders. The 
Group’s Non-Executive Directors are individuals of a high calibre and credibility who make a significant contribution to the Board’s 
deliberations and decisions. They have the necessary skills and experience to exercise transformation, diversity and employment 
equity. 
 
The Chairman  
The Chairman’s role is to set the ethical tone for the Board and to ensure that the Board remains efficient, focused and operates as 
a unit. During the reporting period, Ralph Patmore remained the Independent Chairman. His role is separate from that of the Chief 
Executive Officer, Donald Platt. He provides overall leadership to the Board and the Chief Executive Officer without limiting the 
principle of collective responsibility for Board decisions.  
 
Ralph Patmore is a member of both the Audit and Risk Committee and the Remuneration and Nomination Committee. Although King 
IVTM recommends that the Chairman of the Board should not be a member of the Audit and Risk Committee, the Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee considered this requirement and decided that Ralph Patmore remains a member of the committee due to his 
financial experience.  
 
Chief Executive Officer 
The Board appoints the Chief Executive Officer to lead and implement the execution of the approved strategy. Donald Platt serves 
as the link between management and the Board and is accountable to the Board. Quarterly progress reports are received from the 
Chief Executive Officer on the progress made against the implementation of the strategy.   
 
Company Secretary 
The Company Secretary plays a vital role in the Corporate Governance of the Group and is responsible for ensuring Board compliance  
with procedures and regulations of a statutory nature. 
 
The Company Secretary ensures compliance with the JSE Listings Requirements and is responsible for the submission of the Annual 
Compliance Certificate to the JSE Limited (“JSE”).  
 
The Company Secretary ensures that, in accordance with the pertinent laws and regulatory framework, the proceedings and affairs 
of the Board and its members as well as the Company itself are properly administered.  
 
The Board satisfied itself regarding Sirkien van Schalkwyk’s work experience, performance, technical skills and overall competence 
in fulfilling her role as Company Secretary. She is a consultant and maintains an arms-length relationship with the Board. She reports 
to the Chairman on all statutory duties and functions performed relating to the Board.  
 
The Company Secretary’s primary responsibilities are to: 
• ensure that Board procedures are followed and reviewed regularly; 
• ensure applicable rules and regulations for the conduct of the affairs of the Board are complied with; 
• maintain statutory records in accordance with legal requirements; 
• guide the Board as to how its responsibilities should be properly discharged in the best interest of the Company; 
• keep abreast of, and inform, the Board of current and new developments regarding best practice Corporate Governance thinking 

and practice.  

 
Ethical and effective leadership 
The Board is committed to achieving its goals with integrity, high ethical standards and in compliance with all applicable laws, whilst 
being a responsible corporate citizen. The Board reviewed the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct which is continuously reviewed 
and sets the tone for an ethical culture within the Group. 
 
The Directors are fully committed to these principles, which ensures that the business is managed according to the highest ethical 
standards, even beyond mere legal compliance, within its operating environment, as well as social, political and physical environment 
within which the Group operates.  
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The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct is included as part of induction for new employees as well as other regular training 
programmes and is available on the Company’s website at www.accentuateltd.co.za. Ethics are part of our recruitment process, 
evaluation of performance and rewards of employees as well as the sourcing of suppliers.  
 
No material ethical leadership and corporate citizenship deficiencies were noted. The Board, through the Audit and Risk Committee 
as well as the Social and Ethics Committee, monitors compliance with Accéntuate Limited’s Code of Ethics and Business Conduct 
through various reporting channels including its internal audit department and the whistle-blower hotline. Quarterly feedback is given 
to the relevant Committees and the Board while sanctions and remedies are in place when ethical standards are breached.  

 
Independence and conflicts 
During the year ended 30 June 2020, none of the Directors had a significant interest in any contract or arrangement entered into by 
the Company or its subsidiaries, other than as disclosed on page 29 of this Integrated Annual Report. 
 
Directors are required to inform the Board timeously of conflicts or potential conflicts of interest that they may have in relation to 
particular items of business. Directors are obliged to excuse themselves from discussions or decisions on matters in which they have 
a conflict of interest, in accordance with the declaration and Conflict of Interest Policy that is in place. A standard agenda item is 
included for members to declare whether any of them have any conflict of interest in respect of a matter on the agenda. This is 
minuted accordingly. 
 
When categorising the Non-Executive Directors as independent, the interests, position, association or relationship is taken into 
consideration. Independent Non-Executive Directors serving for longer than nine years are subjected to a rigorous review of their 
independence and performance by the Board. The Board makes full disclosure regarding individuals serving for more than nine years 
to enable Shareholders to make their own assessment of Directors. 
 
This, together with the test of being judged from the perspective of a reasonable and informed third party and other indicators in a 
substance-over-form basis, all Non-Executive Directors were found to be independent. The categorisation of Directors can be found 
on page 9 of this Integrated Annual Report. 
 

Insider trading  
No employee of the Group may deal directly or indirectly in the Company’s shares, based on unpublished price-sensitive information 
regarding business. No Director or officer of the Group may disclose trade information regarding business. Directors or officers of the 
Group are precluded from trading in the shares of the Group during a closed period or prohibited period, as determined by the Board.  
 
A Price Sensitive Information Group Policy is in place in line with the JSE Listings Requirements. 
 
Any Director wishing to trade in ordinary shares of the Company, must obtain clearance from the Chairman of the Board or, in his 
absence, the Chief Executive Officer. The Directors keep the Company Secretary advised of all their dealings in securities and details 
of dealings are placed on SENS in line with the JSE Listings Requirements.   
 

Assessment of the Board 
The Board of Directors analyses and evaluates its effectiveness in line with King IVTM. The Board elected to only conduct evaluations 
every second year. The next evaluation will be conducted in the current financial year.  
 

Commitment to the governance principles set out in King IVTM 

The Board remains committed to the principles of King IVTM and ensures that its recommendations are materially entrenched into the 
Board’s internal controls, policies, terms of reference and overall procedures and processes. A King IVTM application register, setting 
out how the Company has applied the principles of King IVTM, is available on our website, www.accentuateltd.co.za.  
 

Integrated effective control 
As the custodian of governance, the Board is ultimately responsible for ensuring there is effective control within the business. The 
Board ensures effective control through a number of mechanisms, including: 
 
Compliance with applicable laws, regulations and governance practices 
The decisions and actions taken by the Board ensures that the Company subscribes to full compliance with applicable laws, 
regulations and governance practices. This function is delegated to the Social and Ethics Committee with financial compliance 
overseen by the Audit and Risk Committee. During the financial year, the Company was fully compliant with the requirements of the 
Companies Act, Memorandum of Incorporation and JSE Listings Requirements, save for the late submission of the B-BBEE 
Certificate to the BEE Commissioner for the 2019 financial year and the late submission of the results for the year ended 30 June 
2020.  
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The Board Charter 
The roles and responsibilities of the Board and individual Directors are set out in the Board Charter, which is aligned with the 
provisions of relevant statutory and regulatory requirements which is reviewed on an annual basis. The Charter regulates the 
parameters within which the Board operate and ensures the application of the principles of good governance in all its dealings. 
 
Governance structures and delegation 
The Company’s governance structure provides for the delegation of authority, whilst enabling the Board to retain effective control. 
Such structures similarly support, and enables the informed oversight exercised by the Board. The Board delegates authority to 
established Board Committees, as well as the Chief Executive Officer, with clearly defined mandates.  
 

Board Committees 
The roles, responsibilities and composition of the Board Committees are described below. The responsibilities delegated to these 
committees are formally documented in each committee’s Terms of Reference, which are approved by the Board and reviewed on 
an annual basis. After each committee meeting, committee Chairmen report back to the Board, which facilitates transparent 
communication between Directors and ensures that all aspects of the Board’s mandate are addressed. 
 
The Terms of Reference are subject to change as and when required by the Board in order to accommodate the Company’s changing 
needs. Roles and associated responsibilities and the composition of membership across committees are considered holistically. All 
committees, except for the Remuneration and Nomination Committee have a minimum of three members and, as a whole, have the 
necessary knowledge, skills, experience and capacity to execute their duties effectively. The Chairman of each Board Committee 
reports at each scheduled meeting of the Board, and minutes of Board Committee meetings are provided to the Board.  
 
Both the Directors and the members of the Board Committees are supplied with full and timely information that enables them to 
properly discharge their responsibilities. All Directors have unrestricted access to all Group information. 
 
The Chairman of each Board Committee is required to attend Annual General Meetings to answer questions raised by Shareholders. 
 

 

Accéntuate Board 

Audit and Risk Committee Remuneration and Nomination Committee Social and Ethics Committee 

 
 

  

Independent 
External Audit 

Independent 
Internal Audit 

Chief Executive Officer 
Executive Committee 

 

Audit and Risk Committee 
In reviewing the Committee composition during the year, it was decided that, due to the size of the Company, the Audit Committee 
and Risk Committee would remain one committee. However, the agenda is divided into two separate Sections so as to ensure that 
both Audit and Risk Management responsibilities are attended to.  
 
The Committee, appointed by the Board and approved by Shareholders at the Company Annual General Meeting on 11 December 
2019, comprised three independent Non-Executive Directors, all of whom satisfied the requirements of Section 94(4) of the 
Companies Act. The Committee comprises Andile Mjamekwana (Chairman), Ralph Patmore and Eric Ratshikhopha. 
 
As a collective and having regard to the size and circumstances of the Group, the Committee was adequately skilled, and all members 
possessed the appropriate financial and related qualification, skills, financial expertise and experience required to discharge their 
responsibilities. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, partner of the External Auditors and the Internal Auditor attend meetings by 
invitation. The Board is satisfied that the independence, experience and qualifications of each member enable them to fulfil the 
Committee’s mandate. In addition to the quarterly meetings, the Committee meets at least once a year with the Company’s internal 
and External Auditors, without management being present.   
 
Summarised roles and responsibilities 
• Providing the Board with additional assurance regarding the efficiency and reliability of the financial information used by the 

Directors to assist them in the discharge of their duties; 
• Reviewing interim and Annual Financial Statements, the Integrated Annual Report and any other external reports issued by the 

organisation; 
• Overseeing the internal audit function; 
• Overseeing that significant business, financial and other risks have been identified and are being managed suitably; 
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• Overseeing independence of external audit and overseeing the external audit process; 
• Overseeing good standards of governance, reporting and compliance are in operation; and 
• Overseeing the Group’s risk management profile. 
 
The Committee is satisfied that it has fulfilled its responsibilities in accordance with its Terms of Reference for the reporting period.  
 
Refer to pages 16 to 18 of the Integrated Annual Report for the Audit and Risk Committee report. 
 

Social and Ethics Committee 
The composition of the Social and Ethics Committee remain unchanged during the reporting period and complied with the 
requirements of the Companies Act. The committee comprises Eric Ratshikhopha (Chairman), Eric Platt and Donald Platt. After the 
disposal of Safic Proprietary Limited, Eric Platt stepped down as a member and a new member will be appointed in due course.  
 
Summarised roles and responsibilities 
• Planning, implementing and monitoring the Group’s strategy for transformation; 
• Monitoring compliance with legislation; 
• Monitoring employment equity and fair labour practices; 
• Monitoring good corporate citizenship and the Group’s contribution to the development of communities in which it operates; and 
• Monitoring ethics and business conduct. 
 
The Committee is satisfied that it has fulfilled its responsibilities in accordance with its Terms of Reference for the reporting period.  
 
Refer to pages 19 to 22 of the Integrated Annual Report for the Social and Ethics Committee report. 

 

Remuneration and Nomination Committee 
In reviewing the committee composition during the year, it was decided that, due to the size of the Company, the Remuneration  
 
Committee and Nomination Committee would remain one committee. 
 
The Committee comprises Pieter Kriel, Ralph Patmore and Eric Ratshikhopha, all independent members. 
 
Summarised roles and responsibilities 
• Identifying and nominating new Directors for approval by the Board; 
• Ensuring that appointments to the Board are formal and transparent; 
• Approving the classification of Directors as independent; 
• Overseeing induction and training of Directors and conducting annual performance reviews of the Board and Board 

Committees; 
• Overseeing an appropriate separation between Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Directors; 
• Overseeing proper and effective functioning of the Group’s Board Committees; and 
• Reviewing the Board’s structure, the size and composition of the various Board Committees and making recommendations. 
 
The Committee is satisfied that it has fulfilled its responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference for the reporting period.  
 
Refer to pages 23 to 27 for the Remuneration report by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee. 
 
The following are a record of the attendance of current members of the Board Committee meetings: 
 

  Committee 

Name Designation ARC RNC SEC 

Donald Platt Chief Executive Officer   2/2 

Ralph Patmore Independent Non-Executive Director 4/4 2/2  

Eric Ratshikhopha Independent Non-Executive Director 4/4 2/2 2/2* 

Pieter Kriel Independent Non-Executive Director  2/2*  

Andile Mjamekwana Independent Non-Executive Director 4/4*   

* Chairman 

 
ARC – Audit and Risk Committee 

RNC – Remuneration and Nomination Committee 

SEC – Social and Ethics Committee 
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020  
The Audit and Risk Committee takes pleasure in submitting this report, which has been approved by the Board and has been prepared 
in accordance with Section 94(7)f of the Companies Act of South Africa, No 71 of 2008, as amended (“the Companies Act”) and 
incorporating the recommendations of the Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa, 2016 (“King IV”). 
 
In summary, this Committee assists the Board in its responsibilities covering the:  
• internal and external audit process for the Group taking into account the significant risks; 
• adequacy and functioning of the Group’s internal controls; 
• integrity of the financial reporting; and 
• risk management and information technology.  
 
The Committee has performed all the duties required in Section 94(7) of the Companies Act.  
 
Due to the size of the Company, the Board made a decision to combine the Audit Committee and Risk Committee and attend to both 
audit and risk responsibilities in one committee. However, the agenda is divided into two separate Sections so as to ensure that both 
audit and risk management responsibilities are attended to. 

 
Members of the Audit and Risk Committee and attendance at meetings  
The Audit and Risk Committee consists of three Non-Executive Directors listed below and all members act independently as described 
in the Act. 
 
The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, partner of the External Auditors and the Internal Auditor attend meetings by 
invitation. The Board is satisfied that the independence, experience and qualifications of each member enable them to fulfil the 
Committee’s mandate.  
 
In addition to scheduled meetings, the Committee meets at least once a year with the Company’s Internal and External Auditors, 
without management being present.   
 
The Committee, as a whole, has the necessary financial literacy, skills and experience to execute their duties effectively. 
 
Four meetings were held during the reporting period. The committee composition and meeting attendance are below: 
 

Name 
Qualification 

Experience Meetings 
attended 

Andile Mjamekwana (Chairman) 
B.Com (Hons) Acc, BCompt, CA(SA) 

Over 17 years’ experience in investment banking, corporate 
finance valuations and accounting matters 

4/4 

Ralph Patmore 
B.Com, MBL 

Over 30 years’ experience in management, strategy, mergers 
and acquisitions and accounting matters 

4/4 

Eric Ratshikhopha 
BA(Hons) Sociology, Advanced Programme in 
Labour Relations, Senior Executive Programme, 
Harvard School of Business, Masters of 
Management, University of Witwatersrand  

Over 30 years’ experience in management, transformation, 
stakeholder relations and community development 

4/4 

 
Role of the Audit and Risk Committee 
The Audit and Risk Committee has reviewed the Terms of Reference, approved by the Board, setting out its duties and responsibilities 
as prescribed in the Act and incorporating additional duties delegated to it by the Board. 
 
The Committee:  
• fulfils the duties that are assigned to it by the Act and as governed by other legislative requirements; 
• assists the Board in overseeing the quality and integrity of the Group’s integrated reporting process, including the Financial 

Statements and sustainability reporting, and announcements in respect of the financial results; 
• oversee that an effective control environment in the Group is maintained; 
• provides the Chief Financial Officer, External Auditors and the Head of Internal Audit with unrestricted access to the Committee 

and its Chairman as is required in relation to any matter falling within the ambit of the Committee; 
• meets with the External Auditors, senior managers and Executive Directors as the Committee may elect; 
• meets confidentially with the Internal and External Auditors without other Executive Board members and the Company’s Chief 

Financial Officer being present; 
• reviews and recommends to the Board the Interim Financial Results and Annual Financial Statements; 
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• oversees the activities of, and ensures coordination between, the activities of the Internal and External Auditors;
• fulfils the duties that are assigned to it by the Act and as governed by other legislative requirements, including the statutory audit

committee functions required for subsidiary companies;
• receives and deals with any complaints concerning accounting practices, internal audit or the content and audit of its Financial

Statements or related matters;
• conduct annual reviews of the Audit and Risk Committee’s work plan and Terms of Reference;
• assesses the performance and effectiveness of the Audit and Risk Committee and its members on a regular basis; and
• reviewed the proactive monitoring process in terms of the letter from the JSE dated 18 February 2020, including Annexure 3; and
• considered the impact of COVID-19 on the results.

Execution of functions during the year 
The Committee is satisfied that, for the 2020 financial year, it has performed all the functions required to be performed by an Audit 
and Risk Committee as set out in the Act and the Committee’s Terms of Reference.  

External audit 
The Audit and Risk Committee discharged its functions in terms of its Terms of Reference and ascribed to it in terms of the Act during 
the year under review as follows: 

The committee among other matters: 
• nominated Moore Johannesburg Inc. and Candice Whitefield as the External Auditor and designated auditor respectively to

Shareholders for appointment as auditor for the financial year ended 30 June 2020, and ensured that the appointment complied
with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements for the appointment of an Auditor;

• nominated the External Auditor and the independent auditor for each material subsidiary Company for re-appointment;
• requested from the audit firm, in terms of section 22.15(h) of the Listings Requirements, the formal letter of their latest inspection

performed by IRBA on Moore Johannesburg Inc. and Candice Whitefield, including any findings, if applicable, to the firm and/or
individual;

• reviewed the audit effectiveness and evaluated the External Auditor’s internal quality control procedures;
• obtained an annual confirmation from the auditor that their independence was not impaired;
• maintained a policy setting out the categories of non-audit services that the External Auditor may and may not provide, split

between permitted, permissible and prohibited services;
• approved non-audit services with Moore Johannesburg Inc. in accordance with its policy;
• approved the External Audit engagement letter, the plan and the budgeted audit fees payable to the External Auditor;
• obtained assurances from the External Auditor that adequate accounting records were being maintained by the Company and its

subsidiaries;
• considered whether any reportable irregularities were identified and reported by the external auditor in terms of the Auditing

Profession Act, No. 26 of 2005; and
• considered any reported control weaknesses, management’s response for their improvement and assessed their impact on the

general control environment.

Internal audit  
Due to cash constraints, the internal audit plan was halted, and current audits completed. The plan will be reviewed in due course. 

The Committee:  
• reviewed and approved the Internal Audit Charter and risk-based annual audit plan and evaluated the independence,

effectiveness and performance of the internal audit department and compliance with its Charter;
• the internal audit function is outsourced to Prozilog, represented by Everhard Carstens, and he is not a member of the executive

team;
• considered the reports of the Internal Auditor on the Group’s system of internal control including financial controls, business risk

management and maintenance of effective internal control systems;
• received assurance that proper and adequate accounting records were maintained and that the systems safeguarded the assets

against unauthorised use or disposal thereof;
• reviewed significant issues raised by the internal audit processes and the adequacy of corrective action in response to significant

internal audit findings.

The Head of Internal Audit reports functionally to the Chairman of the Committee and administratively to the Chief Financial Officer.  

Adequacy and functioning of the Group’s internal controls 
The Committee reviewed the plans and work outputs of the External- and Internal Auditors and concluded that these were adequate 
to address all significant financial risks facing the business.  As noted above, it also reviewed the reporting around the adequacy of 
the internal controls. Having had access to subsidiary companies’ financial information to be included in the consolidated Group 
IFRS Annual Financial Statements, the Group was in a position to effectively prepare the Consolidated and Separate Annual 
Financial Statements.  Based on this, it was concluded that there had been no material breakdowns in internal control, including 
financial controls, business risk management and maintenance of effective material control system. 
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Financial reporting  
The Audit and Risk Committee ensures that the financial reporting to stakeholders fairly presents the state of affairs of the Group. 
This covers the Annual Financial Statements, Integrated Annual Report, interim and preliminary reporting.  
 
The Committee among other matters:  
• confirmed the going concern as the basis of preparation of the Interim and Annual Financial Statements; 
• reviewed compliance with the financial conditions of loan covenants and determined that the capital of the Company was 

adequate; 
• examined and reviewed the Interim and Annual Financial Statements, as well as all financial information disclosed prior to the 

submission to the Board for their approval and then for disclosure to stakeholders ensured that the Annual Financial Statements 
fairly present the financial position of the Company and of the Group as at the end of the financial year and the results of operations 
and cash flows for the financial year and considered the basis on which the Company and the Group was determined to be a 
going concern; 

• considered the appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted and changes thereto; 
• reviewed the External Auditor’s audit report and key audit matters included; 
• reviewed the representation letter relating to the Annual Financial Statements which was signed by management; 
• considered any problems identified and reviewed any significant legal and tax matters that could have a material impact on the 

Financial Statements; and 
• considered accounting treatments, significant unusual transactions and accounting judgments. 
 

Risk management and information technology (IT) governance  
The Committee: 
• oversaw the value delivery on IT and monitor the return on investments on significant IT projects; 
• oversaw that intellectual property contained in information systems are protected; 
• oversaw that adequate business arrangements are in place for disaster recovery and back-ups; 
• oversaw that all personal information is treated by the Company as an important business asset and is identified; and 
• reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval any policies proposed by management and relevant to the areas of 

responsibility of the Committee. 
 

Legal and regulatory requirements  
To the extent that these may have an impact on the Annual Financial Statements, the Committee: 
• reviewed legal matters that could have a material impact on the Group; 
• reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s procedures, including its risk management framework, to ensure 

compliance with legal and regulatory responsibilities;  
• monitored complaints received via the Group’s whistleblowing service; and 
• considered reports provided by management, Internal Audit and the External Auditors regarding compliance with legal and 

regulatory requirements.  
 

Significant areas of judgement  
In arriving at the figures disclosed in the Financial Statements there are many areas where judgement is needed.  The Audit and Risk 
Committee wished to aw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2020, the Company had an accumulated loss of R95.3 million (Group: 
R115.6 million loss). However, the Company's total assets exceeded its liabilities by R54.9 million (Group: R66.6 million) and as such 
remain solvent with a positive net asset value. 

 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes 
that the Company will be able to generate positive cashflows to finance future operations and that it will be able to settle its liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments in the ordinary course of business. 
 
The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is still dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is 
that the Directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations of the Company and that the subordination agreement 
referred to in note 35 of these Annual Financial Statements will remain in force for so long as it takes to restore a healthy liquidity and 
solvency of the Company. 

 
Election of Committee at the Annual General Meeting 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 94(2) of the Companies Act, which required that a public Company must elect an Audit 
Committee at each Annual General Meeting, it is proposed in the notice of Annual General Meeting to be held in January 2021 that 
Andile Mjamekwana, Ralph Patmore and Eric Ratshikhopha be re-appointed as members of the Audit and Risk Committee until the 
next Annual General Meeting to be held in 2021.  
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Expertise and experience of Chief Financial Officer and the financial function  
As required by 3.84(g) of the JSE Limited Listings Requirements, the Committee has satisfied itself that the Chief Financial Officer, 
Wisdom Mushohwe, has the appropriate expertise and experience. In addition, the Committee recommended that the finance function 
should be strengthened with more resources. 
 

Evaluation of the Committee 
The Board decided to only conduct an evaluation every second year. The next evaluation will be conducted in the 2021 financial year.  

 
Integrated report 
Following the review by the Committee of the consolidated and separate Annual Financial Statements of Accéntuate Limited for the 
year ended 30 June 2020, the Committee is of the view that in all material aspects they comply with the relevant provisions of the Act 
and International Financial Reporting Standards and fairly present the consolidated and separate financial positions at that date and 
the results of operations and cash flows for the year then ended. The Committee has also satisfied itself of the integrity of the 
Integrated Report and the sustainability information reported therein.   
 

Recommendation of the Integrated Annual Report for approval by the Board 
Having achieved its objectives, the Committee has recommended the Integrated Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 for approval 
to the Board. The Board has subsequently approved the reports, which will be open for discussion at the forthcoming Annual General 
Meeting.   
 
 

 
Andile Mjamekwana 
Audit and Risk Committee Chairman  
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Performance for 2020 
This report is prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, No 71 of 2008 as amended (“the 
Companies Act”) and describes how the Committee discharged its responsibilities in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 
2020 and will be presented to the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held in February 2021. 
 

Social and Ethics Committee members 
During the reporting period, the Committee composition remained unchanged. The Committee consists of Eric Ratshikhopha 
(independent Chairman), Eric Platt and Donald Platt. Subsequent to the disposal of Safic Proprietary Limited, Eric Platt resigned as 
member of the Committee. A new appointment will be made in due course.  
 
Two meetings were held during the reporting period. The committee composition and meeting attendance are below: 
 

Name 
Qualification 

Experience Meetings 
attended 

Eric Ratshikhopha  
BA(Hons) Sociology, Advanced Programme in Labour 
Relations, Senior Executive Programme, Harvard 
School of Business, Masters of Management, University 
of Witwatersrand 

Over 30 years’ experience in management, 
transformation, stakeholder relations and community 
development 

2/2 

Donald Platt 
Degrees in Business Administration and 
PhD in Management 

Over 30 years’ experience in management and business 2/2 

Eric Platt 
Matric 

Over 30 years’ business experience 2/2 

 
Responsibilities of the Committee 
The Social and Ethics Committee Terms of Reference were updated with the requirements of King IVTM. In accordance with the 
Terms of Reference and annual work plan, the Committee fulfils the functions and responsibilities assigned to it in terms of the 
Company’s compliance with the applicable requirements of Regulation 43 of the Companies Act, the Company’s activities in relation 
to relevant legislation and prevailing codes of best practice and such other functions as may be assigned to it by the Board from time 
to time in order to assist the Board in ensuring that the Group remains a responsible corporate citizen. 
 
The key objectives and responsibilities of the Committee, which are aligned with the Committee’s statutory functions as set out in the 
Companies Act, form the basis of its annual work plan, and include the following: 
• social and economic development; 
• the Group’s standing relative to the United National Global Compact Principles, the Organisation of Economic Co-operation and 

Development (OECD); 
• recommendations regarding the combating of corruption and human rights; 
• compliance with the Employment Equity Amendment Act, 47 of 2013 and the Broad-Based Black Economic Empowerment Act, 

53 of 2003 and associated codes of good practice; 
• good corporate citizenship, including the Group’s contribution to the development of communities in which it operates or markets 

its goods to and the Group’s record of sponsorships, donations and charitable giving; 
• good corporate citizenship, including the Group’s positioning and efforts in promoting equality, preventing unfair discrimination 

and combating corruption; 
• promotion of equality and transformation and preventing unfair discrimination, through its Code of Conduct and Business Ethics 

and other social responsibility policies and strategies; 
• the environment, health and public safety, including the impacts of the Group’s activities and products on the environment and 

society; 
• consumer relationships, including the Group’s advertising, public relations and compliance with consumer protection laws; 
• labour and employment, including the Group’s standing relative to the International Labour Organisation (ILO) Protocol on Decent 

Work and working conditions, and the Group’s employment relationships and contribution to the educational development of its 
employees; 

• generally, the monitoring of the social, ethics, economic, governance, employment and environmental activities of the Group 
against internationally recognised human rights principles and other relevant best practice standards. 
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Ethics and business conduct 
The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, which embodies our guiding principles and values, was reviewed during the year and 
included the recommendations by King IVTM and confirmed to be relevant and effective. This policy deals with, inter alia, no tolerance 
for discrimination in whatever form, human rights, health and safety and the implementation of the Group’s ethical standards to 
stakeholders. The Code of Ethics and Business Conduct is available on the Company’s website at www.accentuateltd.co.za. 
 

Labour 
Employment equity policies embody our commitment to implementing employment equity across the Group. It was decided that the 
Chief Executive Officer would take ownership of employment equity. A Transformation Consultant was appointed to assist the Group 
in this. Key Performance Indicators would be implemented to strengthen employment equity. 
 
Skills development remains an area of focus and the various skills development programmes that have been implemented are 
reported on but hampered by COVID-19.  
 
Refer to the Sustainability Report on the website for more information.  
 

Socio-economic development 
The Group’s commitment is to foster good relations with the communities in which we operate, and in doing so continues to pursue 
its business philosophy which is to all staff it needs from the local communities in which it operates and in so doing provides much-
needed employment and other socio-economic benefits to local communities.  

 
Transformation 
Accéntuate remains focused on achieving its transformation goals and objectives. During the reporting period, Accéntuate Limited 
achieved a Level 7 B-BBEE rating. 
 

Sustainability 
The sustainability framework and the associated pillars which apply to all our operating divisions and within which the Group’s 
sustainability journey will be managed, is currently under review by the new Chief Executive Officer, Donald Platt in order to embed 
sustainability into the Group, and to ensure further integration into the Group’s corporate strategies together with the establishment 
of operational performance indicators. 
 

Environment 
The Group aims to reduce the negative impacts of the Group’s trading entities. 
 

Health and safety 
Safety standards are continuously reviewed and monitored. The Group had no fatalities and there were only minor recordable injuries 
during the year. 

 
Stakeholder management 
The stakeholder engagement framework outlines the Group’s guiding principles for stakeholder engagement which are congruent 
with the values espoused in the Group’s formal Code of Ethics and Business Conduct. Formalisation of the Group’s stakeholder 
engagement plan would be presented in the form of a Policy and remain an agenda item. 
 
The Company strives to provide an attractive return to Shareholders and valid, accurate and relevant information which complies with 
all related legislation through the Shareholders’ selected channel of communication. 
 

Stakeholder Group Key issues Our response thereto 

Shareholders and 
investor community 
 
 

Business sustainability; share liquidity; debt-to-
equity ratio; ROI. 
 
 

Operate with the optimal capital structure; 
review of debt facility; face-to-face meetings; 
strategy execution; and risk management. 

Customers 
 

Legislative and regulatory landscape, Consumer 
Protection Act compliance.  

Product and service innovation, services 
integration; customer service; employee 
benefits; labour law education, business 
consulting, training, risk management; 
compliance; delayed negative decision-making 
by clients; credit terms. 
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Employees  Working conditions; benefits, employee welfare, 

training, mentoring, succession planning / 
employee welfare; training, remuneration, 
reward and recognition, benefits, discipline, 
working conditions, health and safety, water 
saving. 

Ongoing legal and regulatory training for sales 
and operational staff; line of sight for 
promotions, improved remuneration, clear KPI’s, 
added benefits, improvement in health and 
safety, improved efficiency, training, upskilling, 
staff retention, lower absenteeism, awareness 
and education on the subject of water saving. 

Local communities Youth employment; training and skills 
development; mentoring; community leader 
engagement; labour desks, local recruitment, 
employee welfare, local vendors, Corporate 
Social Investment (CSI) in the form of support to 
the community and local schools. 

Focus on youth employment; recruitment strives 
to source staff from local communities; trust in 
brand, trust in recruitment process; utilisation of 
local service providers, effective reporting, 
brand support, community support through CSI 
initiatives. 

Government and 
regulators 

Compliance with industry regulation; skills 
development; B-BBEE; employment equity; JSE 
Listings requirements. 

Legislative and regulatory compliance; 
transformation and B-BBEE; risk management, 
trusted brand. 

Suppliers Preferential supplier listing; products and 
pricing, empowerment rating; enterprise 
development.  

Underwriting tender process established. 
product availability; preferential supplier 
agreements, empowered supplier status; 
transformation strategy; enterprise development 
negotiations.  

Media Results announcements, media statements, 
editorials, advertisements, meetings. 

Investor relations, public relations, 
communications and marketing strategy. 
Response to socio-economic issues. 
 

 
Evaluation of Committee performance 
The Board agreed to conduct evaluations every second year. The next evaluation will be done in the 2021 financial year. 
 
 

 
Eric Ratshikhopha 
Social and Ethics Committee Chairman 
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This report comprises three Sections  
• Part I: Matters considered by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee; 
• Part II: Remuneration policies and principles for Shareholders’ vote at the Annual General Meeting; and 
• Part III: Implementation report of the Remuneration Policy. 

 
Part I: Remuneration and Nomination Committee Report 
 
In reviewing the Committee’s composition during the year, it was decided that, due to the size of the Company, the Remuneration 
Committee and Nomination Committee could remain one Committee. 
 

Appointment of Directors to the Board 
Apart from a candidate’s experience, availability and likely fit, the Committee also considers candidate’s integrity, as well as other 
Directorships and commitments to ensure that the candidate will have sufficient time to discharge his/her role properly. The 
Appointment of Directors to the Board Policy was reviewed and approved during the reporting period. The Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee also considers race and gender diversity in its assessment in line with its Gender and Race Diversity Policy 
and voluntary targets were adopted during the reporting period.   
 
The Board exceeded its 15% target of black individuals on the Board with the appointment of Wisdom Mushohwe. The Board now 
consists of 50% black individuals. The target for black individuals is now set at 67% and remain unchanged for female representatives 
at 15%.  

 
Remuneration and Nomination Committee members 
The Committee comprise of three Non-Executive Directors, all of whom are independent. The Chairman of the Board is not eligible 
for appointment as Chairman of the Committee but will preside as Chairman when the Committee fulfils its oversight responsibilities 
on nomination matters and Board/Director interactions. 
 
Two meetings were held during the reporting period. The Committee composition and meeting attendance are below: 
 

Name 
Qualification 

Experience Meetings 
attended 

Pieter Kriel (Chairman) 
B.Acc (Hons), CA(SA), University of Stellenbosch Business 
School Senior Management Programme 

Over 30 years of experience in investment 
management 

2/2 

Ralph Patmore 
BCom, MBL, Stanford Executive Programme 
 

Over 30 years’ experience in management, 
strategy, mergers and acquisitions and accounting 
matters 

2/2 

Eric Ratshikhopha 
BA(Hons) Sociology, Advanced Programme in Labour 
Relations, Senior Executive Programme, Harvard School of 
Business, Masters of Management, University of 
Witwatersrand 

Over 30 years’ experience in management, 
transformation, stakeholder relations and 
community development 

2/2 

 
Role of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee 
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has reviewed its Terms of Reference, approved by the Board, setting out its duties 
and responsibilities.  
 
The Committee:  
• Assumes responsibility for the governance of remuneration by setting the direction for how remuneration should be approached 

and addressed on a Company-wide basis; 
• Approves a Remuneration Policy that articulates and gives effect to its direction on fair, responsible and transparent remuneration; 
• Ensures the Remuneration Policy and implementation report is put to a non-binding advisory vote at the Annual General Meeting 

of Shareholders once every year; 
• Considers the results of the performance evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, both as Directors 

and as Executives, in determining remuneration; 
• Recommends to the Board the remuneration of Non-Executive Directors for approval by Shareholders; 
• Determines the Policy and scope of pension arrangements, service agreements, termination payments and compensation 

commitments and make recommendations to the Board on these benefits for Executive Directors; 
• Reviews market trends and reputable survey results in determining such packages and arrangements; 
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• Regularly reviews the incentive scheme to ensure continued contribution to Shareholder value and that these are administered 

in terms of the rules; 
• Oversees compliance to all statutory and best practice requirements regarding labour and industrial relations management; 
• Assumes responsibility for its composition by setting the direction and approving the process for it to attain the appropriate balance 

of knowledge, skills, experience, diversity and independence to objectively and effectively discharge its governance role and 
responsibilities; 

• Regularly reviews the Board structure, size, composition and mix of skills and experience and make recommendations to the 
Board with regards to any adjustments that are deemed necessary; 

• Sets targets for race and gender representation in its membership; 
• Establishes arrangements for periodic, staggered rotation of its members so as to invigorate its capabilities by introducing 

members with new expertise and perspectives while retaining valuable knowledge, skills and experience and maintaining 
continuity; and 

• Oversees that succession plans are developed and implemented.  
 

Committee evaluation 
The Board decided to only conduct evaluations every second year. The next evaluation will therefore be conducted during the 2021 
financial year.  
 
 

 
Pieter Kriel 
Remuneration and Nomination Committee Chairman 
 

Part II: Remuneration Policy  
 
Background statement  
The Group’s Remuneration Policy aims to attract, retain and motivate skilled and performing employees to execute the Group’s 
strategy. The remuneration philosophy and framework are predominantly guided by the business strategy.  
 
During the reporting period, the Remuneration Policy and framework was again adopted and found to be in line with King IVTM in a 
conscious effort to give effect to the principles of fair, responsible and transparent remuneration. Where appropriate, information for 
employees below executive level is included. 

 
The Group offers an integrated remuneration and reward model, which comprises: 
 

 Cost-To-Company Variable pay 

Element Base pay Benefits STI LTI 

Accéntuate 
Group 

- Monthly 
salary 

- Hourly wage 

- Provident fund 
- Funeral benefit  
- Death/disability benefit 

- Annual incentive 
- Bonus scheme 
 
 

- Share appreciation rights 
- Performance shares 

Objective - Retention 
- Attraction 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Retention in terms of 
the comprehensiveness 
of benefits offered 

- Attraction to offer 
similar benefits to 
prospective employees 

- Reward Company and 
Group performance 

- Reward individual 
performance 

- Retention/attraction 
recognition 

- Reward Company and 
Group performance 

- Reward individual 
performance 

- Retention/attraction 
recognition 

 

 
 
 
 

 



 

 

Integrated Annual Report 2020                                                                                                                                                           
  25  

Remuneration Report to Shareholders (continues) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Part II: Remuneration Policy (continues) 
Short-term incentive 
The Group awards management and most salaried employees on an annual performance incentive. The actual value awarded is 
subject to the achievement of pre-determined thresholds relating to the performance and position of the Group and individual 
performance during the reporting period.  
 
The Executive Directors are appraised against a clear set of objectives and key performance indicators to ensure they are 
remunerated fairly and responsibly. Executive Directors and senior managers are measured and remunerated according to their 
alignment, achievement and contribution to the Group’s strategy, financial performance and individual performance.  
 
In its evaluation of performance of individuals, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee considers external and internal factors 
that may have contributed to the thresholds not being met. The Committee may from time to time consider discretionary short-term 
bonuses for individuals.  

 
All payments in terms of the quantitative portion of the short-term incentive scheme are based on audited year-end results. The bonus 
paid out therefore always relate to the results of the previous year.  
 
The following performance criteria will be measured for the 2020/2021 financial year to determine bonus payments made to Executive 
Directors: 
• Hurdle 1: 12% return on equity (ROE) [Note: opening balance of the financial year less dividends to be paid and excluding 

acquisitions] 
• Hurdle 2: 80% of the previous year’s earnings before interest and tax (EBIT); and 
• Hurdle 3: Other elements 

- 50% of award based on ROE achieved target (hurdles 1 and 2 above) 
- 20% of award based on strategic goals and targets achieved (hurdle 2 above) 
- 20% of awards based on operational targets/goals (hurdle 2 above) 
- 10% of award is at the discretion of the Board. 

 
No short-term payments were made to Executive Directors during the reporting period.  
 

Long-term incentive 
The long-term incentive plan (LTIP) forms part of the variable compensation and is used to attract, retain and motivate employees 
who influence the long-term sustainability and strategic objectives of the Group. The purpose is to foster sustainable performance or 
value creation over the long term, which is aligned to the Group’s strategy and which enhances stakeholder value. Its main 
characteristic is the promise to deliver value over a future vesting period, once performance criteria are met or exceeded. 
 
The following criteria would be used to measure performance in this regard: 
• Performance would be measured on the movement in total Shareholders return (TSR) as a percentage compared to the 

percentage movement in the Industrial Share Index (ISI); 
• Shareholder return calculated using 90-day volume weighted average price (VWAP) leading to the start and the end of the 

measuring period; 
• If ISI is lower at the end of the three-year period than at the time of the award, and TSR movement is also negative, then no 

vesting can take place;  
• The maximum of options would be based on twice the Chief Executive Director’s guaranteed package. 
 
No long-term payments were made for any Executive Director during the reporting period.  

 

Increases 
At an individual employee level, the annual cost to Company (CTC) increases are determined by the individual’s pay relative to the 
band he/she is in, as well as the performance of the individual in the role.  
 
No increases were awarded during the reporting period.  
 

Policy on Directors’ remuneration 
The Directors are appointed to the Board to bring competencies and experience appropriate to achieving the Group’s objectives. 
 

Non-Executive Directors 
It is the Group’s policy to identify, attract and retain Non-Executive Directors who can add significant value to Accéntuate. The Board 
applies principles of good Corporate Governance relating to Directors’ remuneration and also keeps abreast of changing trends. 
Governance of Directors’ remuneration is undertaken by the Committee. 
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Part II: Remuneration Policy (continues) 
The Committee takes cognisance of market norms and practices as well as additional responsibilities placed on the Board members 
by new legislation and Corporate Governance principles.  
 
Non-Executive Directors receive a base fee for their main Board membership and an attendance fee per meeting. 
 
The policy on remuneration for Non-Executive Directors is that this should: 
• be market-related (having regard to the median fees paid and number of meetings attended by Non-Executive Directors of 

companies of similar size and structure to similar sectors); and 
• not be linked to the share price of Accéntuate.  
 
Non-Executive Directors do not receive bonuses or share options, as it is recognised that this can create potential conflict of interest 
which can impair the independence which Non-Executive Directors are expected to bring to bear in decision-making by the Board.  
 
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee decided that no fee increase be implemented for the reporting period and remain 
unchanged as follows: 

 

Category Recommended 
remuneration  

Annual Fees  

Chairman of the Board R 263 340 

Other Directors R 96 035 

Meeting attendance fees  

Main Board R 15 990 

Audit and Risk Committee R 15 990 

Remuneration and Nomination Committee R 8 150 

Social and Ethics Committee R 8 150 

 
Use of external remuneration advisors 
From time to time, advice from external remuneration advisors is obtained to ensure that the Remuneration Policy and our 
implementation thereof are informed by market-related data, current industry and general best practice remuneration trends. The 
Committee is satisfied that the services rendered by these external advisors were at all times independent and objective. Overall, the 
Committee is satisfied that the Remuneration Policy achieved its objectives for the past year. 
 

Results of previous voting on the Remuneration Policy and voting procedures going forward 
Accéntuate received a 99.95% non-binding advisory vote in favour of our remuneration policy at the Annual General Meeting held on 
11 December 2019. The Remuneration Policy (as set out in part II) and our Implementation Report (as set out in part III) will be put 
to Shareholders as two separate non-binding advisory votes at the Annual General Meeting in February 2021. 
 
In the event that either the Remuneration Policy or the Implementation Report, or both, are voted against by 25% or more of the votes 
exercised, the Board will extend an invitation to dissenting Shareholders to engage with the issuer and the manner and timing of such 
engagement. 
 

Part III: Remuneration Implementation Report 
 
The Remuneration Implementation Report details the outcomes following the implementation of the approved Remuneration Policy 
detailed on pages 24 to 25 above.  
 

Total Directors’ Remuneration 
The table below provides an overview of the total remuneration paid to executive and Non-Executive Directors for the financial year 
ending 30 June 2020: 

 2020 2019 

Executive Directors 9 389 11 475 

Non-Executive Directors 1 213 1 036 

Total 10 602 12 511 
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Part III: Remuneration Implementation Report (continues) 
Executive Directors’ Remuneration 
 

2020 
Guaranteed 

remuneration 

Retirement 
Fund 

Contributions 

Performance 
based 

remuneration 

Gains on 
exercise of 

SARS / share 
options 

Total 
emoluments 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Fred Platt1 3 159 478 - - 3 637 

Maarten Coetzee2 790 129 - - 919 

Donald Platt 2 578 496 - - 3 074 

Wisdom Mushohwe3 301   17 - - 318 

Eric Platt4 1 231 187 23 - 1 441 

Total 8 059 1 307 23 - 9 389 

1 resigned 31 August 2020 

2 contract ended 29 November 2019 

3 appointed 25 March 2020 

4 only prescribed officer until 31 December 2019 

 

2019 
Guaranteed 

remuneration 

Retirement 
Fund 

Contributions 

Performance 
based 

remuneration 

Gains on 
exercise of 

SARS / share 
options 

Total 
emoluments 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Fred Platt 3 469 215 - - 3 685 

Maarten Coetzee 1 982 135 - - 2 117 

Donald Platt 2 544 485 - - 3 028 

Eric Platt 2 435 179 32 - 2 646 

Total 10 430 1 013 32 - 11 475 

 

Non-Executive Directors’ Remuneration 
The participation of Non-Executive Directors in the Group is essential to the Group achieving its strategic objectives and Non-
Executive Director’s fees are therefore recommended by the Executive Directors and Remuneration and Nomination Committee with 
this in mind.  
 
In accordance with the Companies Act and the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, Non-Executive Directors’ fees are 
approved by the Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The current fee levels are to be approved by Shareholders at the 
Annual General Meeting to be held in December 2019 and is stated on page 33 to 34 of the notice of Annual General Meeting included 
in this Integrated Annual Report.  
 
The total amount spent on Non-Executive Directors’ fees for 2019 and 2020 are as follows: 

Non-Executive Director 2020 Non-Executive 
Directors Fees 

R’000 

2019 Non-Executive 
Director Fees 

R’000 

Ralph Patmore  445 

Eric Ratshikhopha   282 

Andile Mjamekwana  145 

Thebe Investment Corporation (Pieter Kriel)  164 

Total  1 036 

 
Directors’ service contracts 
There are no fixed term service contracts for Executive or Non-Executive Directors. The Remuneration and Nomination Committee 
reviewed the employment contracts of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer and found to be still appropriate to meet 
the needs of the Company. Notice period for these Executive Directors are six months. 
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Shareholder spread No. of 
Shareholders 

% No. of  
shares 

% 

1 – 1 000 shares 892 74.09 121,191 0.09 

1 001 – 10 000 shares 177 14.70 845,766 0.61 

10 001 – 100 000 shares 87 7.23 2,864,340 2.06 

100 001 – 1 000 001 shares 29 2.41 8,914,706 6.40 

1 000 0001 shares and over 19 1.58 126,620,185 90.85 

Total 1,204 100.00 139,366,188 100.00 

 

Distribution of Shareholders No. of 
Shareholders 

% No. of  
shares 

% 

Banks / Brokers 4 0.33 21,829,485 15.66 

Close Corporations 4 0.33 82,404 0.06 

Individuals 1,170 97.18 33,098,661 23.75 

Other corporations 6 0.50 249.957 0.18 

Private companies 7 0.58 74,799,447 53.67 

Share trust 1 0.08 3,096,971 2.22 

Treasury stock 1 0.08 1,081,919 0.78 

Trusts 11 0.91 5,127,344 3.68 

Total 1,204 100.00 139,366,188 100.00 

 

Public/Non-public Shareholders No. of 
Shareholder 

% No. of  
shares 

% 

Non-public Shareholders 14 1.16 76,754,874 55.07 

Directors 1 0.08 1,600,000 1.15 

Management 7 0.58 5,118,903 3.67 

Share trust 1 0.08 3,096,971 2.22 

Treasury stock 1 0.08 1,081,919 0.78 

Strategic holdings (more than 10%)* 4 0.33 65,857,081 47.25 

     

Public Shareholders 1,190 98.84 62,611,314 44.93 

 

Totals 1,204 100.00 139,366,188 100.00 

 

*One strategic holding amounting to more than 10% is held across three accounts 

 

Beneficial Shareholders holding 5% of more No. of 
Shareholder 

 No. of  
shares 

% 

TBI Strategic Partners (Pty) Ltd   40 310 792 28,92 

Thebe Investment Corporation   17 653 443 12,67 

Jacana Assets Ltd   13 541 684 9,72 

Pruta Securities   12 004 605 8,61 

Frederick Cornelius Platt   7 232 874 5,19 

Total   90 43 398 65,11 
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Director interests 
 
2020 Status of 

director 
Beneficial Beneficial % of issued 

Fred Platt  Executive 6 573 408 659 466 5,19 
Donald Platt Executive 1 600 000 - 1.15 
Pieter Kriel (Thebe Investment Corporation)* Non-executive - 17 653 443 12,67 
Andile Mjamekwana (Thebe Investment 
Corporation)* 

Non-executive - 17 653 443 12,67 

* resigned from Thebe Investment Corporation during reporting period 
 

2019 Status of 
director 

Beneficial  
Direct 

Beneficial 
Indirect 

% of issued 
share capital 

Fred Platt Executive 6 573 408 659 466 5.19 
Donald Platt Executive 1 600 000 - 1.15 
Thys du Preez (TBI Strategic Partners) Non-executive - 40 310 792 28.92 
Ockert Goosen (TBI Strategic Partners) Alternate  - 40 310 792 28.92 
Pieter Kriel (Thebe Investment Corporation) Non-executive - 17 653 443 12.67 
Andile Mjamekwana (Thebe Investment 
Corporation) 

Non-executive  17 653 433 12.67 

 
There have been no changes to director interests since the financial year-end to date of this Integrated Annual Report.  
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Notice to Shareholders 
 

Notice of Annual General Meeting 
Accéntuate Limited 
Registration number: 2004/029691/06  
JSE share code: ACE ISIN: ZAE000115986 
(“Accéntuate” or “the Company”) 
 
As a result of the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and restrictions placed on public gatherings, the Annual General 
Meeting will be held in electronic format only. 
 
Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of Accéntuate shareholders recorded in the register as at Friday, 29 January 
2021, which will only be accessible through electronic participation, as permitted by the JSE Listings Requirements, the provisions of 
the Companies Act will be held at 10:00 on Friday, 5 February 2021, for the purpose of considering, and if deemed fit, passing, with 
or without modification, the resolutions set out below in the manner required by the Companies Act. 

 

Purpose 
The purpose of the meeting is to present, consider and adopt the Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 
2020; to transact the business set out in this notice of Annual General Meeting (“AGM notice”) by considering and, if deemed fit, 
passing, with or without modification, the ordinary and special resolutions hereunder; and to transact such other business as may be 
transacted at the Annual General Meeting.  
 
Unless otherwise indicated, in order for the ordinary resolutions to be adopted, the support of at least 50% (fifty percent) plus one 
vote of the total number of votes, which the Shareholders present or represent by proxy at this meeting are entitled to cast, is required. 
In order for the special resolutions to be adopted, the support of at least 75% (seventy-five percent) of the total number of votes, 
which the Shareholders present or represented by proxy at this meeting are entitled to cast, is required. 
 
• Shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting may appoint one or more proxies to attend, speak and 

vote thereat in their stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. A form of proxy, in which are set out the relevant 
instructions for its completion, is enclosed for the use of a certificated Shareholder or own-name registered dematerialised 
Shareholder who wishes to be represented at the Annual General Meeting. Completion of a form of proxy will not preclude such 
Shareholder from attending and voting (in preference to that Shareholder’s proxy) at the Annual General Meeting. 

• The instrument appointing a proxy and the authority (if any) under which it is signed must reach the Company’s transfer secretaries 
at the address given below by not later than 10h00 on Wednesday, 3 February 2021. 
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• Dematerialised Shareholders, other than own-name registered dematerialised Shareholders, who wish to attend the Annual 

General Meeting in person will need to request their Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker to provide them 
with the necessary letter of representation in terms of the custody agreement entered into between such Shareholders and the 
CSDP or broker. 

• Dematerialised Shareholders, other than own-name registered dematerialised Shareholders, who are unable to attend the Annual 
General Meeting and who wish to be represented thereat, must provide their CSDP or broker with their voting instructions in 
terms of the custody agreement entered into between them and the CSDP or broker in the manner and time stipulated therein. 

• Shareholders present in person, by proxy or by authorised representative shall, on a show of hands, have one vote each and, 
on a poll, will have one vote in respect of each share held. 

 
In terms of the Companies Act 2008, (Act 71 of 2008), as amended (“the Companies Act”), any Shareholder or proxy who intends 
to attend or participate at the Annual General Meeting must be able to present reasonably satisfactory identification at the meeting 
for such Shareholder or proxy to attend and participate at the Annual General Meeting. A green bar-coded identification document or 
identity card issued by the South African Department of Home Affairs, a driver’s license or a valid passport will be accepted at the 
Annual General Meeting as sufficient identification. 
 
Record date, attendance and voting: 

 2020/2021 

 Record date in order to be eligible to receive the AGM notice Thursday, 24 December  

 AGM notice posted to Shareholders Wednesday, 30 December 

 Last date to trade in order to be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeting Tuesday, 26 January 

 Record date in order to be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeting Friday, 29 January  

 Submit forms of proxy for administration purposes for the Annual General Meeting (by 
10h00) 

Wednesday, 3 February 

 Annual General Meeting (at 10h00) Friday, 5 February 

 Results of the Annual General Meeting released on SENS  Friday, 5 February 

 

Agenda 
 
1. Presentation and consideration of the Annual Financial Statements of the Company, including the reports of the auditors and 

Directors and the Audit and Risk Committee for the year ended 30 June 2020 as set out in the Company’s Integrated Annual 
Report 2020 of which this AGM notice forms part of; and 

2. To consider and, if deemed fit, approve, with or without modification, the following ordinary and special resolutions: 
 

Ordinary resolutions 
 
Ordinary resolution number 1: Confirmation of the appointment of Wisdom Mushohwe as Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company  
 
“Resolved that Wisdom Mushohwe’s appointment as an Executive Director, be and is hereby approved.” 
 
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Wisdom Mushohwe may be viewed on page 9 of this Annual Integrated Report. 
 
Reason for ordinary resolution number 1  
The reason for ordinary resolution number 1 is that article 26(f) of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company and, to the 
extent applicable, the Companies Act, requires that Director appointments must be approved by Shareholders at the next AGM. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 2: Re-election of Ralph Patmore as Non-Executive Director of the Company  
“Resolved that Ralph Patmore, who retires by rotation in terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company and who, being 
eligible, offers himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected and a Non-Executive Director of the Company.” 

 
The remuneration and nomination committee has considered Ralph Patmore’s past performance and contribution to the Company 
and, in accordance with article 32 of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company, recommends that Ralph Patmore is re-
elected as a Non-Executive Director of the Company. 
 
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Ralph Patmore may be viewed on page 9 of this Annual Integrated Report. 
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Ordinary resolution number 3: Re-election of Eric Ratshipkhopha as Non-Executive Director of the Company  
“Resolved that Eric Ratshikhopha, who retires by rotation in terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company and who, 
being eligible, offers himself for re-election, be and is hereby re-elected and a Non-Executive Director of the Company.” 

 
The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has considered Ralph Patmore’s past performance and contribution to the Company 
and, in accordance with article 32 of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company, recommends that Ralph Patmore is re-
elected as a Non-Executive Director of the Company. 
 
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Eric Ratshikhopha may be viewed on page 9 of this Annual Integrated Report. 
 
Reason for ordinary resolution number 2 and 3  
The reason for ordinary resolution numbers 2 and 3 is that article 32 of the Memorandum of Incorporation requires that one-third of 
the Non-Executive Directors shall retire at the Annual General Meeting and, if eligible, may offer themselves for re-election as 
Directors.  
 
Ordinary resolution number 4: Confirmation of the appointment of the auditors  
“Resolved that the appointment of Moore Johannesburg Inc. as independent auditors of the Company for the ensuing year (the 
designated auditor being Candice Whitefield) on the recommendation of the Company’s Audit and Risk Committee be hereby ratified.” 
 
Reason for ordinary resolution number 4 
The reason for ordinary resolution number 4 is that the Company, being a public listed Company, must have its financial results 
audited and such auditor must be appointed or re-appointed each year at the Annual General Meeting of the Company as required 
by the Companies Act. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 5: Appointment of Andile Mjamekwana as a member and Chairman to the Audit and Risk 
Committee  
“Resolved that Andile Mjamekwana be elected a member and Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee, with effect from the 
conclusion of this Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 94(2) of the Companies Act.” 

 
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Andile Mjamekwana may be viewed on page 9 of the Integrated Annual Report of which 
this notice forms part. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 6: Appointment of Ralph Patmore as a member to the Audit and Risk Committee 
“Resolved that Ralph Patmore be elected a member of the Audit and Risk Committee, with effect from the conclusion of this Annual 
General Meeting in terms of Section 94(2) of the Companies Act.” 
 
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Ralph Patmore may be viewed on page 9 of the Integrated Annual Report of which this 
notice forms part. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 7: Appointment of Eric Ratshikhopha as a member to the Audit and Risk Committee  
“Resolved that Eric Ratshikhopha be elected a member of the Audit and Risk Committee, with effect from the conclusion of this 
Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 94(2) of the Companies Act.” 

 
An abbreviated curriculum vitae in respect of Eric Ratshikhopha may be viewed on page 9 of the Integrated Annual Report of which 
this notice forms part. 
 
Reason for ordinary resolutions number 5 to 7 
The reason for ordinary resolution numbers 5 to 7 (inclusive) is that the Company, being a public listed Company, must appoint an 
audit committee as prescribed by Sections 66(2) and 94(2) of the Companies Act, which also requires that the members of such audit 
committee be appointed, or re-appointed, as the case may be, at each Annual General Meeting of a Company. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 8: Endorsement of Remuneration Policy and Implementation Report 
Ordinary resolution 8.1  
“Resolved that, the Company’s remuneration policy, as set out in the remuneration report on pages 23 to 26 of the Integrated Annual 
Report of which this notice forms part, be and is hereby approved by way of a non-binding advisory vote of Shareholders of the 
Company in terms of the King IV Report on Corporate Governance”. 
 
 Ordinary resolution 8.2  
“Resolved that, the implementation report, as set out on pages 26 and 27 of the Integrated Annual Report of which this notice forms 
part, be and is hereby endorsed as a non-binding advisory vote of Shareholders of the Company in terms of the King IV Report on 
Corporate Governance”. 
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continues) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Reason for ordinary resolution numbers 8.1 and 8.2 
The reason for ordinary resolution number 8.1 and 8.2 is that King IV recommends that the remuneration policy of the Company be 
endorsed through separate non-binding advisory votes by Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of a Company. Failure to 
pass these resolutions will not have legal consequences relating to existing arrangements, however, the Board of Directors of the 
Company (“the Board”) will take the outcome of the vote into consideration when assessing the Company’s Remuneration Policy and 
Implementation Report. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 9: The general authority to issue unissued, but authorised shares for cash  
“Resolved that the Directors be authorised pursuant, inter alia, to the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, until this authority 
lapses at the next Annual General Meeting of the Company, unless it is then renewed at the next Annual General Meeting of the 
Company and provided that it shall not extend beyond 15 (fifteen) months, to allot and issue any ordinary shares for cash subject to 
the JSE Listings Requirements.   
 
Containing full details of the issue (including the number of shares issued, the average discount to the weighted average traded price 
of the shares over the 30 business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is determined or agreed to by the Directors and 
the effect of the issue on net asset value and earnings per share), or any other announcements that may be required in such regard 
in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements which may be applicable from time to time.” 

 
The reason for ordinary resolution number 9 
For listed entities wishing to issue shares, it is necessary for the Board not only to obtain the prior authority of the Shareholders as 
may be required in terms of their Memorandum of Incorporation is also necessary to obtain the prior authority of Shareholders in 
accordance with the Listings Requirements of the JSE. The reason for this resolution is accordingly to obtain a general authority from 
Shareholders to issue shares in compliance with the Listings Requirements of the JSE. The authority granted in terms of this resolution 
number 9 must accordingly be read together with the authority to place unissued shares under Directors’ control presented to 
Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting that was held on 11 December 2019 for approval.  
 
Requirements on the following basis: 
1. The allotment and issue of the shares must be made to persons qualifying as public Shareholders as defined in the JSE Listings 

Requirements. 
2. The shares which are the subject of the issue for cash must be of a class already in issue. 
3. The number of shares issued for cash shall not in the aggregate in any one financial year exceed 30% (thirty percent) of the 

Company’s issued share capital of ordinary shares. The number of ordinary shares which may be issued shall be based on the 
number of ordinary shares in issue at the date of such issue less any ordinary shares issued during the current financial year, 
provided that any ordinary shares to be issued pursuant to a rights issue (announced, irrevocable and fully underwritten) or 
acquisition (concluded up to the date of application including announcement of the final terms) may be included as though they 
were shares in issue at the date of application. 

4. The maximum discount at which ordinary shares may be issued is 10% (ten percent) of the weighted average traded price on the 
JSE of those shares measured over the 30 (thirty) business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is agreed by the 
Directors of the Company and the party subscribing to the shares. 

5. After the Company has issued shares for cash which represent, on a cumulative basis within a financial year, 30% (thirty percent) 
or more of the number of shares in issue prior to that issue, the Company shall publish an announcement. 

 
Note: This resolution requires the approval of not less than 75% of the votes cast by Shareholders present or represented by proxy 
and entitled to vote at this Annual General Meeting. 
 
Ordinary resolution number 10: Signature of documentation 
“Resolved that any Director or the Company secretary of the Company be and is hereby authorised to sign all documentation and do 
all such things as may be necessary for or incidental to the implementation of all special resolutions and all ordinary resolutions 
passed at the Annual General Meeting.” 
 
The reason for ordinary resolution number 10 
The reason for ordinary resolution number 10 is to ensure that the resolutions voted favourably upon is duly implemented through the 
delegation of powers provided for in terms of clause 5.3 of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation. 
 

Special resolutions 

 
Special resolution number 1: Approval of Non-Executive Directors’ fees 
“Resolved that the Non-Executive Directors’ fees for services as Directors for the period ended 30 June 2020, as set out below, be 
and are hereby approved and that such fees be payable for two years after the Annual General Meeting unless amended at a 
subsequent Annual General Meeting.” 
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_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Category Recommended 
remuneration 

Annual fees 

Chairman of the Board R 263 340 

Other Directors R 96 035 

Meeting attendance fees 

Main Board R 15 990 

Audit and Risk Committee R 15 990 

Remuneration and nomination committee R 8 150 

Social and Ethics Committee R 8 150 

Reasons for and effect of special resolution number 1 
The reason for the proposed special resolution, is to comply with Section 66(9) of the Companies Act, which requires the approval of 
firectors fees prior to the payment of such fees.  

The effect of special resolution number 1 is that the Company will be able to pay its Non-Executive Directors for the services they 
render to the Company as Directors without requiring further Shareholder approval until the next Annual General Meeting. 

Special resolution number 2: Financial assistance to related or inter-related entities of the Company  
“Resolved that the Board of Directors is authorised, in terms of and subject to the provision of Section 45 of the Companies Act, to 
cause the Company to provide any financial assistance to any Company or corporation that is related or inter-related to the Company 
(including, without limitation, its subsidiaries) and the provision of such financial assistance is hereby approved under this special 
resolution number 2.” 

Reasons for and effect of special resolution number 2 
Special resolution number 2 is required in terms of Section 45 of the Companies Act to grant the Directors of the Company the 
authority to cause the Company to provide financial assistance to any entity which is related or inter-related to the Company. This 
special resolution does not authorise the provision of financial assistance to a Director or prescribed officer of the Company. 

Special resolution number 3: Financial assistance for subscription of securities in the Company or to related or inter-related 
entities 
“Resolved that the Board of Directors is authorised, in terms of and subject to the provisions of Section 44 of the Companies Act, to 
cause the Company to provide any financial assistance to any persons (as considered by the Board as appropriate) for the purpose 
of, or in connection with, the subscription of any option, or any securities issued or to be issued by the Company, or a related or inter-
related Company, or for the purchase of  any securities of the Company or a related or inter-related Company, and that the provision 
of such financial assistance is hereby approved under this special resolution number 3.” 

Reasons for and effect of special resolution number 3 
Special resolution number 3 is required in terms of Section 44 of the Companies Act to grant the Directors of the Company the 
authority to cause the Company to provide financial assistance for the subscription or purchase of securities in the Company or any 
entity which is related or inter-related to the Company. This special resolution does not authorise the provision of financial assistance 
to a Director or prescribed officer of the Company. 

A form of proxy and notes for the use of the form of proxy are attached. 

By order of the Board 

Juba Statutory Services (Pty) Ltd 
(represented by Sirkien van Schalkwyk) 
Company secretary 
Johannesburg 

30 December 2020 
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Electronic Participation Application Form 
 

 
Instructions 
Shareholders or their proxies, have the right, as provided for in the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and the Companies 
Act, to participate in the AGM by way of electronic communication.  
 
Shareholders or their duly appointed proxy(ies) that wish to participate in the AGM via electronic communication must apply to the 
transfer secretaries, by delivering this duly completed Electronic Participation Form to: 
 Rosebank Towers, First Floor, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank 2196, or posting it to Private Bag X9000, Saxonwold, 2132 (at 

the Shareholders own risk), or by email to proxy@computershare.co.za so as to be received by Computershare by no later than 
10:00 on Wednesday, 3 February 2021, for administrative reasons, in order for the transfer secretaries to arrange such 
participation for the Shareholder and for the transfer secretaries to provide the Accentuate Shareholder with the details as to 
how to access the AGM by means of electronic participation. 

 Shareholders may still register/apply to participate in and/or vote electronically at the AGM after the aforementioned date, 
provided, however, that those Shareholders are verified (as required in terms of section 63(1) of the Companies Act) and are 
registered at the commencement of the General Meeting. 

 
Upon receiving a completed Electronic Participation Form, the Company’s transfer secretaries will follow a verification process to 
verify each applicant’s entitlement to participate in and/or vote at the AGM. The Company’s Transfer Secretaries will provide the 
Company with the email address of each verified shareholder or their duly appointed proxy (each, “a Participant”) to enable the 
Company to forward the Participant a Microsoft Teams meeting invitation required to access the AGM.  
 
Accéntuate will send each Participant a Microsoft Teams meeting invitation with a link to “Join the Microsoft Teams Meeting” on 5 
February 2021 to enable Participants to link up and participate electronically in the AGM. This link will be sent to the email address 
nominated by the Participant in the table below.  
 
Please note 
The electronic platform to be utilised for the AGM does not provide for electronic voting during the meeting.  Accordingly, shareholders 
are strongly encouraged to submit votes by proxy in advance of the AGM, by completing the form of proxy and lodging the completed 
proxy form together with this completed Electronic Participation Application Form with the Company’s transfer secretaries.  
 
Participants who indicate in this form that they wish to vote during the electronic meeting, will be contacted by the Company’s transfer 
secretaries to make the necessary arrangements.  
 
Participants will be liable for their own network charges in relation to electronic participation in and/or voting at the AGM. Any such 
charges will not be for the account of the Company’s Transfer Secretaries or Accéntuate who will also not be held accountable in the 
case of loss of network connectivity or other network failure due to insufficient airtime, internet connectivity, internet bandwidth and/or 
power outages which prevents any such Participant from participating in and /or voting at the AGM. 
 
By signing this Electronic Participation Form, the Participant indemnifies and holds the Company harmless against any loss, injury, 
damage, penalty or claim arising in any way from the use of the telecommunication lines to participate in the AGM or any interruption 
in the ability of the Participant to participate in the AGM via electronic communication, whether or not the problem is caused by any 
act or omission on the part of the Participant or anyone else, including without limitation the Company and its employees. 
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Information required for participation by electronic communication at the AGM 
 

Electronic Participation Form  
Full name of shareholder:  
Identity or registration number of shareholder:  
Full name of authorised representative (if applicable):  
Identity number of authorised representative:  

Email address:  

*Note: this email address will be used by the Company to share the Microsoft Teams meeting invitation required to access the AGM 
electronically  

Cell phone number:  
Telephone number, including dialling codes:  
*Note: The electronic platform to be utilised for the AGM does not provide for electronic voting during the meeting. Accordingly, 
shareholders are strongly encouraged to submit votes by proxy in advance of the AGM, by completing the proxy form.  
Indicate (by marking with an ‘X’) whether: 
 votes will be submitted by proxy (in which case, please enclose the duly completed proxy form with this form); or 
 the Participant wishes to exercise votes during the AGM. If this option is selected, the Company’s transfer secretaries will contact 
you to make the necessary arrangements.  
By signing this application form, I consent to the processing of my personal information above for the purpose of participating in 
Accentuate’s AGM. 
Name of CSDP or broker (if Accentuate Shares are held in dematerialised format):  
Contact number of CSDP/broker:  
Contact person of CSDP/broker:  
Number of share certificate (if applicable): 
Signed at    on 2021 
Signed:   

 
Documents required to be attached to this application form 
 
1. In order to exercise their voting rights at the AGM, shareholders who choose to participate electronically may appoint a proxy, 

which proxy may participate in the AGM, provided that a duly completed proxy form has been submitted in accordance with the 
instructions on that form, and as envisaged in the Notice of AGM. 

2. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of the named person, including any person acting in a representative capacity, 
who is to participate in the AGM, must be attached to this application. 

3. A certified copy of the valid identity document/passport of the person attending the AGM by electronic participation, including any 
person acting in a representative capacity, must be attached to this application. 

4. The cost of electronic participation in the AGM is for the expense of the Participant and will be billed separately by the Participant’s 
own service provider.  

5. The Participant acknowledges that the electronic communication services are provided by third parties and indemnifies 
Accentuate and/or the Transfer Secretaries against any loss, injury, damage, penalty or claim arising in any way from the use or 
possession of the electronic services, whether or not the problem is caused by any act or omission on the part of the Participant 
or anyone else. In particular, but not exclusively, the Participant acknowledges that he/she will have no claim against Accentuate 
and/or the Transfer Secretaries, whether for consequential damages or otherwise, arising from the use of the electronic services 
or any defect in it or from total or partial failure of the electronic services and connections linking the Participant via the electronic 
services to the AGM.  

6. The application to participate in the AGM electronically will only be deemed successful if this Electronic Participation Form has 
been completed fully and signed by the Participant. 

7. The Company may in its sole discretion accept any incomplete application forms. 
 

Applications to participate by electronic communication will only be considered if this application form is completed in full, signed by 
the shareholder, its proxy or representative, and delivered as detailed above. The Company may in its sole discretion accept any 
incomplete application forms. 
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Form of Proxy 
 
ACCÉNTUATE LIMITED 
(Incorporated in the Republic of South Africa)  
(Registration number 2004/029691/06) 
JSE code: ACE  ISIN: ZAE000115986   
(“Accéntuate” or “the Company”) 
 
Form of proxy for the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held at 10:00 am on 5 February 2021 via Microsoft Teams (“the Annual General 
Meeting”).  
 
For use by certificated shareholders, nominee companies of Central Securities Depository Participants (“CSDP”), brokers’ nominee companies and 
shareholders who have dematerialised their shares and who have elected “own name” registration, who wish to vote on the ordinary and special 
resolutions per the notice of the Annual General Meeting to which this form is attached.  
 
Shareholders who have dematerialised their shares through a CSDP or broker must not complete this form of proxy and must provide their CSDP or 
broker with their voting instructions, except for shareholders who elected “own name” registration in the sub-register through a CSDP, which 
shareholders must complete this form of proxy and lodge it with Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd.  
 
Holders of dematerialised shares other than with “own name” registration wishing to attend the Annual General Meeting must inform their CSDP or 
broker of such intention and request their CSDP or broker to issue them with the necessary written authorisation to attend. 
 
I/We (name in block letters) _____________________________________________________________________________________ 

of (address)___________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

being the holder/s of (number)_______________ordinary shares in the Company, do hereby appoint 

 1. _____________________________________________________________or failing him/her 

 2. _____________________________________________________________or failing him/her 

 3. the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting as my/our proxy to act for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the 
Company, which will be held for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing, with or without modification, the ordinary and special resolutions 
to be proposed thereat and at any adjournment thereof, and to vote in favour of and/or against the resolutions and/or abstain from voting in respect 
of the ordinary shares registered in my/our name/s, in accordance with the following instructions (refer to notes to the form of proxy): 
 

 Number of shares 

 In favour  Against Abstain 

To consider the presentation of the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020    

Ordinary resolution number 1: Confirm the appointment of Wisdom Mushohwe     

Ordinary resolution number 2: To re-elect Ralph Patmore as a Non-Executive Director    

Ordinary resolution number 3: To re-elect Eric Ratshikhopha as a Non-Executive Director    

Ordinary resolution number 4: Confirmation of external auditors    

Ordinary resolution number 5: Appoint of Andile Mjamekwana to the Audit and Risk Committee    

Ordinary resolution number 6: Appointment of Ralph Patmore to the Audit and Risk Committee    

Ordinary resolution number 7: Appointment of Eric Ratshikhopha to the Audit and Risk Committee    

Ordinary resolution number 8:  8.1 Endorsement of Remuneration Policy          

8.2 Endorsement of the Implementation Report    

Ordinary resolution number 9: General authority to issue unissued shares for cash    

Ordinary resolution number 10: Authority to action     

Special resolution number 1: Remuneration of Non-Executive Directors    

Special resolution number 2: Financial assistance to related and inter-related entities     

Special resolution number 3: Financial assistance for subscription of securities in the Company     

 
 
Signed at_____________________________________ on__________________________2021 
 
 
Signature__________________________________________________________________ 
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Notes to the Form of Proxy 
 

 
A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint an individual as its proxy to attend, participate in, speak 
and vote at the meeting in the place of the shareholder. A proxy may delegate the proxy’s authority to act on behalf of the shareholders 
to another person. 
 
A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company. 
 
 A shareholder may insert the name(s) of one or more proxies (none of whom need be a Company shareholder) in the space 

provided, with or without deleting the words “the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting”. The person whose name stands 
first on the form of proxy and has not been deleted and who is present at the annual general meeting will be entitled to act as 
proxy to the exclusion of those whose names follow. In the event that no names are indicated, the proxy shall be exercised in 
favour of all resolutions by the Chairman. 

 Shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of an “X” or the relevant number of votes exercisable 
by that shareholder in the appropriate box provided. Failure to comply with the above will be deemed to authorise the proxy to 
vote as he/she deems fit. Where the proxy is the Chairman, such failure shall be deemed to authorise the Chairman to vote in 
favour of the ordinary and special resolutions in respect of all the shareholders’ votes exercisable thereat. 

 The completion and lodging of this form of proxy shall in no way preclude the shareholder from attending, speaking and voting 
in person at the Annual General Meeting to the exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms hereof, subject to the shareholder 
notifying the Chairman prior to the commencement of the Annual General Meeting. 

 Should this form of proxy not be completed and/or received in accordance with these notes, the Chairman may accept or reject 
it, provided that, in respect of its acceptance, the Chairman is satisfied as to the manner in which the shareholder wishes to 
vote. 

 Documentary evidence establishing the authority of the person signing this form of proxy in a representative capacity must be 
attached to this form of proxy unless previously recorded by the Company’s Transfer Secretaries or waived by the Chairman of 
the meeting. 

 Where this form of proxy is signed under power of attorney, such power of attorney must acCompany this form unless it has 
previously been registered with the Company’s Transfer Secretaries. 

 Where shares are held jointly, all joint holders are required to sign. 

 A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian, unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal capacity have 
been produced or have been registered by the transfer secretaries of the Company. 

 Any alteration or correction made to this form of proxy must be signed in full and not initialled by the signatories. 
 This form of proxy must be lodged with, or posted to, the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor Services (Pty) Ltd, 

Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann Ave, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196 (Private Bag X9000, Saxonwold, 2132) so as to be 
received by not later than 10:00 am on Wednesday, 3 February 2021. 

 The completion and lodging of this form of proxy by the shareholders holding certificated shares, nominee companies of CSDPs 
or brokers and the shareholders who have dematerialised their shares and who have elected “own name” registration will not 
preclude the relevant shareholder from attending the Annual General Meeting and speaking and voting in person thereat, to the 
exclusion of any proxy appointed in terms thereof. The shareholders who have dematerialised their shares other than with “own 
name” registration, and who wish to attend and vote at the annual general meeting, must instruct their CSDP or broker to issue 
them with the necessary written authority to attend and vote on behalf of the registered shareholder. 
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General Information 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Country of incorporation and domicile South Africa  

  

Directors RB Patmore 

 DE Platt 

 NE Ratshikhopha 

 PS Kriel 

 A Mjamekwana 

 W Mushohwe  

  

Business address 32 Steele Street 
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Postal address PO Box 1754 
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Auditors Moore Johannesburg Inc. 

 Chartered Accountants  

 (S.A.) Registered  

 Auditors 

  

Secretary Juba Statutory Services Proprietary Limited  
(represented by Sirkien van Schalkwyk) 

  

Company Registration Number  2004/029691/06 

  

Level of assurance  These consolidated and separate Financial Statements have 
been audited in compliance with the applicable requirements of 
section 30 of the Companies Act of South Africa. 

  

Preparer The consolidated and separate Financial Statements were 
independently complied by:  
Catherine Aucamp  
Chartered Accountant (SA) 
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

The Directors are required in terms of the Companies Act of South Africa, 71 of 2008, as amended, to maintain adequate accounting 
records and are responsible for the content and integrity of the Financial Statements and related financial information included in 
this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the Financial Statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Group at the 
reporting date and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period  then ended, in conformity with International Financial 
Reporting Standards (IFRS). The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on the Financial Statements. 

The Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS, the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides 
as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting 
Standards Council, the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited and in the manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa, 
and are based upon appropriate accounting policies consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements 
and estimates. 

The Directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial control established by the Group 
and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control environment. To enable the Directors to meet these 
responsibilities, the Board sets standards for internal control aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. 
The standards include the proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures 
and adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout the Group and 
all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the Group’s business is conducted in a manner that 
in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach. The focus of risk management in the Group is on identifying, assessing, 
managing and monitoring all known forms of risk across the Group. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Group 
endeavors to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical behavior are applied and 
managed within predetermined procedures and constraints. 

The Directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management, that the system of internal 
control provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of the Financial Statements. 
However, any system of internal financial control can provide only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material 
misstatement or loss. 

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s and Company’s cash flow forecast for the next 12 months and, in light of this review and 
the current financial position, they are satisfied that the Group have or have access to, adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. 

The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements. The Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements have been examined by the external auditors and their report is 
presented on pages 44 to 46. 

The Financial Statements set out on pages 47 to 97, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by the 
Board on 11 November 2020 and were signed on their behalf by: 

DE Platt W Mushohwe 
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer 

Certification by Company Secretary 
______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

In terms of section 88(2)(e) of the Companies Act, 2008 as amended, I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, the 
Company has lodged with the Companies and Intellectual Properties Commission all such returns as are required of a public 
Company in terms of the Companies Act of South Africa and that all such returns are true, correct and up to date.    

Juba Statutory Services Proprietary Limited 
(represented by Sirkien van Schalkwyk) 
Company Secretary 

11 December 2020 

Integrated Annual Report 2020     
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Directors' Report 

The Directors have pleasure in submitting their report on the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements of Accéntuate Limited 
for the year ended 30 June 2020. 

1. Nature of business

Accéntuate Limited and its subsidiaries was incorporated in South Africa with interests in the water treatment, chemical blending, 
industrial and commercial cleaning and metal treatment sectors, as well as the flooring sector. The activities of the Group are 
undertaken through the Company and its subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements. The Group operates in South Africa. 

Material Change 
There has been a material change in the current year for Accéntuate Limited; Accéntuate Limited disposed of its 100% shareholding 
in Safic Proprietary Limited and its subsidiaries with effect from 31 December 2019. The General Meeting was held on 26 October 
2020 and the resolutions passed with the requisite majority. 

2. Review of financial results and activities

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements 
of the Companies Act of South Africa. The accounting policies have been applied consistently compared to the prior period, except 
for the adoption of IFRS 16 during the current reporting period.  

Full details of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Group and Company are set out in these Financial 
Statements. 

3. Share capital

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
No of shares 

2019 
No of shares 

Authorised 
500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.001 cents each 5 5 500 000 000 500 000 000 

Issued 
139 366 188 ordinary shares of 0.001 cents each 1 1 139 366 188 139 396 188 

There have been no changes to the authorised or issued share capital during the year under review. 

4. Directorate

The Directors in office at the date of this report are as follows: 

Directors Office Designation Changes
RB Patmore Chairman Independent Non-Executive 
FC Platt Executive  Resigned 31 August 2020 
MJ Coetzee Executive  Resigned 29 November 2019 
DE Platt Chief Executive Officer Executive  
NE Ratshikhopha Independent Non-Executive 
PS Kriel  Independent Non-Executive 
A Mjamekwana  Independent Non-Executive 
W Mushohwe  Chief Financial Officer Executive Appointed 25 March 2020  

Changes in responsibilities 

The designation of A Mjamekwane changed from Non-Executive Director to Independent Non-Executive Director. PS Kriel resigned 
from Thebe Investment Corporation. After consideration by the Remuneration and Nomination Committee, his designation was also 
changed to Independent Non-Executive Director. Following the resignation of FC Platt on 31 August 2020, DE Platt took over and his 
designation changed from Executive Director to Chief Executive Officer on 1 September 2020.  

5. Directors' interests in contracts

During the period under review, no contracts were entered into which Directors or Officers of the Group had an interest which 
significantly affected the business of the Group. 

6. Events after the reporting period

The Directors are not aware of any material event which occurred after the reporting date and up to the date of this report. 
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Directors' Report (continues) 

7. Going concern

We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2020, the Company had accumulated loss of R95.3 million (Group: R119.4 million); but 
the Company's total assets exceeded its liabilities by R54.9 million (Group: R63.1 million) and as such remain technically solvent with 
a positive net asset value. 

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes  
that the Company will be able to generate positive cashflows to finance future operations and that it will be able to settle its liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments in the ordinary course of business. 

The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is still dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is 
that the directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the Company and that the subordination agreement 
referred to in note 35 of these Financial Statements will remain in force for so long as it takes to restore a healthy liquidity and solvency 
of the Company. 

8. Auditors

Moore Johannesburg Inc. continued in office as auditors for the Company and its subsidiaries for the 2020 reporting period. 

At the Annual General Meeting, the shareholders will be requested to reappoint Moore Johannesburg Inc. as the independent external 
auditors of the Company and to confirm Candice Whitefield as the designated lead audit partner for the 2021 reporting period. 

9. Company Secretary

The Company secretary is Juba Statutory Services Proprietary Limited, represented by Ms Sirkien van Schalkwyk. 

Business address: Block B, Office B0103 
The Park Shopping Centre  
837 Barnard Street  
Elarduspark 
0181 

The Financial Statements set out on pages 47 to 96, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by 
the Board on 11 December 2020, and were signed on its behalf by: 

Approval of Financial Statements 

W Mushohwe 
Chief Financial Officer 

DE Plat t 
Chief Executive Officer 

11 December 2020 
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To the Shareholders of Accéntuate Limited  

Report on the audit of the consolidated and separate Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements of Accéntuate Limited set out on pages 47 to 97, which 
comprise the Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2020, and the Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive 
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.  

In our opinion, the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Accéntuate Limited as at 30 June 2020, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa.  

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further 
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated and separate Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Independent Regulatory Board for Auditors’ Code of Professional Conduct 
for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to performing audits of Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements in South Africa. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA Code 
and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing audits in South Africa. The IRBA Code is consistent with 
the corresponding sections of the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ International Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants (including International Independence Standards). We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Material uncertainty related to going concern 

We draw attention to note 35 in the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, which indicates that the Group incurred a net 
loss of R7 million during the year ended 30 June 2020 and, as of that date, the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its total assets by 
R115.55 million. As stated in note 35, the ability for the Group to continued as a going concern is dependent on a number of factors. 
The most significant of these is that the Directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations of the Group and the 
subordination agreement referred to in note 16 of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements will remain in force for so lang 
as it takes to restore a healthy liquidity and solvency of the Group. These events or conditions indicate that a material uncertainty 
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter.  

Key audit matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated 
and Separate Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on 
these matters. In addition to the matter described in Material uncertainty relates to going concern section, we have determined the 
matter described below to be the key audit matter to be communicated on our report.  

Safic transaction  
Refer to the accounting policies note 1.2 Consolidation, relating to the disposal and note 22 to the Consolidated and Separate 
Financial Statements for selected disclosures applicable to this matter.  

Accéntuate and the purchasers reached an agreement during the year under review relating to the disposal of Safic, a subsidiary of 
Accéntuate, as at 31 December 2019, subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation, the Companies Act 
and the Listings Requirements.  

The sale of shares and claims agreement entered into between Safic Proprietary Limited, its shareholder Accéntuate Limited 
(“Seller”), Eric William Platt, Douglas Murray Cutter and Luke Robert Ralph Quinn (collectively the “Purchasers”) for the sum of  
R10 000 000.00 (ten million rand only). The disposal had been disclosed in the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements as 
a sale of subsidiary.  

Due to the significance of the transactions this was considered a key audit matter. 

Our procedures included amongst others:  
• We tested the accuracy of information provided by management to determine the accounting treatment, and we evaluated the

appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policy in terms of a disposal of the subsidiary.
• We reviewed the terms of the share purchase agreement to ensure that the transaction was accounted for in terms of the
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agreements and at the correct value. 
• We reviewed management’s computation of the purchase consideration including the accounting entries processed to account 

for the Safic transaction, in order to ensure that the transaction was accounted for at the correct value.   
• We ensured that the effective date used was correct.  
• We verified that the Company had obtained the necessary regulatory and shareholder approvals for the transaction.  
• We ensured that the disclosure in the consolidated and separate Financial Statements met the measurement and disclosure 

requirements in terms of International Financial Reporting Standards.  
• We have obtained written representation from management and, where appropriate, those charged with governance, regarding 

the treatments and disclosure of this disposal.  
 
Other information  
 
The Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the document 
titled “Accéntuate Limited consolidated and separate Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2020”, which includes the 
Directors’ Report as required by the Companies Act of South Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this report. The other 
information does not include the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and our auditor’s report thereon.  
 
Our opinion on the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an 
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.  
 
In connection with out audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statement or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement 
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.  
 
Auditor’s responsibilities of the Directors for the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
 
The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements in 
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard and the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa, and for such 
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the consolidated and separate Financial 
Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do 
so.  
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International 
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgement and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud in higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Directors.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.  
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• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit 
findings, including any significant deficiencies in the internal control that we identify during our audit.  

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that Moore 
Johannesburg Inc. has been the auditor of Accéntuate Limited for 2 years.  

Moore Johannesburg Inc. 

Chartered Accountants (SA) 

Registered Auditors  

Per: CA Whitefield 

Partner 

Registered Auditor 

11 December 2020 

50 Oxford Road 
Parktown  
2193  
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 Notes Group Company 

 2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Assets      
Non-current assets      
Property, plant and equipment 4 51 600 55 227 - - 
Investment property 5 - 2 800 - - 
Right-of-use assets 6 3 918 - - - 
Intangible assets 7 - 1 143 - - 
Investments in subsidiaries 8 - - 49 147 49 147 
Deferred tax asset 9 7 362 4 519 - - 

 62 880 63 689 49 147 49 147 

Current assets      
Inventories 10 47 019 56 785 - - 
Loans to Group Companies 11 - - 5 568 2 558 
Trade and other receivables 12 22 140 35 646 - - 
Loans receivable 13 7 946 40 7 946 - 
Current tax asset  - 3 003 - - 
Cash and cash equivalents 14 1 517 1 873 - 24 

 78 622  97 347 13 514 2 582 

Total assets  141 502  161 036 62 661 51 729 

     
Equity and liabilities       
Equity      
Share capital 15 150 188 150 557 150 188 150 188 
Reserves  31 780  31 276 - - 
Accumulated loss  (115 555) (90 277) (95 279) (102 401) 

 66 413  91 556 54 909 47 787 

Liabilities      
Non-current liabilities      
Loans from shareholders 16 - 2 076 - 2 076 
Lease liabilities (2019: Finance lease liability) 6 1 509 - - - 

 1 509 2 076 - 2 076 

Current liabilities      
Trade and other payables 17 41 447 47 767 46 44 
Loans from Group Companies 18 - - - 1 756 
Loans from Shareholders 16 5 793 - 5 749 - 
Other financial liabilities 19 381 806 - - 
Lease liabilities (2019: Finance lease liability) 6 2 750  517 - - 
Operating lease liability  - 40 - - 
Current tax liability  1 855 483 1 432 60 
Provisions 20 525 - 525 - 
Bank overdraft 14 20 829 17 791 - 6 

 73 580 67 404 7 752 1 866 

Total liabilities  75 089  69 480 7 752 3 942 

Total equity and liabilities  141 502 161 036 62 661 51 729 
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Notes Group Company 

 2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Continuing operations      
Revenue 23 199 567 285 262 - - 
Cost of sales  (115 777) (166 276) - - 

Gross profit  83 790 118 986 - - 

Other operating income  5 263 4 224 1 755 - 
Other operating losses 24 90 (322) - - 
Operating expenses  (119 069) (145 818) (533) 2 147 

Operating (loss)/profit 25 (29 926) (22 930) 1 222 2 147 

Finance income 26 1 380  1 162 - - 
Finance costs 27 (4 697)  (4 185) (673) (76) 
Profit/(loss) on disposal of subsidiary 22 19 720 - 7 945 (2 919) 

(Loss)/profit before tax  (13 523) (25 953) (8 494) (848) 

Income tax benefit/(expense) 28 6 477 5 095 (1 372) - 

(Loss)/profit from continuing operations  (7 046) (20 858) 7 122 (848) 

Discontinued operations      
Loss from discontinued operations  - (2 474) - - 

Profit/(loss) for the year  (7 046) (23 332) 7 122 (848) 

     
Other comprehensive income:      

     
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or 
loss: 

     

     
Gross revaluation surplus  - 5 753 - - 
Deferred taxation  - (1 172) - - 

Total items that will not be reclassified to 
profit or loss 

 - 4 581 - - 

Other comprehensive income for the year net 
of taxation 

 - 4 581 - - 

Total comprehensive (loss) income for the 
year 

 (7 046) (18 751) 7 122 (848) 

     
Profit attributable to:      
Owners to the parent:      

From continuing operations  (7 046) (20 858) 7 122 (848) 
From discontinued operations  - (2 474) - - 

 (7 046) (23 332) 7 122 (848) 

Basic earnings per share (cents)      
From continuing operations (cents) 37 (19,80) (15,61)   
From discontinued operations (cents) 37 14,59 (1,85)   

  (5,21) (17,46)   

Diluted earnings per share (cents)      
From continuing operations (cents) 37 (19,80) (15,61)   
From discontinued operations (cents) 37 14,59 (1,85)   

  (5,21) (17,46)   

Net asset value per share (cents) 37 47,00 66,00   
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Share capital 

Share 
premium 

Total share 
capital 

Revaluation 
reserve 

Share-based 
payment 
reserve 

Total 
reserves 

Accumulated 
losses 

Total equity 

Group R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Balance at 1 July 2018 1 150 556 150 557 27 216 109 27 325 (67 541) 110 341 
Loss for the year - - - - - - (23 332) (23 332) 

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - - (23 332) (23 332) 

Transfer between reserves - - - (595) - (595) 595 - 
Revaluation for the year - - - 4 582 - 4 582 - 4 582 
Share-based payment expense - - - - (36) (36) 1 (35) 

Total contributions and distributions - - - 3 987 (36) 3 951 596 4 547 

Balance at 1 July 2019 1 150 556 150 557 31 203 73 31 276 (90 277) 91 556 

Loss for the year - - - - - - (7 046) (7 046) 
Other comprehensive income - - - 577 - 577 - 577 

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - 577 - 577 (7 046) (6 469) 

Disposal of subsidiary - (369) (369) - - - (17 727) (18 096) 
Changes in accounting policy – adoption of IFRS 16 - - - - - - (505) (505) 
Share-based payment expense - - - - (73) (73) - (73) 

Total contributions and distributions - (369) (369) - (73) (73) (18 232) (18 674) 

Balance at 30 June 2020 1 150 187 150 188 31 780 - 31 780 (115 555) 66 413 

Notes 15 15 15      
        

Company          

Balance at 1 July 2018 1 150 187 150 188 - - - (101 553) 48 635 
Loss for the year - - - - - - (848) (848) 

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - - - - - (848) (848) 

Balance at 1 July 2019 1 150 187 150 188 - - - (102 401) 47 787 

Profit for the year - - - - - - 7 122 7 122 

Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - - 7 122 7 122 

Balance at 30 June 2020 1 150 187 150 188 - - - (95 279) (54 909) 

Notes 15 15 15      
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 Notes Group Company 

  2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Cash flow from operating activities      
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 29 (3 141) (9 751) 1 749 (16) 
Finance income  1 380 1 162 - - 
Finance costs  (4 162) 76 (673) (76) 
Tax received/(paid) 30 5 262 (386) - - 

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities  (661) (8 899) 1 076 (92) 

     
Cash flow from investing activities      
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 4 (765) (2 594) - - 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and 
equipment 

4 3 032 19 450 - - 

Loans advanced to Group Companies  - - (3 010) (2 558) 
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets  - (8 191) (7 946) - 
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary  (7 946) 14 477 - 13 081 

Net cash from/(used in) investing activities  (5 679) 23 142 (10 956) 10 523 

     
Cash flow from financing activities      
Proceeds on share issue 15 - - - 2 076 
Buy back of shares 15 (369) - - - 
Repayment of loans   1 512 - 1 756 (15 710) 
Repayment of borrowings  5 368 (13 081) - - 
Movement in other liability   - - - 3 191 
Repayment of shareholders loan  - (2 076) (3 673) - 
Payment of lease liabilities  (3 565) 517 - - 
Net cash flow from discontinued operations  - - 11 779 - 

Net cash from/(used in) financing activities  2 946 (18 901) 9 862 (10 443) 

     
Net increase/(decrease) in cash  (3 394) (4 658) (18) (12) 
Cash at 1 July   (15 918) (11 260) 18  30 

Cash at 30 June 14 (19 312) (15 918) - 18 
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Reporting entity 
 
Accentuate Limited (the Company) is a Company domiciled in South Africa. The consolidated Financial Statements of the Company 
for the period ended 30 June 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the Group). 
 
1. Significant accounting policies 
 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated and separate Financial Statements (Financial 
Statements) are set out below.  
 
1.1 Basis of preparation and Accounting Policies 
 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the going concern basis in accordance with, International Financial Reporting 
Standards ("IFRS"), the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee, the Financial Reporting 
Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, the Listings Requirements of the JSE Limited and in the 
manner required by the Companies Act of South Africa. 
 
These Financial Statements comply with the requirements of the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting 
Practices Committee and the Financial Reporting Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council. 
 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated. The Financial Statements are 
presented in Rands, which is the Group's functional currency. 
 
These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period except for the adoption of IFRS 16: Leases on 1 July 2019. IFRS 
16 became effective for periods starting 1 January 2019. Refer to Note 2 for the provisional transition and how the standard was 
applied in the current period. 
 

1.2 Consolidation 
 

Basis of Consolidation 
 
The Consolidated Annual Financial Statements incorporate the Annual Financial Statements of the Company and all subsidiaries. 
Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) which are controlled by the Group. 
 
The Group has control of an entity when it is exposed to or has rights to variable returns from involvement with the entity and it has 
the ability to affect those returns through use its power over the entity. 
 
The results of subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Annual Financial Statements from the effective date of acquisition to the 
effective date of disposal. 
 
Adjustments are made when necessary to the Annual Financial Statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line 
with those of the Group. 
 
All inter-Company transactions, balances, and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated in full on 
consolidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset 
transferred. 
 
Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified and recognised separately from the Group's 
interest therein and are recognised within equity. Losses of subsidiaries attributable to non-controlling interests are allocated to the 
non-controlling interest even if this results in a debit balance being recognised for non-controlling interest. 
 
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions and are 
recognised directly in the Statement of Changes in Equity. 
 
The difference between the fair value of consideration paid or received and the movement in non-controlling interest for such 
transactions is recognised in equity attributable to the owners of the Company. 
 
Where a subsidiary is disposed of and a non-controlling shareholding is retained, the remaining investment is measured to fair value 
with the adjustment to fair value recognised in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal of the controlling interest. The fair 
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture 
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are 
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously 
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss. 
 
Investments in subsidiaries in the separate Financial Statements 
 
In the Company's separate Financial Statements, investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment 
losses. This excludes investments which are held for sale and are consequently accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current 
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. 
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Business combinations 
 
The Group accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method of accounting. The cost of the business combination is 
measured as the aggregate of the fair values of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued. Costs 
directly attributable to the business combination are expensed as incurred, except the costs to issue debt which are amortised as part 
of the effective interest and costs to issue equity which are included in equity. 
 
Any contingent consideration is included in the cost of the business combination at fair value as at the date of acquisition. Subsequent 
changes to the assets, liability or equity which arise as a result of the contingent consideration are not affected against goodwill, 
unless they are valid measurement period adjustments. Otherwise, all subsequent changes to the fair value of contingent 
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in either profit or loss or in other   comprehensive income, in 
accordance with relevant IFRS's. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent 
settlement is accounted for within equity. 
 
The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities which meet the recognition conditions of IFRS 3 Business 
combinations are recognised at their fair values at acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or disposal Groups) that are 
classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current assets Held For Sale and Discontinued Operations, which are 
recognised at fair value less costs to sell. 
 
Contingent liabilities are only included in the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree where there is a present obligation at 
acquisition date. 
 
On acquisition, the acquiree's assets and liabilities are reassessed in terms of classification and are reclassified where the 
classification is inappropriate for Group purposes. This excludes lease agreements and insurance contracts, whose classification 
remains as per their inception date. 
 
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree are measured on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non- 
controlling interests' proportionate share in the recognised amounts of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. This treatment applies 
to non-controlling interests which are present ownership interests, and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net 
assets in the event of liquidation. All other components of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair values, 
unless another measurement basis is required by IFRS's. 
 
In cases where the Group held a non-controlling shareholding in the acquiree prior to obtaining control, that interest is  measured to 
fair value as at acquisition date. The measurement to fair value is included in profit or loss for the year. Where the existing shareholding 
was classified as an available-for-sale financial asset, the cumulative fair value adjustments recognised previously to other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are recognised in profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. 
 
Goodwill is determined as the consideration paid, plus the fair value of any shareholding held prior to obtaining control, plus non-
controlling interest and less the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the acquiree. If, in the case of a bargain purchase, 
the result of this formula is negative, then the difference is recognised directly in profit or loss. 
 
Goodwill is not amortised but is tested on an annual basis for impairment. If goodwill is assessed to be impaired, that impairment is 
not subsequently reversed. 
 
Goodwill arising on acquisition of foreign entities is considered an asset of the foreign entity. In such cases the goodwill is translated 
to the functional currency of the Group at the end of each reporting period with the adjustment recognised in equity through to other 
comprehensive income. 
 
1.3 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 
 
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management, from time to time, to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. 
These estimates and associated assumptions are based on experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised prospectively. 
 
Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions 
 
The preparation of Financial Statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates 
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that 
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 
 
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if 
the revision affects both current and future periods. 
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Significant estimates, judgements and assumptions (continues) 
 
The most significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements in applying accounting policies are the following: 
1.3.1 Note 4 - Property, plant and equipment 
1.3.2 Note 5 - Investment property 
1.3.3 Note 7 - Intangible assets 
1.3.4 Note 8 - Investments in subsidiaries 
1.3.5 Note 9 - Deferred tax 
1.3.6 Note 10 - Write down of inventories 
1.3.7 Note 11 and 13 - Impairment of financial assets 
 
Further information, assumptions and judgements made in measuring fair values are included in the notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
Key sources of estimation uncertainty  
 
Impairment of financial assets 
 
The impairment requirements for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group 
uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past 
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at each reporting date. For details of the key assumptions 
and inputs used, refer to the individual notes addressing financial assets. 
 
Allowance for slow moving, damaged and obsolete inventory 
 
Management assesses whether inventory is impaired by comparing its cost to its estimated net realisable value. On assessment and 
computation of the net realisable value, management uses estimates and assumptions to determine the costs to sale the inventory. 
Where an impairment is necessary, inventory items are written down to net realisable value. The write down is included in cost of 
sales. 
 

Fair value estimation 
 
Several assets and liabilities of the Group are either measured at fair value or disclosure is made of their fair values. The main 
category of assets that are measured at fair value within the Group are investment properties, revaluation of property, plant and 
equipment, financial assets and financial liabilities. 
 
A valuation committee was established in order to determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for each  valuation. 
The committee reports to the Chief Financial Officer. Significant valuation issues are reported to the audit committee. 
 
Observable market data is used as inputs to the extent that it is available. Where market data is unavailable, qualified external valuers 
are consulted for the determination of appropriate valuation techniques and inputs. 
 
Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
The Group reviews and tests the carrying amount of non-financial assets when events or changes in circumstances suggest that 
the carrying amount may not be recoverable. When such indicators exist, management determine the recoverable amount by 
performing value in use and fair value calculations. These calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions. When it is 
not possible to determine the recoverable amount for an individual asset, management assesses the recoverable amount for the 
cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
 
Management assess the appropriateness of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at each reporting date. The useful 
lives of motor vehicles, furniture and computer equipment are determined based on Group replacement policies for the various 
assets. Individual assets within these classes, which have a significant carrying amount are assessed separately to consider 
whether replacement will be necessary outside of normal replacement parameters. The useful life of manufacturing equipment is 
assessed annually based on factors including wear and tear, technological obsolescence and usage requirements. 
 
When the estimated useful life of an asset differs from previous estimates, the change is applied prospectively in the determination 
of the depreciation charge. 
 
Provisions 
 
Provisions are inherently based on assumptions and estimates using the best information available. Additional disclosure of these 
estimates of provisions are included in note 20. 
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1.4 Investment property 
 
Investment property is recognised as an asset when, and only when, it is probable that the future economic benefits that are 
associated with the investment property will flow to the enterprise, and the cost of the investment property can be measured 
reliably. 
 
Investment property is initially recognised at cost. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement. 
 
Costs include costs incurred initially and costs incurred subsequently to add to, or to replace a part of, or service a property. If a 
replacement part is recognised in the carrying amount of the investment property, the carrying amount of the replaced part is 
derecognised. 
 
Fair value 
 
Subsequent to initial measurement investment property is measured at fair value. 
 
A gain or loss arising from a change in fair value is included in net profit or loss for the period in which it arises. 
 
1.5 Property, plant and equipment 
 
Items of property are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing costs where applicable. If significant parts of an item 
of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of 
property, plant and equipment. 
 
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow 
to the Group. Day to day servicing costs are included in profit or loss as they are incurred. 
 
Revaluations are made with sufficient regularity such that the carrying amount does not differ materially from that which would be 
determined using fair value at the reporting date. When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, the gross carrying 
amount is adjusted consistently with the revaluation of the carrying amount. The accumulated depreciation at that date is adjusted to 
equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated impairment 
losses. When an item of property, plant and equipment is revalued, any accumulated depreciation at the date of the revaluation is 
eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset. 
 
Any decrease in an asset’s carrying amount, as a result of a revaluation, is recognised in other comprehensive income to the extent 
of any credit balance existing in the revaluation reserve in respect of that asset. The decrease recognised in other comprehensive 
income reduces the amount accumulated in the revaluation reserve in equity. 
 
The revaluation reserve related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained earnings when 
the asset is derecognised. 
 
The revaluation reserve related to a specific item of property, plant and equipment is transferred directly to retained income as the 
asset is used. The amount transferred is equal to the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount and 
depreciation based on the original cost of the asset, net of deferred tax. 
 
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values using the 
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives, and is generally recognised in profit or loss. Land is not depreciated. 
 
The estimate useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment are as follows: 
 
Item Average useful life

Buildings 40 years
Plant and machinery 5 to 12 years
Furniture and fixtures 8 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 5 to 10 years
IT equipment 3 to 5 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of useful life or term of lease
 
Land is not depreciated. 
 
The residual value, useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate.  
 
Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.  
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1.6 Intangible assets 
 
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when: 
1.6.1 it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale. 
1.6.2 there is an intention to complete and use or sell it. 
1.6.3 there is an ability to use or sell it. 
1.6.4 it will generate probable future economic benefits. 
1.6.5 there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset. 
1.6.6 the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 
 
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line method 
over their estimated useful lives, and is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when: 
 
 it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale. 
 there is an intention to complete and use or sell it. 
 there is an ability to use or sell it. 
 it will generate probable future economic benefits. 
 there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset.                              
 the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 
 
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values using the straight-line method 
over their estimated useful lives and is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
The estimated useful lives for current and prior periods are as follows: 
 
Item Average useful life

Patents and other intangibles 3 to 15 years
Brands 3 to 15 years
Computer software 1 to 5 years

 
Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. 
 
Any gain or loss on disposal of an intangible asset is recognised in profit or loss.  
 
1.7 Financial instruments 
 
Recognition and initial measurement 
 
Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial 
liabilities are initially recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at 
fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable 
without a significant financing component is initially measured at the transaction price. 
 
Classification and subsequent measurement 
 
Financial assets 
 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: 
 amortised cost; 
 FVOCI – debt investment; 
 FVOCI – equity investment; or 
 FVTPL. 
 
The financial instruments applicable to the Group are Financial assets at FVTPL and Financial assets at amortised cost. 
 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its business model for managing 
financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the 
change in the business model. 
 
A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 
 it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 
 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding. 
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1.7 Financial Instruments (continues) 
 
A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL: 
 it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 

assets; and 
 its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal 

amount outstanding. 
 
On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent 
changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis. 
 
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes 
all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 
requirements to be measured at amortised cost if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would 
otherwise arise. 
 

Financial assets – Business model assessment 
 
The Group makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level because 
this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The information considered includes 
the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice. 
 
These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest rate 
profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising 
cash flows through the sale of the assets; 
 how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group’s management; 
 the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) 

and how those risks are managed; 
 how managers of the business are compensated – e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets 

managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 
 the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and 

expectations about future sales activity. 
 
Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered sales for this 
purpose, consistent with the Group’s continuing recognition of the assets. 
 
Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured 
at FVTPL. 
 
Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 
 
For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is 
defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during 
a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit 
margin. 
 
In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group considers the contractual 
terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the 
timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group 
considers: 
 contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 
 terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features; 
 prepayment and extension features; and 
 terms that limit the Group’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features). 
 
Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
 
Financial assets at FVTPL 
 
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any finance or dividend income, are 
recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Financial assets at amortised cost 
 
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by 
impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain 
or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 
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1.7 Financial Instruments (continues) 
 
Financial liabilities – Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses 
 
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified 
as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at 
fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Finance costs and foreign 
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Derecognition  
 
Financial assets 
 
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers 
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the 
financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
and it does not retain control of the financial asset. 
 
The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position, but retains either all 
or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group also 
derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially different, in 
which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. 
 
On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the consideration paid (including 
any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or loss. 
 
Offsetting 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position when, and only 
when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or 
to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
Significant increase in credit risk 
 
The expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables is determined using the simplified method as prescribed by IFRS 9. 
 
1.8 Income tax 
 
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a 
business combination, or items recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive income (OCI). 
 
Current tax 
 
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the 
tax payable or receivable in respect of prior periods. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax 
amount expected to be paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax rates enacted 
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. 
 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met. 
 

Deferred tax 
 
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 
reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred tax is not recognised for: 
 temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a business combination and that 

affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss; 
 temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements to the extent that the Group is 

able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable 
future; and 

 taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill. 
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1.8 Income tax (continues) 
 
Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that 
future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on the reversal of 
relevant taxable temporary differences. If the amount of taxable temporary differences is insufficient to recognise a deferred tax asset 
in full, then future taxable profits, adjusted for reversals of existing temporary differences, are considered, based on the business 
plans for individual subsidiaries in the Group. 
 
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related 
tax benefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves. 
 
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the extent that it has become probable 
that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. 
 
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates 
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. 
 
The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at 
the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. For this purpose, the carrying amount of 
investment property measured at fair value is presumed to be recovered through sale, and the Group has not rebutted this 
presumption. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met. 
 
1.9 Leases 
 
The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and therefore the comparative information has not been 
restated and continues to be reported under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The details of accounting policies under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 are 
disclosed separately. 
 
Policy applicable from 1 July 2019 
 
At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess 
whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group uses the definition of a lease in IFRS 16. 
 
This policy is applied to contracts entered into, on or after 1 July 2019. 
 

As lessee 
 
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the 
contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone prices. However, for the leases of property the Group 
has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and non-lease components as a single lease 
component. 
 
The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially 
measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset 
or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 
 
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the 
lease term, unless the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease term or the cost of 
the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated 
over the useful life of the underlying asset, which is determined on the same basis as those of property and equipment. In addition, 
the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease 
liability. 
 
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing 
rate. Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. 
 
The Group determines its incremental borrowing rate by obtaining interest rates from various external financing sources and makes 
certain adjustments to reflect the terms of the lease and type of the asset leased. 
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1.9 Leases (continues) 
 
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following: 
 fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments; 
 variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement 

date; 
 amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and 
 the exercise price under a purchase option that the Group is reasonably certain to exercise, lease payments in an optional 

renewal period if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease 
unless the Group is reasonably certain not to terminate early. 

 
The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future 
lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be 
payable under a residual value guarantee, if the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or 
termination option or if there is a revised insubstance fixed lease payment. 
 
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of- use 
asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero. 
 
The Group presents right-of-use assets in ‘property, plant and equipment’ and lease liabilities in ‘lease liabilities’ in the statement of 
financial position. 
 
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
 
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for leases of low-value assets and short-term leases, 
including IT equipment. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term. 
 

As lessor 
 
At inception or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to 
each lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone prices. 
 
When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an operating lease. 
 
To classify each lease, the Group makes an overall assessment of whether the lease transfers substantially all of the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this is the case, then the lease is a finance lease; if not, then it is an 
operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considers certain indicators such as whether the lease is for the major part of 
the economic life of the asset. 
 
When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the 
lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising from the head lease, not with reference to the 
underlying asset. If a head lease is a short-term lease to which the Group applies the exemption described above, then it classifies 
the sub-lease as an operating lease. 
 
If an arrangement contains lease and non-lease components, then the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the consideration in the 
contract. 
 
The Group applies the derecognition and impairment requirements in IFRS 9 to the net investment in the lease (refer to note 6). The 
Group further regularly reviews estimated unguaranteed residual values used in calculating the gross investment in the lease. 
 
Generally, the accounting policies applicable to the Group as a lessor in the comparative period were not different from IFRS 16 
except for the classification of the sub-lease entered into during current reporting period that resulted in a finance lease classification. 
 
Policy applicable before 1 July 2019 
 
For contracts entered into before 1 January 2019, the Group determined whether the arrangement was or contained a lease based 
on the assessment of whether: 
 fulfilment of the arrangement was dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and 
 the arrangement had conveyed a right to use the asset. An arrangement conveyed the right to use the asset if one of the 

following was met: 
 the purchaser had the ability or right to operate the asset while obtaining or controlling more than an insignificant amount of the 

output; 
 the purchaser had the ability or right to control physical access to the asset while obtaining or controlling more than an 

insignificant amount of the output; or 
 facts and circumstances indicated that it was remote that other parties would take more than an insignificant amount of the 

output, and the price per unit was neither fixed per unit of output nor equal to the current market price per unit of output. 
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1.9 Leases (continues) 
 
As a lessee 
 
In the comparative period, as a lessee the Group classified leases that transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards of 
ownership as finance leases. When this was the case, the leased assets were measured initially at an amount equal to the lower of 
their fair value and the present value of the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments were the payments over the lease 
term that the lessee was required to make, excluding any contingent rent. Subsequent to initial recognition, the assets were accounted 
for in accordance with the accounting policy applicable to that asset. 
 
Assets held under other leases were classified as operating leases and were not recognised in the Group’s statement of financial 
position. Payments made under operating leases were recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the  term of the lease. 
Lease incentives received were recognised as an integral part of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease. 
 
As a lessor 
 
When the Group acted as a lessor, it determined at lease inception whether each lease was a finance lease or an operating lease. 
 
To classify each lease, the Group made an overall assessment of whether the lease transferred substantially all of the risks and 
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset. If this was the case, then the lease was a finance lease; if not, then it was an 
operating lease. As part of this assessment, the Group considered certain indicators such as whether the lease was for the major part 
of the economic life of the asset. 
 
1.10 Leases (Comparatives under IAS 17) 
 
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is classified 
as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 
 
Finance leases – lessee 
 
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value  of the 
leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in 
the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 
 
The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the lease. 
 
The lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge is 
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability. 
 
Operating leases – lessee 
 
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the 
amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset. This liability is not 
discounted. 
 
Any contingent rents are expensed in the period they are incurred. 
 
1.11 Inventories 
 
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value on the first-in-first-out basis.  
 
The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) formula. 
 
1.12 Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than investment property, inventories, 
and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s 
recoverable amount is estimated. 
 
The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the 
estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 
 
An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or exceeds its recoverable amount. 
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1.12 Impairment of non-financial assets (continues) 
 
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss except for impairment losses on revalued assets, which are recognised as 
revaluation decreases in other comprehensive income. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment 
loss had been recognised. 
 

1.13 Equity 
 
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. 
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 
 
Ordinary shares 
 
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised as a 
deduction from equity, net of any tax effects. 
 
Repurchase of share capital (treasury shares) 
 
When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly attributable 
costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised as a deduction from equity. Shares repurchased by subsidiaries are classified as treasury 
shares and are deducted in the statements of changes in equity. Shares repurchased by the Company are restored to authorised and 
unissued shares. 
 
Revaluation Reserve 
 
The revaluation reserve relates to the revaluation of land and buildings. Refer to note 4 for further details on the use of the reserve. 
 
Share-based payment reserve 
 
The share option scheme is accounted for in this reserve. Refer to note 15 for the details and conditions of the scheme. 
 
1.14 Employee benefits 
 
Short-term employee benefits 
 
Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be 
paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee 
and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 
 
Defined contribution plans 
 
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided. Prepaid contributions are 
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. 
 
1.15 Provisions 
 
Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments 
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 
 
Restructuring 
A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Group has approved a detailed and formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring 
either has commenced or has been announced publicly. Future operating losses are not provided for. 
 
Onerous contracts 
A provision for onerous contracts is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and 
the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on 
the assets associated with that contract. 
 
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised.  
 
1.16 Revenue 
 
Revenue comprises of sales to customers and service rendered to customers. Revenue is stated at the invoice amount and is 
exclusive of value-added taxation. 
 
The Group recognised revenue from the following major sources: 
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1.16 Revenue (continues) 

 
Sale of goods 
 
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on transfer of the control of the goods. 
 
Services rendered 
 
Revenue from the rendering of services are recognised based on the stage of completion of the transaction, which is based on the 
cost incurred to date compared to the total cost of the transaction. 
 
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts collected in behalf 
of third parties. The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control of a product or service to a customer. 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when all the following conditions have been satisfied: 
 the Company had transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownerships of the goods; 
 the Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective 

control over the foods sold; 
 the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
 it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company; and 
 the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 
 
Revenue is recognised at the transaction price, which is the amount of consideration the Group is expected to be entitled to when 
goods/services are transferred in the normal course of business, net of trade discounts and volume rebates, and value added tax. 
 
Revenue is recognised when the Group has satisfied its performance obligation by transferring a promised good or service to the 
customer. An asset is transferred when the customer obtains control of the asset. 
 
1.17 Discontinued operations 
 
Discontinued operations comprise those activities that were disposed of during the period or which were classified as held for sale at 
the end of the period and represent a separate major line of business or geographical area that can be clearly distinguished for 
operational and financial reporting purposes. 
 
1.18 Derivative financial instruments 
 
The Group enters into certain foreign exchange forward contracts to manage its exposure to currency movements. 
 
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to 
their fair value at each balance sheet date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss. 
 

2 Changes in accounting policy 
 
The Group initially applied IFRS 16 Leases from 1 July 2019. A number of other new standards are also effective from 1 July 2019 
but they do not have a material effect on the Group’s Financial Statements. 
 
The Group applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application is 
recognised in retained earnings at 1 July 2019. Accordingly, the comparative information presented for 2019 is not restated - 
i.e. it is presented, as previously reported, under IAS 17 and related interpretations. The details of the changes in accounting policies 
are disclosed below. Additionally, the disclosure requirements in IFRS 16 have not generally been applied to comparative information. 
 
Definition of a lease 
 
Previously, the Group determined at contract inception whether an arrangement was or contained a lease under IFRIC 4 Determining 
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease. The Group now assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease based on the definition 
of a lease, as explained in Accounting Policy 1.9. 
 
On transition to IFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are 
leases. The Group applied IFRS 16 only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not identified as 
leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a lease under IFRS 16. 
Therefore, the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 was applied only to contracts entered into or changed on or after 1 July 2019. 
 
As a lessee 
 
As a lessee, the Group leases many assets including property, production equipment and IT equipment. The Group previously 
classified leases as operating or finance leases based on its assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks 
and rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the Group recognises right-of- use assets  
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2. Changes in accounting policy (continues) 
 
and lease liabilities for most of these leases - i.e. these leases are on-balance sheet. 
 
At commencement or on modification of a contract that contains a lease component, the Group allocates the consideration in the 
contract to each lease component on the basis of its relative stand-alone price. 
 
However, for leases of property the Group has elected not to separate non-lease components and account for the lease and 
associated non-lease components as a single lease component. 
 
Leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17 
 
Previously, the Group classified property leases as operating leases under IAS 17. On transition, for these leases, lease liabilities 
were measured at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted at the Group’s incremental borrowing rate as at 1 
July 2019 (see Note 5(D)(i)). Right-of-use assets are measured at either: 
 their carrying amount as if IFRS 16 had been applied since the commencement date, discounted using the Group’s incremental 

borrowing rate at the date of initial application: the Group applied this approach to its largest property lease; or 
 an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments: the Group applied this 

approach to all other leases. 
 
The Group has tested its right-of-use assets for impairment on the date of transition and has concluded that there is no indication that 
the right-of-use assets are impaired. 
 
The Group used a number of practical expedients when applying IFRS 16 to leases previously classified as operating leases under 
IAS 17. In particular, the Group: 
 did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial 

application; 
 did not recognise right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases of low value assets (e.g. IT equipment); 
 excluded initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and 
 used hindsight when determining the lease term. 
 
Leases classified as finance leases under IAS 17 
 
The Group leases a number of items of production equipment. These leases were classified as finance leases under IAS 17. For 
these finance leases, the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset and the lease liability at 1 July 2019 were determined at the 
carrying amount of the lease asset and lease liability under IAS 17 immediately before that date. 
 
As a lessor 
 
The Group leases out its investment property, including own property and right-of-use assets. The Group has classified these leases 
as operating leases. 
 
The Group is not required to make any adjustments on transition to IFRS 16 for leases in which it acts as a lessor, except for a sub-
lease. 
 
The Group sub-leases some of its properties. Under IAS 17, the head lease and sub-lease contracts were classified as operating 
leases. On transition to IFRS 16, the right-of-use assets recognised from the head leases are presented in investment property, and 
measured at fair value at that date. The Group assessed the classification of the sub-lease contracts with reference to the right-of-
use asset rather than the underlying asset, and concluded that they are operating leases under IFRS 16. 
 
The Group has also entered into a sub-lease during 2019, which has been classified as a finance lease. 
 
The Group has applied IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers to allocate consideration in the contract to each lease and 
non-lease component. 

Impact on Financial Statements 

Impact on transition 

 
On transition to IFRS 16, the Group recognised additional right-of-use assets, including investment property, and additional 
lease liabilities, recognising the difference in retained earnings. The impact on transition is summarised below:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Integrated Annual Report 2020                                                                                                                                                           
  64  

Accounting Policies (continues) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

2.     Changes in accounting policy (continues) 
 R’000

Right-of-use assets – property, plant and equipment 15 704
Lease liabilities 16 208

Retained earnings 505

 

When measuring lease liabilities for leases that were classified as operating leases, the Group discounted lease payments using 
its incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019. The weighted average rate applied is 7.83%. 
 
 R’000

Operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019 as disclosed under IAS 17 in the Group’s consolidated Financial 
Statements 

        7 597

Discounted using the incremental borrowings rate at 1 July 2019          8%
Finance lease liabilities recognised as at 30 June 2019 
- Recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets 

         517
71

Lease liabilities recognised at 1 July 2019 16 0
8

 
3. New Standards and Interpretations 
 
3.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year 
 
In the current year, the Group has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current financial 
year and that are relevant to its operations: 
 

IFRS 16 Leases 

IFRS 16 Leases is a new standard which replaces IAS 17 Leases, and introduces a single lessee accounting model. The main 
changes arising from the issue of IFRS 16 which are likely to impact the Group are as follows: 
 
Group as lessee: 
 Lessees are required to recognise a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases, except short term leases or leases 

where the underlying asset has a low value, which are expensed on a straight line or other systematic basis. 
 The cost of the right-of-use asset includes, where appropriate, the initial amount of the lease liability; lease payments made prior 

to commencement of the lease less incentives received; initial direct costs of the lessee; and an estimate for any provision for 
dismantling, restoration and removal related to the underlying asset. 

 The lease liability takes into consideration, where appropriate, fixed and variable lease payments; residual value guarantees to 
be made by the lessee; exercise price of purchase options; and payments of penalties for terminating the lease. 

 The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured on the cost model at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment and 
adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. However, right-of-use assets are measured at fair value when they meet 
the definition of investment property and all other investment property is accounted for on the fair value model. If a right-of-use 
asset relates to a class of property, plant and equipment which is measured on the revaluation model, then that right-of-use 
asset may be measured on the revaluation model. 

 The lease liability is subsequently increased by interest, reduced by lease payments and re-measured for reassessments or 
modifications. 

 Re-measurements of lease liabilities are affected against right-of-use assets, unless the assets have been reduced to nil, in 
which case further adjustments are recognised in profit or loss. 

 The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised payments at a revised rate when there is a change in the lease term 
or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset. 

 The lease liability is re-measured by discounting revised lease payments at the original discount rate when there is a change in 
the amounts expected to be paid in a residual value guarantee or when there is a change in future payments because of a 
change in index or rate used to determine those payments. 

 Certain lease modifications are accounted for as separate leases. When lease modifications which decrease the scope of the 
lease are not required to be accounted for as separate leases, then the lessee re-measures the lease liability by decreasing the 
carrying amount of the right of lease asset to reflect the full or partial termination of the lease. Any gain or loss relating to the full 
or partial termination of the lease is recognised in profit or loss. For all  other lease modifications which are not required to be 
accounted for as separate leases, the lessee re-measures the lease liability by making a corresponding adjustment to the right-
of-use asset. 

 Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities should be presented separately from other assets and liabilities. If not, then the line item 
in which they are included must be disclosed. This does not apply to right-of-use assets meeting the definition of investment 
property which must be presented within investment property. IFRS 16 contains different disclosure requirements compared to 
IAS 17 leases. 
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3.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year (continues) 
 
Group as lessor: 
 Accounting for leases by lessors remains similar to the provisions of IAS 17 in that leases are classified as either finance leases 

or operating leases. Lease classification is reassessed only if there has been a modification. 
 A modification is required to be accounted for as a separate lease if it both increases the scope of the lease by adding the right 

to use one or more underlying assets; and the increase in consideration is commensurate to the stand alone price of the increase 
in scope. 

 If a finance lease is modified, and the modification would not qualify as a separate lease, but the lease would have been an 
operating lease if the modification was in effect from inception, then the modification is accounted for as a separate lease. In 
addition, the carrying amount of the underlying asset shall be measured as the net investment in the lease immediately before 
the effective date of the modification. IFRS 9 is applied to all other modifications not required to be treated as a separate lease. 

 Modifications to operating leases are required to be accounted for as new leases from the effective date of the modification. 
Changes have also been made to the disclosure requirements of leases in the lessor's Financial Statements. 

 
Sale and leaseback transactions: 
 In the event of a sale and leaseback transaction, the requirements of IFRS 15 are applied to consider whether a performance 

obligation is satisfied to determine whether the transfer of the asset is accounted for as the sale of an asset. 
 If the transfer meets the requirements to be recognised as a sale, the seller-lessee must measure the new right-of- use asset at 

the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset that relates to the right-of-use retained. The buyer-lessor accounts 
for the purchase by applying applicable standards and for the lease by applying IFRS 16 

 If the fair value of consideration for the sale is not equal to the fair value of the asset, then IFRS 16 requires adjustments to be 
made to the sale proceeds. When the transfer of the asset is not a sale, then the seller-lessee continues to recognise the 
transferred asset and recognises a financial liability equal to the transfer proceeds. The buyer-lessor recognises a financial 
asset equal to the transfer proceeds. 

 
The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 January 2019. 
 
The Group has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2020 Annual Financial Statements. 

The impact of the standard is set out in note 2 Changes in Accounting Policy. 

3.2 Standards and interpretations not yet effective 
 
The Group has chosen not to early adopt the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are mandatory 
for the Group’s accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2020 or later periods: 
 

Standard/Interpretation 
Effective date: 

Years beginning on or 
after 

Expected 
impact 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS28: Sale or contribution of assets between an 
investor and its associate or joint venture 

1 January 2023 

Unlikely there will 
be a material 

impact 

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current, amendments to IAS1 1 January 2023 

IFRS 17 insurance contracts 1 January 2022 

Annual improvement IFRS standards 2018 – 2020: amendments to IFRS 1 1 January 2022 

Reference to the conceptual framework: amendments to IFRS 3 1 January 2022 

Annual improvement to IFRS standards 2018 – 2020: amendments to IFRS 9 1 January 2022 

Property, plant and equipment: proceeds before intended use: amendments to 
IAS 16 

1 January 2022 

Onerous contracts – cost of fulfilling contract: amendments to IAS 37 1 January 2022 

Annual improvement to IFRS standards 2018 – 2020: amendments to IAS 41 1 January 2022 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2: amendments to IFRS 4 1 January 2021 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2: amendments to IFRS 7 1 January 2021 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2: amendments to IFRS 9 1 January 2021 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2: amendments to IFRS 16 1 January 2021 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2: amendments to IAS 39 1 January 2021 

COVID-19 – related rent concessions: amendments to IFRS 16 1 June 2020 

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform: amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 1 January 2020 

Definition of a Business: amendments to IFRS 3 1 January 2020 

Presentation of Financial Statements: disclosure initiative 1 January 2020 

Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors: disclosure 
initiative 

1 January 2020 
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4. Property, plant and equipment 
 
Group 2020 2019 

 Cost or 
revaluation 

R’000 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

R’000 

Carrying
amount

R’000

Cost or 
revaluation 

R’000 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

R’000

Carrying 
amount 

R’000 

Land 13 066 - 13 066 13 066 - 13 066 
Buildings 34 934 (870) 34 064 35 823 (866) 34 957 
Leasehold property 1 217 (862) 355 3 300 (2 464) 836 
Plant and machinery 28 123 (24 652) 3 471 29 637 (24 644) 4 993 
Furniture and fixtures 107 (98) 9 3 620 (3 209) 411 
Motor vehicles 269 (208) 61 1 460 (1 230) 230 
Office equipment 3 062 (2 725) 337 3 269 (2 865) 404 
IT equipment 3 903 (3 696) 207 4 282 (3 952) 330 

Capital – work in progress 30 - 30 - - - 

Total 84 711 (33 111) 51 600 94 457 (39 230) 55 227 
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4 Property, plant and equipment (continues) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2020 
 

Opening balance 
Land Buildings Leasehold 

property 
Plant and 
machinery 

Furniture and 
fixtures 

Motor 
vehicles 

Office 
equipment 

IT equipment 
Right of use 

assets 
Total 

Cost 13 066 35 823 3 300 29 637 3 620 1 460 3 269 4 282 - 94 457 
Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment 

- (866) (2 464) (24 644) (3 209) (1 230) (2 865) (3 952) - (39 230) 

Carrying amount at 1 July 2019 13 066 34 957 836 4 993 411 230 404 330 - 55 227 

Additions - - 215 256 - - 134 118 30 753 
Disposals  - - (128) - - - - (1) - (129) 
Depreciation - (893) (568) (1 778) (402) (169) (201) (240) - (4 251) 

Carrying amount at 30 June 2020 13 066 34 064 355 3 471 9 61 337 207 30 51 600 

Made up as follows: 
Cost or revaluation 

 
13 066 

 
34 934 

 
1 217 

 
28 123 

 
107 

 
269 

(208) 

 
3 062 

 
3 903 

 
30 

- 
 

 
84 711 

(33 111) Accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses 

- (870) (862) (24 652) (98) (2 725) (3 696) 

 13 066 34 064 355 3 471 9 61 337 207 30 51 600 

 

  



 

 

Integrated Annual Report 2020                                                                                                                                                             68  

Notes to the Financial Statements (continues) 
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

4 Property, plant and equipment (continues) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Group - 2019 
 

Opening balance Land Buildings Leasehold 
property 

Plant and 
machinery 

Furniture 
and fixtures 

Motor 
vehicles 

Office 
equipment 

IT equipment Total 

Cost 11 500 33 174 6 134 44 335 3 643 1 802 3 295 4 644 108 527 
Accumulated depreciation - (1 594) (2 639) (31 313) (3 061) (1 387) (2 808) (4 300) (47 102) 
and impairment losses         
Carrying amount at 01 July 2018 11 500 31 580 3 495 13 022 582 415 487 344 61 425 

Additions - - 302 1 375 - 130 62 253 2 594 
Disposal of subsidiary - - (2 590) (7 573) - (283) (34) (57) (10 537) 
Disposals - - - - (167) - (24) - (191) 
Transfers - - 472 - - - - - - 
Revaluations 1 566 4 187 - (4) - - - (4) 5 745 
Depreciation - (810) (843) (1 827) (4) (32) (87) (206) (3 809) 

Carrying amount at 30 June 2019 13 066 34 957 836 4 993 411 230 404 330 55 227 

Made up as follows:         
Cost or revaluation 13 066 35 823 3 300 29 637 3 620 1 460 3 269 4 282 94 457 
Accumulated depreciation - (866) (2 464) (24 644) (3 209) (1 230) (2 865) (3 952) (39 230) 
and impairment losses         
 13 066 34 957 836 4 993 411 230 404 330 55 227 
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4.     Property, plant and equipment (continues) 
 

The estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment is based on historic performance, as well as expectations about 
future use and therefore requires a significant degree of judgement to be applied by management. These depreciation rates represent 
management's current best estimate of the useful lives of the assets. 
 
Revaluations 
 
This note explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are recognised 
and measured at fair value in the Financial Statements. 
 
Fair value hierarchy 
 
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period. 

 
Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 and level 3 fair values 
 
Land and buildings are v independently every three years or if any indicators of impairment exists, as per the Group policy. 
 
At the end of each reporting period, the directors update their assessment of the fair value of land and buildings, taking into account 
the most recent independent valuations. The directors determine the value of land and buildings within a range of reasonable fair 
value estimates. 
 
The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not available the 
directors consider information from a variety of sources including: 
• Current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets, 

adjusted to reflect those differences. 
• Discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of future cash flows. 
• Capitalised income projections based upon estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate derived from an analysis of 

market evidence of the land and buildings. 
 
All resulting fair value estimates for properties are included in level 3. 
 
The effective date of the latest revaluations was 30 June 2019. The valuations were performed by an independent professional valuer, 
Tayland Valuations CC. Tayland Valuations CC is not connected to the Group. The fair value measurement for the property has been 
categorised as a level 3 fair value based on the inputs to the valuation technique used. 
 
Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs 
 
The following table shows the valuation technique used in measuring the fair value of land and buildings, as well as significant 
unobservable inputs used: 
 

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs 

Net income capitalisation approach:  
The net income capitalisation method of valuation was used to determine the value of 
this property: 

Market rentals of R22/sqm 

Market-related operating expenses incurred are deducted, resulting in a net annual 
income which is then capitalised at market-related rate 

Expenditure rate 30.05% (2016: 22.93%) 

The capitalisation rate is determined from the market (i.e. the rate at which similar 
assets have traded recently), and is influenced by rates of return of similar properties, 
risk, obsolescence, inflation, market rental growth rates, rates of return on other 
investments, as well as prevailing mortgage rates 

Capitalisation rate 11% (2018: 11.5%) 

 
The carrying amount of the revalued assets under the cost model would have been: 
 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Land  862 862 - - 
Buildings 5 543 5 758 - - 

 6 405 6 620 - - 
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5. Investment property 
 

 

   2020 2019 

Group 
  

Carrying 
amount 

Carrying 
amount 

Investment property   - 2 800 

     
Reconciliation of investment property – Group 2020     

  Opening 
balance 

Disposals Total 

Investment property  2 800 (2 800) - 

     

Reconciliation of investment property – Group 2019     
 Opening 

balance 
Additions Fair value 

loss 
Total 

Investment property - 3 122 (322) 2 800 
 
Erf 56389 East London (Alice Cove) 
 
The fair value was initially recognised at cost per deed of sale and transaction costs to get the property to current condition and ready 
for intended purpose. The policy of the Group is to obtain an independent valuation of all the investment property within a three-year 
rolling period. 
 
The effective date of the revaluation was 30 June 2019. The evaluation was performed by Mr A Taylor, a Professional Associated 
Valuer (Reg number - 4967) of Tayland Valuations CC in respect of the investment property. 
 
Mr A Taylor and Tayland Valuations CC are independent of the Group; with recent experience in the location and category of the 
investment property being valued. 
 
The valuation performed was based on the use of property by market participants that would maximise the value of the asset within 
which the assets will be used by the Group. 
 
6. Leases 

 
It is Company policy to lease certain property and/or motor vehicles and equipment under finance leases. The average lease term 
was 1 - 5 years and the average effective borrowing rate was 7% (2019: 8%). 
 
Interest rate are linked to prime at the contract date. All leases escalate at 7% p.a. and no arrangements have been entered into 
for contingent rent. 
 
All finance leases are disclosed as current as a result of the covenant breach with First National Bank. 
 

 Group Company 

 

 
2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Net carrying amounts of right-of-use assets     

The carrying amounts of rights-of-use assets are as follows:     

Buildings 3 588 - - - 

Plant and machinery 186 - - - 

Motor vehicles 93 - - - 

Office equipment 51 - - - 

 3 918 - - - 
 
 

 
 



 

 

Integrated Annual Report 2020                                                                                                                                                           
  71  

Notes to the Financial Statements (continues) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
6.       Leases (continues) 
 

 Group Company Group Company 

 2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Additions to right-of-use assets     

Buildings 5 960 - - - 

Plant and machinery 420 - - - 

Motor vehicles 203 - - - 

Office equipment 119 - - - 

 6 702 - - - 

 
 
Depreciation recognised on right-of-use assets 
 

    

Depreciation recognised on each class of right-of-use assets, is presented below. It includes depreciation which has been expensed 
in the total depreciation charge in profit or loss (note 29), as well as depreciation which has been capitalised to the cost of other 
assets. 

 

Buildings 2 372 - - - 

Plant and machinery 234 - - - 

Motor vehicles 110 - - - 

Office equipment 68 - - - 

 2 784 - - - 

Other disclosures     
 

At 30 June 2020, the Group is committed to R4 205 000 (2019: R7 597 000) for short-term leases. This differs from the portfolio of 
leases for which an expense was recognised in the current financial period, because of a 12-month lease agreement for 10 
photocopier machines which was entered into in the last month of the financial period. 

 

Lease liabilities (2019: Finance lease liability)     

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is as follows:     

Within one year 2 750 164 - - 

Two to five years 1 509 353 - - 

 4 259 517 - - 

Non-current liabilities 1 509 - - - 

Current liabilities 2 750 517 - - 

 4 259 517 - - 

Present value of minimum lease payments due     

Within one year 2 750 164 - - 

In second to fifth year inclusive 1 509 353 - - 

 4 259 517 - - 
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7. Intangible assets 
 
Group  2020 2019 

 Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 

Carrying 
amount 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated 
amortisation 

Carrying 
amount 

Computer software - - - 41 (36) 5 
Patents and other intangibles - - - 1 991 (853) 1 138 

Total - - - 2 224 (1 081) 1 143 
 
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Group 2020  
 
 Opening balance Additions Disposal of 

subsidiary 
Amortisation Total 

Computer software 5 - (4) (1) - 
Patents and other intangibles  1 138 12 (1 083) (67) - 
 1 143 12 (1 087) (68) - 
 
Reconciliation of intangible assets - Group 2019  
 

 Opening balance Disposals Amortisation Total 
Brands 233 (233) - - 
Computer software 1 271 (1 264) (2) 5 
Customer relationships 3 798 (3 798) - - 
Patents and other intangibles   1 839 (568) (133) 1 138 
 7 141 (5 863) (135) 1 143 

 
8. Interests in subsidiaries 
 
The following table lists the entities which are controlled by the Group, either directly or indirectly through subsidiaries. 
 

Name of Company % holding 
2020 

% holding 
2019 

Carrying 
amount 2020 

Carrying 
amount 2019 

Accéntuate Limited Share Trust 100 % 100 % - - 
Accéntuate Management Services (Pty) Ltd 100 % 100 %  - - 
Empowerment Financial Investment Company (Pty) Ltd - % 100 % - - 
FloorworX Africa (Pty) Ltd 100 % 100 % 49 147 49 147 
Glassace 12 (Pty) Ltd - % 100 % - - 
SAFIC (Pty) Ltd - % 100 % - - 
Safic Black Empowerment Enterprise (Pty) Ltd  - % 100 % - - 
SAFIC Environmental Services (Pty) Ltd  - % 100 % - - 
Structworx (Pty) Ltd  - % 100 % - - 

   49 147 49 147 

 
Subsidiaries pledged to security 
 
The following entities were disposed of at 31 December 2019, with final shareholder approval obtained on 26 October 2020: 
 
• SAFIC Proprietary Limited 
• Safic Black Empowerment Enterprise Proprietary Limited 
• SAFIC Environmental Services Proprietary Limited 
 
The following entities were deregistered during the current reporting period: 
 
• Empowerment Financial Investment Company Proprietary Limited 
• Glassace 12 Proprietary Limited 
• Structworx Proprietary Limited 
• Interior Wooden Floors Proprietary Limited 
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9. Deferred tax asset 
 

 Group Company 

 2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Provision for credit losses 272 291 - - 
Amounts received in advance 1 167 1 874 - - 
Prepayment (82) (120) - - 
Employee accruals/provisions 2 196 2 697 - - 
Tax losses 22 188 14 314 - - 
Fair value adjustments 323 219 - - 
Revaluation (9 639) (9 942) - - 
Right-of-use assets: IFRS 16 (1 114) - - - 
Right-of-use liability: IFRS 16 1 193 - - - 

 16 504 9 333   
Deferred tax asset not recognised (6 319) (4 814) - - 
Deferred tax related to Safic Proprietary 
Limited disposed of 

(2 823) -   

Total deferred tax asset 7 362 4 519 - - 

 
Deferred tax asset 7 362 4 519 - - 

 
Reconciliation of deferred tax asset/(liability) 

Balance at 1 July 4 519 (1 950) - - 
Charge to statement of comprehensive 
income 

6 259 4 785 - - 

Charge to statement of other income - (1 172) - - 
Disposal of subsidiary (2 823) 1 727 - - 
Prior period adjustment (22) 1 129 - - 
Deferred tax asset (not 
recognised)/recognised 

(571) - - - 

 7 362 4 519 - - 

 
The Group consider it probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in the future to realise the deferred tax asset 
recognised based on future income to be generated. The sufficiency of future taxable income was supported by budgets for the 
current reporting period as well as the historical trading results of the various subsidiaries within the Group. 
 
The amount of unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised amounts to R6 318 959 (2019: R17 192 857). 
 
10. Inventories 
 

 Group Company 

 2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Raw materials 2 629 3 355 - - 

Finished goods 38 413 46 640 - - 

Merchandise 2 218 2 853 - - 

Re-work stock 4 436 4 491 - - 

 47 696 57 339 - - 

Inventories (write-downs) (677) (554) - - 

 47 019 56 785 - - 
 
The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the period was R 95 707 264 (2019: R 131 551 747).  
 
The value of inventory written down in the current year was R 677 429 (2019: R 553 537). 
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10. Inventories (continues) 
 
An allowance is made to write stock down to the lower of cost or net realisable value. Management have made estimates of the selling 
price and direct cost to sell on certain inventory items. The write down is included in cost of sales. 
 
11. Loans to Group Company 
 
 Group Company 

Subsidiary 2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 
Accéntuate Management Services Proprietary 
Limited 

- - 5 568 2 558 

     
Split between non-current and current 
portions 

    

Current assets - - 5 568 2 558 
 
 

12. Trade and other receivables 
 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Financial instruments     
Trade receivables 16 301 29 455 - - 
Trade receivables – related parties 264 - - - 
Loss allowance (1 238) (1 281) - - 

Trade receivables at amortised cost 15 327 28 174 - - 
Deposits 3 379 637 - - 
Other receivables 2 779 3 130 - - 

Non-financial instruments     

Prepayments 596 1 686 - - 
VAT 59 2 019 - - 

Total trade and other receivables 22 140 35 646 - - 

 
Trade other receivables pledged as security 

Trade receivables were pledged as security for banking facilities as detailed in note 19. 
 
Other receivables related to fraud recoveries in FloorworX Africa Proprietary Limited which were realised during the year amounted 
to R745 441 (2019: R844 782). 
 
Fair value of trade and other receivables 
 
The Directors estimate the carrying amount of trade and other receivables approximate their fair value.  
 
Trade receivables disclosed above include amounts (see below for aged analysis) that are past due at the end of the reporting period 
but against which the Group has not recognised an allowance for doubtful receivables because there has not been a significant 
change in credit quality and the amounts are still considered recoverable. The Group assesses its trade and loans receivables for 
impairment at each reporting date. In determining whether an impairment loss should be recorded in profit or loss, the Group makes 
judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows. The 
impairment for trade and loans receivable is calculated on a specific basis. 
 
Exposure to credit risk 
 
The carrying amount of trade and other receivables represents the maximum credit exposure. 
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12. Trade and other receivables (continues) 

 
Credit Quality 
 
The following represents information on the credit quality of trade receivables that are neither past due not impaired: 

 
Group 2020 2020  2019 2019 

  %   % 

Group 1 (%) - recurring customers - 95 - 95 
Group 2 (%) - other customers - 5 - 5 

Total - 100 - 100 

 
Refer to note 34 for further information regarding credit risk of trade and other receivables. 
 
Trade and other receivables past due but not impaired 
 
Trade and other receivables amounting to R3 063 090 (2019: R7 004 000) which are past due are not considered to be impaired. 
 
The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows: 

  

 2020 2020 2019 2019 

Group 

 
Estimated gross 
carrying amount 

at default 
 

Loss allowance 
(Lifetime 

expected credit 
loss) 

Estimated gross 
carrying amount 

at default 
 

Loss allowance 
(Lifetime 

expected credit 
loss)  

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 

1 month past due 1 450 - 4 643 - 

2 months past due - - 207 - 

3 months past due 941 - 170 - 

Older 672 - 1 984 - 

 3 063 - 7 004 - 
 
Based on the credit history of the trade and other receivables the above the balances have not been impaired. 
 
13. Loan receivable 
 

 Group Company 

 2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Loans receivable 7 946 40 7 946 - 

Current assets     

Loans receivable 7 946 40 7 946 - 
 
The loan receivable relates to outstanding settlement balance for the 100% shareholding in Safic Proprietary Limited sale done 
through a management buy-out by Safic Directors; Eric William Platt, Douglas Murray Cutter and Luke Robert Ralph Quinn (“the 
Purchasers”). The purchase consideration payable by the Purchasers to Accéntuate was R10 million. An amount of R2.054 million 
had been paid in various instalments by 30 June 2020, in pursuant of the Sale and shares and claims agreement. Outstanding 
balance is non-interest bearing and payable on or before 31 October 2020.  
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14. Cash and cash equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 
 

 Group Company 

 

 
2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Cash on hand 23 44 - - 

Bank balances 1 486 1 829 - 24 

Short-term deposits 8 - - - 

Bank overdraft (20 829) (17 791) - (6) 

 (19 312) (15 918) - 18 

Current assets 1 517 1 873 - 24 

Current liabilities (20 829) (17 791) - (6) 

 (19 312) (15 918) - 18 

The total amount of undrawn facilities available 
for future operating activities and commitments 

 

122 

 

10 082 

 

- 

 

- 
 
Credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits, excluding cash on hand 
 
The credit quality of cash at bank and short-term deposits, excluding cash on hand that are neither past due nor impaired can be 
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if available) or historical information about counterparty default rates: 
 
ABSA 
 
The Moody's rating of Baa1 as of 30 June 2020 indicates ABSA has moderate credit risk and may contain certain speculative 
characteristics. Recoverability of short-term deposits is acceptable at p-3. 
 
First National Bank (FNB) 
 
The Moody's rating of Baa2 as of 30 June 2020 indicates FNB has moderate credit risk and may contain certain speculative 
characteristics. Recoverability of short-term deposits is acceptable at p-3. 
 
15. Share capital 
 

 Group Company 

 

 
2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Authorised     

500 000 000 ordinary shares of 0.001 cents 
each 

5 5 5 5 

Issued     

139 366 188 ordinary shares of 0.001 cent each 1 1 1 1 

Share premium 150 187 150 556 150 187 150 187 

 150 188 150 557 150 188 150 188 

     

Reconciliation of numbers of shares issued     

Opening balance 135 387 298 135 387 298 136 459 217 136 469 217 

Acquisition of shares by Group Company (200 000) - - - 

Shares owned by Accentuate Limited Share 
Trust 

3 096 971 2 896 971 3 096 971 2 896 971 

Treasury shares 1 081 919 1 081 919 - - 

 139 366 188 139 366 188 139 566 188 139 366 188 
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15. Share Capital (continues) 
 
Included in the number of issued shares by the Company are 3 096 971 (2019: 2 896 971) shares owned by the Accéntuate Limited 
Share Trust; 1 081 919 (2019: 1 081 919) treasury shares, which have been eliminated in the Group share capital. 
 
The unissued shares are under the control of the directors until the forthcoming annual general meeting. 
 
Share-based payments 
 
There were no new issues during the reporting period and outstanding options were forfeited, as conditions were not met during the 
reporting period.  
 
16. Loans from Shareholders 
 

 Group Company 

 

 
2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Shareholders 5 793 2 076 5 749 2 076 

The above represents loans of R 5 793 000 from Shareholders for a period of 24 months effective March 2019. They are subordinated 
and convertible on 14 March 2021, or two years from the drawdown date, whichever is the latest. The applicable interest rate is prime 
+ 4%, which is payable monthly in arrears but capitalised until such time as the FNB covenants on the Group’s banking facilities are 
met. All of the outstanding capital balance plus any accrued interest may be converted into ordinary shares at the option of the lender 
at any time until 14 March 2021 by giving 7 days' notice. Included in this balance is R 44 000 outstanding Shareholder payments.  
 
Split between non-current and current positions 

 
   

Non-current liabilities - 2 076 - 2 076 

Current liabilities 5 793 - 5 749 - 

 5 793 2 076 5 749 2 076 
 

 
17. Trade and other payables 

 

 Group Company 

 

 
2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Financial instruments     

Trade payables 38 574 35 234 - - 

Accruals - 4 124 46 44 

Accrued bonus 950 1 887 - - 

Accrued leave pay 604 4 927   

Other accruals 269 - - - 

Other payables 99 -   

Non-financial instruments     

Amounts received in advance - 366 - - 

Payroll accruals 951 936 - - 

VAT - 293 - - 

 41 447 47 767 46 44 
 
Fair value of trade and other payables        

The fair value of trade and other payables approximates their carrying amounts. 
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18. Loans from Group companies 
 

 Group Company 

 

 
2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Subsidiaries     

Glassace 12 Proprietary Limited  - - - 1 756 

Split between non-current and current 
portions 

    

Current liabilities - - - 1 756 
 
The above loan is unsecured, interest-free and payable on demand.  
 
Exposure to liquidity risk 
 
Refer to note 34 for details of liquidity risk exposure and management. 
 
19. Other financial liabilities 
 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Mortgage loan – SA Home Loans - 806 - - 
Fulcrum loan 381 -   

Split between non-current and current 
positions 

    

Current liabilities 381 806 - - 

 
Facilities – First National Bank  
Total facilities granted are: R’000 
Prime lending facility 20 950 
Forward exchange contract facility 500 
Wesbank Autocard 350 
Guarantees 355 

 22 155 

 
Facilities are secured by a general notarial bond to the value of R 25 million over all movable assets of FloorworX Proprietary 
Limited in favour of Firstrand Bank Limited and a first ranking cession of debtors in Safic Proprietary Limited and FloorworX Africa 
Proprietary Limited. The facilities are granted subject to FNB obtaining a valuation on the mentioned property to the value of at least 
R42 million. 
 
Compliance with loan covenants 
 
The Group breached the facility covenants for its financier relating to the bank overdraft and bank loan. The bank loan has been 
reclassified and is reflected as a current liability, considering the breach of covenants. The financier has indicated that it will work 
closely with management and are monitoring and the implementation of the Group's turnaround plans. 
 
20. Provisions 
 
 
 

 

Opening 
balance 

Additions Total 

Reconciliation of provisions – Group 2020 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Legal proceedings - 525 525 

Reconciliation of provisions – Company 2020    

Legal proceedings - 525 525 
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20. Provisions (continues) 

The amount is related to a claim of Aghulas Nominees (Pty) Ltd, a dissenting shareholder, against Accéntuate Limited in relation to 
the circular dated 25 of October 2019 for the disposal of 100% shareholding in Pentafloor Proprietary Limited.  

In accordance with the Group’s policy and applicable legislation, a provision for a claim is recognised when the obligation arises, 
representing the estimated actual cash flows in the period in which the obligation is settled. The amount provided is calculated based 
on the probable loss using the currently available facts and applicable legislation. 

The total claim provision at 30 June 2020 amounted to R525 000. There has been no discounting done as cash outflows are expected 
to arise after the reporting date and as such not expected to have a material effect. 
 
21. Investment in associate  
 

 

 

Name of Company 

Listed/Unlisted 
% ownership 
interest 2020 

% ownership 
interest 2019 

Carrying 
amount 

2020 

Carrying 
amount 

2019 

Ion Exchange Safic Proprietary Limited Unlisted  -% 40% - - 
 

The recognition of losses incurred in Ion Exchange Safic (Pty) Limited are limited to the investment in the entity. Safic Proprietary 
Limited held 40% shareholding in, and loans to Ion Exchange Safic Proprietary Limited (“IES”), which was preciously accounted for 
as an investment in associates at Accéntuate Limited on consolidation. The loan and shareholding was taken over by Safic 
Proprietary Limited as a part of the disposal of Safic Proprietary Limited. Refer to note 22 for the disposal of Safic Proprietary 
Limited. Safic Proprietary Limited claims in IES as at the effective date of 31 December 2019 by virtue of shareholders loans was 
R2 175 617. 
 
Summarised financial information of the net material joint venture has been set out below. 
 
The summarised financial information shown represents amounts from the joint venture's Financial Statements that were prepared 
in accordance with IFRS as at 31 March 2020. 
 
Summarised Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income 
 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Revenue - 15 657 
Other income and expenses - (17 202) 

Profit before tax - (1 545) 
Income tax expense - (321) 

Loss from continuing operations - (1 866) 

Total comprehensive loss for the year - (1 866) 

   
Summarised statement of financial position   

   
Assets   
Non-current - 381 
Current - 7 468 

Total assets - 7 849 

   
Liabilities   
Non-current - 2 649 
Current - 13 359 

Total liabilities - 16 008 

   

Total net liabilities  (8 159) 
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21. Investment in associates (continues) 

 

Included in the amounts above are: 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Cash and cash equivalents - 1 570 
Inventories - 2 480 
Trade and other receivables - 3 386 
Trade and other payables - (3 386) 
Bank overdrafts - (5 000) 
Loans payable - (2 649) 

Carrying value of investment in associate  (8 572) 

 
22. Discontinued operations 
 
On 31 December 2019, Accéntuate disposed of 100% of the issued shares in Safic Proprietary Limited, a manufacturer and distributor 
of chemical and related cleaning products, for the consideration of R 10 million. 
 
Prior year balances relate to Accéntuate disposal of 100% of the issued shares in Pentafloor Proprietary Limited, a manufacturer of 
access flooring and distributor of commercial flooring on 28 February 2019. 
 
These assets and liabilities derecognised as a result of the disposal are as follows: 

Profit and loss 2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Revenue 34 825 (35 160) 
Cost of sales (14 986) 24 478 
Other income  272 (1 233) 
Finance income - (688) 
Operating expenses (19 118) 13 691 
Management fees (2 680) - 
Finance costs (1 808) 99 

Net profit before tax 19 839 (10 682) 
Income tax benefit  1 040 (90) 

Net profit after tax 20 879 10 772 

Net loss disposed (2 455) 1 097 

  
Assets and liabilities   
Property, plant and equipment 1 535 (7 177) 
Right-of-use assets (IFRS 16) 7 941 - 
Intangible assets 1 085 - 
Investments in subsidiaries 180 - 
Borrowings - 8 435 
Other financial assets 2 141 - 
Current tax - 1 405 
Trade and other receivables 9 233 (1 542) 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 102 601 
Inventories 8 195 (22 512) 
Deferred tax 2 823 840 
Loans from other Group Companies (21 933) - 
Finance leases (8 664) - 
Trade and other payables (13 358) 21 490 

Net identifiable assets disposed (9 720) 1 541 

  
Purchase consideration received   
Cash paid 2 045 13 081 
Consideration receivable  7 955 - 
Shares issued in Accéntuate Limited - 3 190 

 10 000 16 271 

19 720 (2 474) 
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23. Revenue 

 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Revenue from contracts with customers     

Sale of goods 199 362 264 967 - - 

Rendering of services 205 20 295 - - 

 199 567 285 262 - - 

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers    

The Group disaggregates revenue from customers as follows:   

Sale of goods     

Environmental solutions 34 825 63 201 - - 

Flooring 164 537 201 146 - - 

 199 362 264 347 - - 

     

Rendering of services     

Flooring 205 20 295   

Corporate - 620 - - 

 205 20 915   

Total revenue from contracts with 
customers 199 567 285 262 - - 

     

Timing of revenue recognition     

At a point in time     

Sale of goods 199 362 264 347 - - 

     

Over time     

Rendering of services 205 20 915 - - 

Total revenue from contracts with 
customers 199 567 285 262 

- - 

 
24. Other operating gains/(losses) 

 

 Notes Group Company 

 
 

 2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Fair value gains (losses)      

Investment property 5 - (322) - - 

Investment in subsidiary 8 90 - - - 

  90 (322) - - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Integrated Annual Report 2020                                                                                                                                                           
  82  

Notes to the Financial Statements (continues) 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
25. Operating profit/(loss) 

 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Operating (loss)/profit for the year is stated after charging (crediting) the following, amongst others: 

Employee costs     

Salaries, wages bonuses and other benefits 54 847 57 685 - - 

     

Depreciation and amortisation     

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4 251 3 809 - - 

Depreciation of right-to-use assets 2 784 - - - 

Depreciation of intangible assets - 133 - - 

Total depreciation and amortisation 7 035 3 942 - - 

 

26. Finance income 

 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019   
R’000 

Interest income     

Investments in financial assets:     

Bank and other cash 1 117 - - 

Other financial assets - 870 - - 

Loan to Group companies     

Subsidiary 1 379 175 - - 

Total finance income 1 380 1 162 - - 

 
 
 
27. Finance costs 

  

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Shareholders 673 76 673 76 

Vendor liabilities 397 - - - 

Bank 2 833 4 073 - - 

Lease liabilities 631 36 - - 

Mortgage, tax authorities and borrowings 163 - - - 

Total finance costs 4 697 4 185 673 76 
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28. Income Tax Expense 
 
Major components of the tax (income) expense 
 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Current     

Current period 1 432 - 1 432 - 

Prior period adjustment (2 319) (315) (60) - 

 (877) (315) 1 372 - 

Deferred     

Originating and reversing temporary differences (6 044) (4 780) - - 

Arising from prior period adjustments 454 - - - 

 (5 590) (4 780) - - 

 (6 477) (5 095) 1 372 - 

Reconciliation of tax expense     

Reconciliation between accounting profit and tax expense.    

Applicable tax rate of 28%  28.00% 28.00% 28.00% 28.00% 

Non-deductible expenditure (26.34)% -% 3.95% (28.00)% 

Capital gains tax on disposal of investment 26.26% -% 20.95% -% 

Utilised assessed loss 6.19% -% (9.86)% -% 

Current tax – prior year under/(over) provision 17.15% -% (0.71)% -% 

Deferred tax - prior year under/(over) provision (3.36)% -% -% -% 

Non-taxable income -% -% (26.19)% -% 

 47.90% 28% 16.14% -% 
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29. Cash generated/(used in) from operations 
 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

(Loss)/profit before taxation (13 523) (25 953) 8 494 (848) 

Adjustment for:      

Depreciation and amortisation 7 035 3 942 - - 

(Gains)/Losses on disposal of subsidiary (18 668) - (7 945) 2 919 

Interest income (1 380) (1 162) - - 

Finance costs 4 697 4 185 673 76 

Fair value (gains) losses 1 082 322 - - 

Net impairments and movement in credit  loss 
allowances 

- 1 091 - - 

Movements in operating lease assets and 
accruals 

(40) - - - 

Movement in provisions 525 - 525 - 

Impairment of investment property - - - (2 163) 

Impairment and amortisation - 322 - - 

Unrealised profit/(loss) on foreign exchange - (2) - - 

Provision for obsolete stock - 420 - - 

Other non-cash items - (2 622) - - 

Loss/(profit) on disposal of fixed assets (272) (98) - - 

Share based payments expense (73) (37) - - 

Changes in working capital:      

Inventories 9 766 23 449 - - 

Trade and other receivables 13 506 11 357 - - 

Trade and other payables (5 796) (24 965) 2 - 

 (3 141) (9 751) 1 749 (16) 

 
 
30. Tax refunded (paid) 
 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Balance at 1 July 2 520 676 (60) (60) 

Recognised profit or loss 887 315 (1 372) - 

Other - 1 143 - - 

Balance at 30 June 1 855 (2 520) 1 432 60 

 5 262 (386) - - 
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31. Commitments 
 
Operating leases – as lessee (expense) (IAS 17) 
 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Minimum lease payment due     

- within one year - 3 247 - - 

In second to fifth year inclusive - 4 350 - - 

 - 7 597 - - 

 
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases are negotiated for an 
average term of seven years and rentals are fixed for an average of three years. No contingent rent is payable. 
 
32. Related parties 
 

 ̀

Relationships 
 
Ultimate holding Company Accéntuate Limited 

Subsidiaries Refer to note 8 

Associates Refer to note 21 

Subsidiaries indirectly owned  SAFIC Black Empowerment Enterprises (Pty) Ltd  

 SAFIC Facilities Management Services (Pty) Ltd  

Share Trust  Accéntuate Limited Share Trust  

Members of key management  
 
 
 
 
Related party transaction 

The directors and prescribed officers are defined as key 
senior management. Details of the directors’ emoluments as 
disclosed in note 37, and shareholding is disclosed in the 
shareholders analysis.  EW Platt, the Managing Director of 
Safic, is regarded a prescribed officer.  
 

 

 Group Company 

 
 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Management fees charged by Accéntuate 
Management Services Proprietary Limited  
FloorworX Africa Proprietary Limited  

 
 

8 171 

 
 

10 946 

 
 

- 

 
 

- 

Safic Proprietary Limited  1 444 3 870 - - 

Rental recoveries charged to fellow 
subsidiaries by Accéntuate Management 
Services Proprietary Limited 

    

FloorworX Africa Proprietary Limited 746 2 659 - - 

Safic Proprietary Limited  201 2 073 - - 

Other cost recoveries charged to fellow 
subsidiaries by Accéntuate Management 
Services Proprietary Limited  

 
 

   

FloorworX Africa Proprietary Limited 3 791 5 469 - - 

Safic Proprietary Limited 1 420 6 112 - - 

Inter-Group sales to fellow subsidiaries by 
Safic Proprietary Limited 

    

FloorworX Africa Proprietary Limited  2 057 4 456 - - 

Inter-Group sales to fellow subsidiaries by 
FloorworX Africa Proprietary Limited  

    

Pentafloor Proprietary Limited  - 247 - - 



 

 

Integrated Annual Report 2020                                                                                                                                                           
  86  

Interest charged to fellow subsidiaries by 
Accéntuate Management Services 
Proprietary Limited  

    

FloorworX Africa Proprietary Limited (79) (117) - - 

Safic Proprietary Limited 2 796 1 972 - - 

 
All balances and transactions involving Safic Proprietary Limited are up to 31 December 2019, when the Company was disposed of. 
 
33. Directors' and prescribed officer's emoluments 

Executive 

Directors' emoluments - 2020 Basic salary 
Contributions 

paid under 
pension scheme

Total

 R’000 R’000 R’000 

FC Platt 3 159 478 3 637 
MJ Coetzee* 790 129 919 
DE Platt 2 578 496 3 074 
W Mushohwe* 301 17 318 

 6 828 1 120 7 948 

* resigned November 2019 
** appointed March 2020 

 

   

Directors' emoluments - 2019 
Basic salary 

Contributions 
paid under 

pension scheme
Total

 R’000 R’000 R’000 

FC Platt 3 469 215 3 684 
MJ Coetzee 1 982 135 2 117 
DE Platt 2 544 485 3 029 

 7 995 835 8 830 

Non-executive    

  Group 

 
Directors' emoluments  

 2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

RB Patmore  438 445 
NE Ratshikhopha  285 282 
PS Kriel*  204 164 
A Mjamekwana**  286 145 

  1 213 1 036 
* resigned from Thebe Investment Corporation 
** appointed full-time director 
 

Prescribed officer 

Emoluments  Basic salary

Bonuses and 
performance 

related 
payments

Contributions 
paid under 

pension 
scheme 

Total 

 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

     

EW Platt - 2020 1 231 23 187 1 441 

EW Platt – 2019 2 435 32 179 1 646 
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34. Financial instruments and risk management  

Categories of financial instruments 

Categories of financial assets  

 

Group - 2020 

 Notes Amortised 
costs Total 

Trade and other receivables 12 21 485 21 485 
Cash and cash equivalents 14 1 517 1 517 
  23 002 23 002 

 
Group - 2019 

 Notes Amortised 
cost Total 

Trade and other receivables 12 31 941 31 941 
Cash and cash equivalents 14 1 873 1 873 
  33 814 33 814 

 
Company - 2020 

 Notes Amortised 
cost Total 

Loans to Group Companies 11 5 568 5 568 
  5 568 5 568 

 
Company - 2019 

 Notes Amortised 
cost Total 

Loans to Group Companies 11 2 558 2 558 
Cash and cash equivalents 14 24 24 
  2 582 2 582 

 
Categories of financial liabilities 

 

Group - 2020 

 Notes Amortised 
cost Leases Total 

Trade and other payables 17 34 173 - 34 173 
Loans from shareholders  5 793 - 4 793 
Borrowings 19 - 381 381 
Finance lease liabilities 6 - 4 259 4 259 
Bank overdraft 14 20 829 - 20 829 
  60 795 4 640 65 435 

 
Group - 2019 

 Notes Amortised 
cost Leases Total 

Trade and other payables 17 41 554 - 41 554 
Loans from shareholders  2 076 - 2 076 
Borrowings 19 - 806 806 
Finance lease obligations 6 - 517 517 
Bank overdraft 14 17 785 - 17 785 
  61 415 1 323 62 738 
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34. Financial instruments and risk management (continues) 

Company - 2020 

 Notes Amortised 
cost Total 

Trade and other payables 17 46 46 
Loans from shareholders  5 749 5 749 
  5 795 5 795 

 
Company - 2019 

 Notes Amortised 
cost Total 

Trade and other payables 17 44 44 
Loans from Group companies 18 1 756 1 756 
Loans from shareholders  2 076 2 076 
  3 876 3 876 

 

Financial risk management 

The Group is exposed to the following risks from its use of financial assets and liabilities: 
 
• Credit risk. 
• Liquidity risk. 
• Market risk (interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk). 
• Capital risk management. 
 
This note presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, policies and processes 
for measuring and managing risk, and the Group's management of capital. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout 
these consolidated Financial Statements. 
 
The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Board has 
established the risk committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group's risk management policies. The 
committee reports quarterly to the Board on its activities. 
 
The Group's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk 
limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to 
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group's activities. 
 
The Group audit and risk committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the risk management policies and 
procedures and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit and 
risk committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit and risk committee. 
 
There have been no changes to the objectives, policies and processes for managing the risk and methods used to manage the risk 
from the prior year. 
 
Credit risk 
 
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations. The potential exposure on these financial instruments is inherent in trade receivables, loans, and bank and call deposits. 
 
Trade and other receivables 
 
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management 
also considers the demographics of the Group's customer base, including the industry and role within the supply chain as these may 
have an influence on credit risk. 
 
In order to mitigate the risk of financial loss from defaults, the Group only deals with reputable customers with consistent payment 
histories. Sufficient collateral or guarantees are also obtained when appropriate. Each customer is analysed individually for 
creditworthiness before terms and conditions are offered. Statistical credit scoring models are used to analyse customers. These 
models make use of information submitted by the customers as well as external bureau data (where available). Customer credit limits 
are in place and are reviewed and approved by credit management committees. The exposure to credit risk and the creditworthiness 
of customers, is continuously monitored. 
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34. Financial instruments and risk management (continues) 
 
There have been no significant changes in the credit risk management policies and processes since the prior reporting period. 
 
The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the 
Group's standard payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. 
 
Many of the Group's customers have been transacting with the Group for a number of years. In monitoring customer credit risk, 
customers are assessed according to their credit characteristics, including whether they are an individual or legal entity, geographic 
location, industry, ageing profile, maturity, existence of previous financial difficulties and sureties and guarantees provided. Trade and 
other receivables relate to widespread customers. 
 
At the reporting date, the Group did not consider there to be any significant concentration of credit risk which has not been adequately 
provided for. 
 
The Board has delegated the responsibility of managing credit risk to the managing executives of each subsidiary, who are 
responsible for: 
 
• Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit facilities 
• Reviewing and assessing credit risk 
• Monitoring the financial position of customers on an on-going basis 
• Formulating credit policies in relation to the subsidiary's business and customer base. 
 
Financial assets exposed to credit risk year end were as follows: 
 
 

Group   2020   2019  
  Gross

carrying
amount

Loss
allowance

Carrying 
amount

Gross
carrying 
amount

Loss
allowance

Carrying 
amount  

Trade and other receivables 12 22 723 (1 238) 21 485 33 222 (1 281) 31 941 
Cash and cash equivalents 14 1 517 - 1 517 1 873 - 1 873 

  24 240 (1 238) 23 002 35 095 (1 281) 33 814 

 
Company   2020   2019  
  Gross

carrying
amount

Loss
allowance

Carrying 
amount

Gross
carrying 
amount

Loss 
allowance 

Carrying 
amount 

  

Loans to Group companies 11 5 568 - 5 568 2 558 - 2 558 
Cash and cash equivalents 14 - - - 24 - 24 

  5 568 - 5 568 2 582 - 2 582 

 
Liquidity risk 
 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that 
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring 
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group's reputation. The Group's financiers have initiated a program to work closely 
with the management of the Group and monitor the Group's cash flow and business plan implementation, considering the losses that 
the organisation has been incurring and the fact that some of the covenants  relating to the Group's facilities have been breached. 
 
Typically the Group ensures that it has sufficient cash on demand or borrowing facilities to meet expected operational expenses for 
a period of 60 days, including the servicing of financial obligations. This excludes the potential impact of extreme circumstances that 
cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. 
 
An analysis of the Group's financial assets and liabilities into relevant maturity Groupings based on the remaining period at the 
reporting date to contractual maturity are as follows based on undiscounted cash flows: 
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34. Financial instruments and risk management (continues) 
 
Group - 2020 

 Notes Carrying amount

Non-current liabilities   
Lease liabilities  1 509 
Current liabilities   
Trade and other payables 17 34 173 
Borrowings 19 381 
Lease liabilities  2 750 
Bank overdraft 14 20 829 
  (59 642)

 
Group - 2019 

 Notes Carrying amount

Current liabilities   
Trade and other payables  41 554 
Borrowings  806 
Lease liabilities  517 
Bank overdraft  17 791 
  60 668

 
Company - 2020 

  Carrying amount

Current liabilities   
Trade and other payables  46 
  (46)

 
Company - 2019 

 Notes Carrying amount

Current liabilities   
Trade and other payables 17 44 
Bank overdraft 14 6 
  50 

Foreign exchange risk 
 
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk related to certain bank accounts which are denominated in a foreign currency.  
 
The net carrying amounts, in Rand, of cash and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies. The amounts have 
been presented in Rand by converting the foreign currency amount at the closing rate at the reporting date.  
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34. Financial instruments and risk management (continues) 
 

Group Company 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

2020 

R’000 

2019 

R’000 

Rand amount      

Rand  1 842 1 468 - - 

US Dollar 1 1 - - 

Euro 4 - - - 

1 847 1 469 - - 

The net carrying amounts, in foreign currency of the above exposure was as follows: 

Foreign currency amount     

US Dollar 74 82 - - 

Euro 184 23 - - 

The following closing exchange rates were applied at reporting date: 

Rand per unit of foreign currency     

US Dollar 17 517 14 340 - - 

Euro 19 731 16 390 - - 
 
 
Foreign exchange contracts 
 
Certain forward exchange contracts have been entered into for the purposes of managing foreign currency risk. The net market value 
of all forward exchange contracts at reporting date is calculated by comparing the forward exchange contracted rates to the equivalent 
market foreign exchange rates at reporting date. The present value of these net market values are then calculated using the 
appropriate currency specific discount curve. 
 
 

Group - 2020 
Average FEC 

rate 
Contract 

foreign 
currency 

amount 

Contract Rand 
amount 

Imports and payables     

US Dollar 17 639 - - 

Euro 19 900 - 4 

  4 

 
 

Group - 2019 
Average FEC 

rate 
Contract 

foreign 
currency 

amount 

Contract Rand 
amount 

Imports and payables     

US Dollar 14 340 82 1 176 

Euro 16 390 23 377 

  1 553 
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34. Financial instruments and risk management (continues) 

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis 
 
The following information presents the sensitivity of the Group to an increase or decrease in the respective currencies it is exposed 
to. The sensitivity rate is the rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel and represents 
management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only 
outstanding foreign currency denominated amounts and adjusts their translation at the reporting date. No changes were made to 
the methods and assumptions used in the preparation of the sensitivity analysis compared to the previous reporting period. 

 
Group 2020 2020 2019 2019 

Increase or decrease in rate Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

Impact on profit or loss: 
US Dollar 10% (2019: 10%) - - 

 
(56) 51 

Euro 10% (2019: 10%) - - (31) 39 

 - - (87) 90 

 
Interest rate risk 
 
The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate owing to changes 
in the market interest rates. The fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in the market interest rates. The Group assumes exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market 
interest rates on cash flow risks. 
 
Interest rate sensitivity analysis 
 
Group 2020 2020 2019 2019 

Increase or decrease in rate Increase Decrease Increase Decrease 

Balances exposed to variable interest rates - - 193 (193) 
 
Capital risk 
 
The Group's objective when managing capital is to safeguard the entity's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can 
continue to provide returns for shareholders, benefits for others stakeholders and to provide an adequate return to shareholders by 
pricing products and services adequately with a moderate level of risk. 
 
The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in 
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital 
structure, the Group may issue dividends to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. 
 
The Group monitors capital on the basis of net debt to total equity ratio. 
 
The Group's strategy is to maintain the net debt to equity ratio below 0,60, in order to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost. 
 
The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged. The debt-to-equity ratio is as follows: 
 

  Group 

  2020 
R’000 

2019 
R’000 

Total liabilities  78 625 69 480 
Less: cash and cash equivalents  (1 517) (1 873) 

Net debt  77 108 67 607 
Total equity  63 149 91 556 
Debt-to-equity ratio  1,22 0,74 
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35. Going concern 
 
We draw attention to the fact that at 30 June 2020, the Company had accumulated loss of R95.3 million (Group: R119.4 million); but 
the Company's total assets exceeded its liabilities by R54.9 million (Group: R63.1 million) and as such remain technically solvent with 
a positive net asset value. 

 
The Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis presumes 
that the Company will be able to generate positive cashflows to finance future operations and that it will be able to settle its liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments in the ordinary course of business. 
 
The ability of the Company to continue as a going concern is still dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is 
that the directors continue to procure funding for the ongoing operations for the Company and that the subordination agreement 
referred to in note of these Financial Statements will remain in force for so long as it takes to restore a healthy liquidity and solvency 
of the Company. 
 
36. Events after the reporting period 
 
The Board is aware of the COVID-19 pandemic as well as the country's downgrade to sub-investment grade. The pandemic related 
events are considered to be adjusting events after the reporting period. There is no immediate concern around going concern. 
Management has established high-level task teams that are continually assessing and monitoring developments with regard to the 
disease and at the time of finalising the report, the Board is confident that our responses are adequate and the crisis is being 
continuously monitored to assess the impact on the Group and Company. 
 
On 30 November 2020, the Company posted a Circular relating to a scheme of arrangement in terms of section 114 of the 
Companies Act proposed by the Board of Accéntuate between Accéntuate and its shareholders which, if implemented, will result in 
Pruta Securities (Jersey) Limited acquiring all of the issued Accéntuate shares, its related and inter-related persons  and persons 
acting in concert with any of them for an offer price of R 0,10 per Accéntuate share (“the Scheme”). Separately but concurrent to 
the Scheme, a conditional standby offer to the eligible shareholders in terms of section 117(1)(c)(v) of the Companies Act and 
paragraph 1.15(c) of the Listings Requirements to acquire all of the offer shares for a cash consideration of R 0,10 per offer share, 
subject to the Scheme not becoming operative, the standby offer being accepted by at least 51% of Eligible Shareholders (“the 
Standby Offer”) and the delisting being approved. 
 

37. Earnings and headline earnings per share 
 

Earnings and value per share 2020 cents 2019 cents 

Loss per share from continuing operations (cents) (19,80) (15,61) 
Loss per share from discontinued operations (cents) 14,59 (1,85) 

Loss per share (5,21) (17,46) 
Diluted loss per share (5,21) (17,46) 
Headline loss per share (15,15) (15,60) 
Diluted headline loss per share (15,15) (15,60) 
Net asset value per share 47,00 66,00 
 

Earnings/Headline earnings 2020 cents 2019 cents 

Loss for the year used in the calculation of basic and diluted earnings (7 046) (23 330) 
Headline (loss) attributable to ordinary shareholders (20 481) (20 861) 
 

Reconciliation between earnings and headline earnings 

Gross 

R’000 

Tax 

R’000 

Net 

R’000 

2020    
Loss from continuing operations  (26 766) - (26 766) 
Loss from discontinued operations 19 720 - 19 720 

Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (7 046) - (7 046) 
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1 060 - 1 060 
Profit on sale of Safic (19 720) - (19 720) 
Taxation effect 5 225 - 5 225 

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders (20 481) - (20 481) 
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37. Earnings and headline earnings per share (continues) 

   

2019 Gross 

R’000 

Tax 

R’000 

Net 

R’000 

Loss from continuing operations  (20 856) - (20 856) 
Loss from discontinued operations (2 474) - (2 474) 

Loss attributable to ordinary shareholders (23 330) - (23 330) 
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (5)  (5) 
Loss on sale of Pentafloor 2 474 - 2 474 

Headline earnings attributable to ordinary shareholders (20 861) - (20 861) 

 

Weighted average number of shares and diluted weighted average number of 
shares 

2020 cents 2019 cents 

Weighted average number of shares 135 187 298 133 609 965 
Diluted weighted average number of shares 135 187 298 133 609 965 
Total shares in issue 139 366 188 139 366 188 

  
Reconciliation between the number of shares used for earnings per share and 
diluted earnings per share 

  

Number of shares used for earnings per share 135 187 298 133 609 965 
Shares to be issued for an exercise of options - - 

Number of shares used for diluted earnings per share 135 187 298 133 609 965 

 

38. Directors’ interests 

 

2020 
Classification 

Beneficial  
Direct 

Beneficial 
Indirect 

% of issued 
share capital 

Fred Platt  Executive 6 573 408 659 466 5,19 
Donald Platt Executive 1 600 000  1,15 
Pieter Kriel (Thebe Investment Corporation)* Non-executive  17 853 443 12,67 
Andile Mjamekwana (Thebe Investment 
Corporation)** 

Non-executive  17 853 433 12,67 

* No longer represents Thebe on the Board  
** Resigned from Thebe, classified as Independent, effective 19 May 2020 
 

2019 
Classification 

Beneficial  
Direct 

Beneficial 
Indirect 

% of issued 
share capital 

Fred Platt  Executive 6 573 408 659 466 5,19 
Donald Platt Executive 1 600 000  1,15 
Thys du Preez (TBI Strategic Partners)* Non-executive  40 310 792 28,92 
Ockert Goosen (TBI Strategic Partners)** Alternate   40 310 792 28,92 
Pieter Kriel (Thebe Investment Corporation) Non-executive  17 853 443 12,67 
Andile Mjamekwana (Thebe Investment 
Corporation)*** 

Non-executive  17 853 433 12,67 

* retired 18 January 2019 
** resigned 26 March 2019 
*** appointed full director on 1 March 2019 
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Operating segments  
 
The Group's Strategic Steering Committee, consisting of the chief executive officer, the chief financial officer and the Executive 
Committee, examines the Group's performance both from a product and geographic perspective and has identified three reportable 
segments of its business. 
 
The Group has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the Group's strategic divisions. The strategic divisions 
offer different products and services and are managed separately because they operate in different markets. For each of the 
strategic divisions, the Group executive committee reviews internal management reports on a monthly basis. 
 
Description of segments and principal activities.  
 
Flooring 
 
This segment comprises of FloorworX, which manufactures resilient flooring and also imports numerous international flooring 
solutions. Pentafloor was also part of this segment and manufactures and installs access flooring solutions. Both entities distribute 
its products locally and in the rest of Africa. Safic produced adhesives that FloorworX applies in the installations made of its products 
and sales are made at arm’s length.  
 
Environmental solutions 
 
This segment consists of our Safic entities, which provides sustainable, customised, environmentally acceptable cleaning and 
maintenance solutions, process chemicals for metal and water treatment, as well as confidential blending services to the industrial, 
commercial, food and beverage, transport, construction and government sectors. 
 
On 31 December 2019, Accéntuate disposed of 100% of the issued shares in Safic Proprietary Limited, a manufacturer and distributor 
of chemical and related cleaning products, for the consideration of R10 million. Refer to note 22. 
 
Corporate 
 
This segment represents the head office of the Group where the strategic, governance and treasury functions are maintained. The 
costs related to managing these activities on behalf of the Group are and charged to the operating entities on a monthly basis. The 
financial impact of these transactions are set out in note 32. This includes all transactions required to produce consolidated results 
for the Group of companies. 

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based on segment profit 
before income tax, as included in the internal management reports. 
 
However, the steering committee also receives information about the segments' revenue and assets on a monthly basis. Information 
about segment revenue is disclosed below. 
 

2020 
Flooring 

Environmental 
solution 

Corporate (and 
eliminations) 

Consolidated 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Revenue 160 631 34 825 21 519 216 763 
Less: inter-segmental sales - (2 057) (15 352) (17 409) 

External revenue 160 631 32 768 (6 167) 199 567 

Gross profit 69 380 17 783 14 379 83 790 

Operating loss (19 233) (1 687) (25 594) (46 514) 
Finance income 79 - 1 379 1 471 
Finance costs (628) (1 808) (2 261) (4 696) 

Loss before tax (19 782) (3 495) (2 020) (25 297) 
Income tax - - (1 372) (1 372) 

Loss for the year (19 782) (3 495) (3 392) (26 669) 
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Segment assets 
 
These assets are allocated based on the operations of the segment: 
 

Flooring 
Environmental 

solution 
Corporate (and 

eliminations) 
Consolidated 

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Property, plant and equipment 51 338 1 535 (1 273) 51 600 
Goodwill 3 918 7 941 (7 941) 3 918 
Intangible assets - 1 086 (1 086) - 
Deferred taxation 7 362 2 823 (2 823) 7 362 
Inventory 47 019 8 195 (8 195) 47 019 
Trade and other receivables 15 000 9 233 (2 093) 22 140 
Other financial assets - 2 141 (2 141) - 
Loans to Group Companies - 180 (180) - 
Operating lease asset 3 254 - 4 692 7 946 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 487 1 102 (1 072) 1 517 

129 378 34 236 (22 112) 141 502 

 
Segment liabilities 
 
These liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the segment.  
 
Long-term liabilities 1 509  - - 1 509 
Loans from Group Companies - 21 933 6 752 - 
Trade and other payables 32 754 13 358 10 130 41 447 
Loans from shareholders - - 5 793 5 793 
Other financial liabilities - - 381 381 
Finance lease obligations - 8 664 659 - 
Operating lease liability 2 696 - 54 2 750 
Current tax payable - - 1 855 1 855 
Provisions - - 525 525 
Bank overdraft - - 20 829 20 829 

36 959 43 955 46 978 75 089 

Other information 
Capital expenditure 645 447 108 (735) 
Depreciation and amortisation 5 474 1 436 124 7 035 
Cash flows from operating activities (8 899) (4 023) 8 112 (4 811) 
Cash flows from investing activities 9 723 (11 480) (4 245) (6 002) 
Cash flows from financing activities (806) 16 131 (7 906) (7 419) 
Non-cash items (40) (37) 562 485 
Impairment losses - (50) (40) (90) 
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2019 Flooring 

Environmental 
solution 

Corporate (and 
eliminations) 

Consolidated 

Comprehensive income R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 

Revenue 221 441 67 657 31 741 320 846 
Less: inter-segmental sales - (4 456) (31 182) (35 584) 

External revenue 221 441 63 201 613 285 262 

Gross profit 91 846 38 735 (11 596) 118 986 

Operating (loss)/profit (19 838) (6 304) 3 214 (22 928) 
Finance income 1 102 176 (116) 1 162 
Finance costs (99) (2 008) (2 078) (4 185) 

Loss before tax (17 649) (6 610) (1 692) (25 951) 
Income tax 5 174 11 (91) - 

Loss for the year (12 475) (6 599) (4 256) (23 330) 

 
Segment assets  
 
Segment assets are measures in the same way as the Financial Statements. These assets are allocated based on the operations 
of the segment.  
 
Property, plant and equipment 53 383 1 497 347 55 227 
Investment property 2 800 - - 2 800 
Intangible assets - 1 142 1 1 143 
Deferred taxation 2 813 1 706 - 4 519 
Inventory 49 371 7 414 - 56 785 
Trade and other receivables 20 754 10 635 4 257 35 646 
Other financial assets - - 40 40 
Current tax receivables 3 003 - - 3 003 
Loans to Group Companies 11 873 - (11 873) - 
Cash and cash equivalents 1 470 363 41 1 874 

145 467 22 757 (7 187) 161 037 

 
Segment liabilities 
 
Segment liabilties are measures in the same way as the Financial Statements. These liabilities are allocated based on the operations 
of the segment.  
 
Loans from Group Companies - 14 029 (14 029) - 
Trade and other payables 39 117 15 775 (7 125) 47 767 
Borrowings 806 - 2 076 2 882 
Finance lease obligations - 436 81 517 
Operating lease liability - - 483 483 
Current tax payable 60 - (20) 40 
Bank overdraft - - 17 791 17 791 

39 983 30 240 (743) 69 480 

 
Capital expenditure 382 217 21 620 
Depreciation and amortisation 2 839 721 (8 801) (5 241) 
Cash flows from operating activities 7 842 (866) (11 337) (4 361) 
Cash flows from investing activities (12 267) 509 22 801 11 043 
Cash flows from financing activities 806 55 (12 201) (11 340) 
Non-cash items 209 9 - 218 
Impairment losses 322 1 091 (1 091) 322 
 

There are no customers that account for more than 10% of the total revenue per segment.  
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